
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
AUGUST 23, 2004 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 



TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration is on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
1. Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government. 
2. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment. 
3. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally. 
4. Creatively maintain and improve public infrastructure. 
5. Protect life and property. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

August 23, 2004 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Rev. Paul Lehmann – Glen Oaks 
Alliance Church 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: Introduction of Brad Henson, Candidate for Parks and Recreation 
Board Student Representative and Anbereeen Wiqar, Candidate for Advisory 
Committee for Persons with Disabilities Student Representative 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 6471 Denton 1 

C-2 COBASYS/Texaco Ovonic 3 

C-3 Proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA #202) – Article 28.30.02 – 
Outside Storage of Commercial and Recreational Vehicles in Self Storage 
Facilities 5 



POSTPONED ITEMS: 5 

D-1 Approval of City at Large to Pay for Sidewalk Replacement Where Property 
Owners Meet Low to Moderate Income Guidelines 5 

CONSENT AGENDA: 6 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 6 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 6 

E-2  Minutes:  Regular Meeting of August 9, 2004 7 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  No City of Troy Proclamations proposed. 7 

E-4 Request from First Baptist Church of Troy for Temporary Suspension of Chapter 
47, House Trailers 7 

E-5 Request from Joseph J. Malla – Chairman, Veterans Monument Committee of 
Troy, to Display “Lest They Be Forgotten” Flag from the Veterans Monument Flag 
Pole under the American Flag on the City Hall Plaza 7 

E-6 Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: State of Michigan MiDEAL Program – Large 
Capacity Riding Rotary Mower with ROPS 4-Post Canopy 7 

E-7 Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: State of Michigan MiDEAL Program – Optical 
Scanning Services 8 

E-8 Informal Quotation Process Award of Professional Engineering Services for 
Emergency Back-Up Power at the Community Center 8 

E-9 Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 04-5 – Section 
30 Water Main Replacement 8 

E-10 Request to Waive Parking Restrictions 9 

E-11 Winter Maintenance Agreement – Road Commission for Oakland County 9 

E-12 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from the Michigan 
Accountancy Foundation  (MAF) for the Purpose of Obtaining a Charitable Gaming 
License 9 



E-13 Private Agreement for Cedar Pines Site Condominiums – Project No. 03.926.3 9 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 10 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 10 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral Appointments: 1. Downtown 
Development Authority, 2. Economic Development Corporation; (b) City Council 
Appointments: 1. Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities, 2. Parks and 
Recreation Board 10 

F-2 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement, Helen A. Kaleto also known as 
Helen A. Rychlewski – 2839 Thames – Sidwell #88-20-25-226-005 – Big Beaver, 
Rochester to Dequindre Road Project #01-105.5 15 

F-3 Community Development Block Grant Status Change from Metropolitan City to 
Urban County 15 

F-4 Street Vacation Application (SV-185) – South 149.26 feet of Beach Road, South of 
Hampton Lane within Wendover Woods Subdivision No. 2 – Section 19 16 

F-5 Request for Approval of Agreement to Purchase Right-of-Way to the 75-foot Line 
for Sidewalk – 6130 Rochester Road – Section 2 – Sidewalk Gap – Owner: John 
Stewart 17 

F-6 Emerald Food Services, Inc.: Proposed Contract and Amendment Executions and 
Request for Quota Class C Liquor License 18 

F-7 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement for Maple Road/Coolidge to Crooks 
Water Main and Sidewalk Project #01.501.5 – McGregor Manufacturing 
Corporation – 2785 West Maple – Sidwell #88-20-32-126-001 19 

F-8 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement for Thien Van Le & Yen Lu, - 2919 
Thames – Sidwell #88-20-25-229-002 – Project No. 01.105.5 – Big Beaver Road 
Improvements – Rochester to Dequindre 20 

F-9 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement for Paul K. Davis – 2955 Sparta – 
Sidwell #88-20-25-202-001 – Project No. 01.105.5 – Big Beaver Road 
Improvements – Rochester to Dequindre 20 



F-10 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Proposed Timbercrest Estates Site 
Condominium – 11 Units/Lots Proposed, South Side of Wattles – West of 
Fernleigh – Section 24 – R-1C 20 

F-11 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Proposed Presidential Place Site 
Condominium – 5 Units/Lots Proposed, West Side of John R Road – North of 
Square Lake Road – Section 2 – R-1D 21 

F-12 Request to Schedule a Study Session to Discuss Neighborhood Compatibility 
Issues 22 

F-13 Confirmation of Appointment; Mr. Brian Murphy as Assistant City 
Manager/Services 23 

F-14 Sole Source – Purchase of Opticom Emitters for Emergency Vehicles 23 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 23 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: No Public Hearing Announcements. 23 

G-2 Green Memorandums: 23 

(a) Memorandum, Re: Municipal Civil Infractions Ordinance ................................... 23 
(b) Memorandum, Re: Group Day Care Homes ...................................................... 23 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 23 

H-1  No Council Referrals advanced to the City Manager. 24 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 24 

I-1  No Council Comments submitted. 24 

REPORTS: 24 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 24 

(a) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Final – February 26, 2004............................ 24 
(b) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – June 2, 2004 ............. 24 
(c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – June 2, 2004 ............. 24 
(d) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – June 14, 2004 ............................................. 24 
(e) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Final – June 22, 2004....................................... 24 



(f) Historic Study Committee/Draft – June 29, 2004................................................ 24 
(g) Planning Commission-Special/Final – July 8, 2004 ............................................ 24 
(h) Planning Commission/Final – July 13, 2004 ....................................................... 24 
(i) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – July 14, 2004 .......... 24 
(j) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – July 20, 2004 .................................................. 24 
(k) Historic Study Committee/Draft – July 26, 2004 ................................................. 24 
(l) Planning Commission-6:00 PM-Special/Final – July 27, 2004............................ 24 
(m) Planning Commission-7:30 PM-Special/Final – July 27, 2004....................... 24 
(n) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – July 27, 2004 ........................................ 24 
(o) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – August 4, 2004 .................................... 24 
(p) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – August 9, 2004............................................ 24 
(q) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Draft – August 10, 2004............................... 24 
(r) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – August 11, 2004 ..... 24 

J-2 Department Reports: 24 

(a) Permits Issued During the Month of July 2004 ................................................... 24 
(b) Troy Medi-Go Plus – 2003 Annual Report/Newsletter ........................................ 24 
(c) Letter from Martha W. Northrup to Troy City Council Re: Wood Fires in the 

City of Troy ......................................................................................................... 24 
(d) Memorandum, Re: Political Sign Ordinance – Chapter 85-A of the Troy City 

Code................................................................................................................... 24 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 24 

(a) Letter from Gus Chutorash, Director of Camping for the Detroit Area Council, 
Boy Scouts of America to John Szerlag Recognizing Mark Stimac for His 
Contribution to the Boy Scouts ........................................................................... 24 

(b) Letter from Michael Drapeau to Chief Craft Thanking Sgt. Robert Redmond 
and the  Traffic Safety Division, and John Abraham for Their Response to His 
Speeding Concerns in His Neighborhood........................................................... 24 

(c) Letter from Barnett Jones, Chief of Police for the City of Sterling Heights to 
Chief Craft in Appreciation of the Tireless Assistance the Troy Police 
Department Provided in the Aftermath of the Tragic Death of Officer Mark 
Sawyers.............................................................................................................. 24 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None proposed. 24 

J-5  Calendar 25 

J-6  Memorandum, Re: Status of Section 23 (Raintree Village No. 1) Pavement 
Replacement Project – Contract 04-4 25 

J-7  Memorandum, Re: Update-Somerset Collection Ryder Cup Charity Event 25 

J-8  Memorandum, Re: 2005 City Calendar 25 

J-9  Attached is a communication from Mrs. Mary Ann Bernardi requesting that City 
Council place the issue of the proposed I-75/Crooks Road/Long Lake Interchange 



Improvement Project as an advisory ballot issue for the November 2004 election. 
Also attached are memoranda from City Management, and the City Attorney’s 
Office related to this matter. 25 

J-10  Memorandum, City Manager John Szerlag, Re: Meeting with Mr. Piscopo of 3129 
Alpine regarding the size and elevation of attached garage. Also included is a 
memo from Assistant City Attorney Susan M. Lancaster indicating that public 
funds cannot be used to reduce the size of Mr. Piscopo’s attached accessory 
structure. Resident communications are also attached. 25 

J-11  E-Mail Correspondence Received from Victor Lenivov, Re: Traffic Model at I-
75/Crooks/Long Lake Road – HRC Job No. 20040293.02 and Response from 
John Abraham – Deputy City Engineer/Traffic Engineer 25 

STUDY ITEMS: 25 

K-1  No Study Items brought forward. 25 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 25 

CLOSED SESSION: 25 

L-1 Closed Session – No Study Session Requested. 25 

RECESSED 26 

RECONVENED 26 

ADJOURNMENT 26 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2004 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Rev. Paul Lehmann – Glen Oaks 
Alliance Church 

ROLL CALL: 

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: Introduction of Brad Henson, Candidate for Parks and Recreation Board 
Student Representative and Anbereeen Wiqar, Candidate for Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities Student Representative 

 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 6471 Denton 
 
City Management requests a 5-minute presentation regarding this item. 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-08- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
(a) Resolution A for Approval 
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is compelled 
by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. employer). 
 
Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible alternative 
locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2004 
 

- 2 - 

A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or cannot 
reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject commercial 
vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not negatively impact 
adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact pedestrian and vehicular 
movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance: 
 
 
 
 

.
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Steven Hundich,  6471 Denton, 
for waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor 
parking of a two commercial pick-ups and a commercial trailer in a residential district is hereby 
APPROVED for   __  (not to exceed two years). 
 
OR 
 
(b) Resolution B for Denial 
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 

1. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 
compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site 
(e.g. employer). 

 
2. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 

3. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, 
or cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject 
commercial vehicle. 

 
4. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has not found that the petitioner has 
demonstrated the presence of condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2004 
 

- 3 - 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Steven Hundich, 6471 Denton, 
for waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor 
parking of a two commercial pick-ups and a commercial trailer in a residential district is hereby 
DENIED. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-2 COBASYS/Texaco Ovonic  
 
City Management requests a 5-minute presentation regarding this item. 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-08- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
(a) Proposed Resolution to Forgive the Liability of the Payment of Abated Taxes 

Payable Under Terms of the Letter of Agreement Between the City of Troy and 
Texaco Ovonic Battery Systems, L.L.C., Now Known as COBASYS, for Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate #2002-025-01, 1334 Maplelawn - Troy, Michigan 

 
RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby FORGIVES THE LIABILITY of the 
payment of abated, and future estimated abated taxes, payable under the terms of the Letters 
of Agreement governing the Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate issued to Texaco Ovonic 
Battery Systems, L.L.C., said certificate being numbered #2002-025-01, located at 1334 
Maplelawn - Troy, Michigan; and 
 
BE IT ALSO RESOLVED, That a copy of this resolution is FORWARDED to the State Tax 
Commission by certified mail. 
 
OR 
 
(b) Proposed Resolution to Authorize the City Assessor to File a Petition with the 

Michigan Tax Tribunal to Recapture Abated Taxes for the 2003 and 2004 Tax Years 
After Certification of the December 2004 Millage Rates Under Terms of the Letter 
of Agreement Between the City of Troy and Texaco Ovonic Battery Systems, 
L.L.C., Now Known as COBASYS, 1334 Maplelawn - Troy, Michigan 

 
RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby AUTHORIZES the City Assessor 
to file a Petition with the Michigan Tax Tribunal to recapture abated taxes for the 2003 and 2004 
Tax Years, after Certification of the December 2004 Millage Rates, under terms of the Letter of 
Agreement between the City of Troy and Texaco Ovonic Battery Systems, L.L.C., now known 
as COBASYS, 1334 Maplelawn - Troy, Michigan; and 
 
BE IT ALSO RESOLVED, That a copy of this resolution be FORWARDED to the State Tax 
Commission by certified mail. 
 
OR 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2004 
 

- 4 - 

(c) Proposed Resolution to Authorize the City Assessor to File a Petition with the 
Michigan Tax Tribunal to Recapture Actual and Estimated Abated Taxes for the 
Tax Years of 2003 Through 2012 in an Amount not to Exceed $13,685.10 Per Terms 
of the Letter of Agreement Between the City of Troy and Texaco Ovonic Battery 
Systems, L.L.C., Now Known as COBASYS, 1334 Maplelawn - Troy, Michigan  

 
RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby AUTHORIZES the City Assessor 
to file a Petition with the Michigan Tax Tribunal to recapture actual and estimated abated taxes 
for the Tax Years 2003 through 2012, in an amount not to exceed $413,685.10, per terms of the 
Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and Texaco Ovonic Battery Systems, L.L.C., now 
known as COBASYS, 1334 Maplelawn – Troy, Michigan; and 
 
BE IT ALSO RESOLVED, That a copy of this resolution be FORWARDED to the State Tax 
Commission by certified mail. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
AND 
 
d) Resolution to Vacate the Industrial Development District and Rescind the 

Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate at 1334 Maplelawn – Troy, Michigan 
issued to Texaco Ovonic Battery Systems, L.L.C., now known as COBASYS – 
Certificate #2002-025--01 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-08- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy created an Industrial Development District at 
1334 Maplelawn – Troy, Michigan on February 4, 2002 – Resolution #2002-02-049. 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy granted an Industrial Facilities Exemption 
Certificate to Texaco Ovonic Battery Systems, L.L.C., now known as COBASYS at 1334 
Maplelawn – Troy, Michigan on February 4, 2002 – Resolution #2002-02-050, said Certificate 
being #2002-025-01 by the State Tax Commission. 
 
WHEREAS, Texaco Ovonic Battery Systems, L.L.C., now known as COBASYS, is abandoning 
the District and vacating the building at 1334 Maplelawn – Troy, Michigan and moving its 
operations to Orion Township for the 2005 Tax Year. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby VACATES 
the Industrial Development District located at 1334 Maplelawn – Troy, Michigan effective 
December 31, 2004; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby RESCINDS the 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate for Texaco Ovonic Battery Systems, L.L.C., now 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2004 
 

- 5 - 

known as COBASYS, 1334 Maplelawn – Troy, Michigan, said Certificate being #2002-025-01 
effective December 31, 2004; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That a copy of this resolution be FOWARDED to the State Tax 
Commission - Treasury Building, P.O. Box 30471 – Lansing, Michigan 48909-7971 by certified 
mail. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-3 Proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA #202) – Article 28.30.02 – 

Outside Storage of Commercial and Recreational Vehicles in Self Storage 
Facilities 

 
City Management requests a 5-minute presentation regarding this item. 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-08- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That Article XXVIII M-1 Light Industrial District text, Article XL General Provisions 
text and Article IV Definitions text, be ADOPTED as recommended by the Planning 
Commission and City Management; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the ordinance text be AMENDED to read as written in the 
Proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA #202) dated February 16, 2004. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  
 
D-1 Approval of City at Large to Pay for Sidewalk Replacement Where Property 

Owners Meet Low to Moderate Income Guidelines  
 
Pending Resolution 
 
Resolution 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
WHEREAS, Per Chapter 34 of the Troy City Code, homeowners are required to pay for 
sidewalk improvements. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That homeowners meeting the income guidelines 
established annually for the Community Development Block Grant Program shall be eligible for 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2004 
 

- 6 - 

100% coverage of the cost of their sidewalk repairs; funds for this REIMBURSEMENT SHALL 
COME from the General Fund. 
 
Suggested Amendment by Substitution Resolution 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-08- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That the pending resolution be AMENDED by STRIKING it in its entirety and 
SUBSTITUTED with, “RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the proposed 
ordinance amendment to Chapter 34, Sidewalks and Drive Approaches, which will delineate 
eligibility for City payment of repair and replacement costs based on the Community 
Development Block Grant Program income limits established by the U.S. Department of 
Housing and Urban Development.” 
 
Yes:  
No: 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  
 
Public comment is limited to not more than twice nor longer than five (5) minutes on any 
item, unless so permitted by the Chair, in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the 
City Council, Article 15, as amended May 3, 2004. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 

 
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which shall be considered after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2004 
 

- 7 - 

E-2  Minutes:  Regular Meeting of August 9, 2004 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-08-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular Meeting of August 9, 2004 be 
APPROVED as submitted. 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  No City of Troy Proclamations proposed. 
 
E-4 Request from First Baptist Church of Troy for Temporary Suspension of Chapter 

47, House Trailers 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That the request from First Baptist Church, 2601 John R, for TEMPORARY 
SUSPENSION of Chapter 47, House Trailers, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit 
placement and occupancy of an on-site motor home from October 8, 2004 through October 
17,2004, to serve as a residence for a visiting pastor, is hereby APPROVED. 

E-5 Request from Joseph J. Malla – Chairman, Veterans Monument Committee of 
Troy, to Display “Lest They Be Forgotten” Flag from the Veterans Monument Flag 
Pole under the American Flag on the City Hall Plaza 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the display of the new “Lest They 
Be Forgotten” flag from the Veterans Monument flag pole under the American flag. The flag 
was designed by the father of a fallen soldier as a tribute to his son and to all fallen service 
members. 

E-6 Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: State of Michigan MiDEAL Program – Large 
Capacity Riding Rotary Mower with ROPS 4-Post Canopy 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to purchase one (1) large capacity riding rotary mower from 
Spartan Distributors is hereby APPROVED through the State of Michigan MiDEAL Program 
(formerly the Extended Purchasing Program) at an estimated cost of $38,115.00; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the purchase of the ROPS 4-Post Canopy from Spartan 
Distributors is AUTHORIZED at an estimated cost of $1,325.00. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2004 
 

- 8 - 

E-7 Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: State of Michigan MiDEAL Program – Optical 
Scanning Services 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to provide optical scanning services from Graphic Sciences, Inc. is 
hereby APPROVED through the State of Michigan MiDEAL Program (formerly known as the 
Extended Purchasing Program) not to exceed $16,000.00, at unit prices contained in Appendix 
I; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 

E-8 Informal Quotation Process Award of Professional Engineering Services for 
Emergency Back-Up Power at the Community Center 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract for professional services to prepare an electrical engineering 
design and limited architectural design for emergency back-up power at the Troy Community 
Center is hereby APPROVED to EAM Engineers, Inc. of Troy, MI, who submitted the lowest 
informal quotation at an estimated cost of $9,900.00, plus an additional $1,000.00 for 
reimbursable additional services if needed.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the contract is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission 
of properly executed documents, including insurance certificates, and any other specified 
requirements.   

E-9 Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 04-5 – 
Section 30 Water Main Replacement 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That Contract No. 04-5, Section 30 Water Main Replacement, be AWARDED to 
Tony Anthony Inc., 328 South Street – Rochester, Michigan 48307, at an estimated total cost of 
$1,207,355.50; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is contingent upon submission of proper contract 
and bid documents, including: bonds, insurance certificates and all specified requirements. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That AUTHORIZATION IS GRANTED to add work due to 
unforeseen circumstances, which is not to exceed 10% of the original project cost. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2004 
 

- 9 - 

E-10 Request to Waive Parking Restrictions 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy does hereby WAIVE the “NO PARKING” 
restrictions on the west side of Donaldson Street from Square Lake Road to Cotswold Street on 
September 9, 2004, between the hours of 6:15 pm and 9:00 pm. 

E-11 Winter Maintenance Agreement – Road Commission for Oakland County 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Winter Maintenance Agreement between the Road Commission for 
Oakland County and the City of Troy for snow and ice control of certain primary and local roads 
in accordance with the provisions of 1951 PA 51, amended as described and outlined in Exhibit 
A, is hereby APPROVED and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the 
necessary documents; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 

E-12 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from the Michigan 
Accountancy Foundation  (MAF) for the Purpose of Obtaining a Charitable 
Gaming License 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That the request from the Michigan Accountancy Foundation – Troy, Michigan – 
County of Oakland, asking that they be recognized as a nonprofit organization operating in the 
community for the purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming license be APPROVED as 
recommended by City Management. 

E-13 Private Agreement for Cedar Pines Site Condominiums – Project No. 03.926.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Pratt Building Company, L.L.C. is hereby 
APPROVED for the installation of sanitary sewer, storm sewer, detention, water main, soil 
erosion, sidewalks, landscaping and paving on the site and in the adjacent right-of-way, and the 
Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents; a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2004 
 

- 10 - 

E-14 Informal Quotation Process Award of Professional Engineering Services for 
Emergency Back-Up Power at the Community Center 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract for professional services to prepare an electrical engineering 
design and limited architectural design for emergency back-up power at the Troy Community 
Center is hereby APPROVED to EAM Engineers, Inc. of Troy, MI, who submitted the lowest 
informal quotation at an estimated cost of $9,900.00, plus an additional $1,000.00 for 
reimbursable additional services if needed.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the contract is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission 
of properly executed documents, including insurance certificates, and any other specified 
requirements.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment is limited to not more than twice nor longer than five (5) minutes on any 
item, unless so permitted by the Chair, in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the 
City Council, Article 15, as amended May 3, 2004. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair during the Public Comment section under item 12.“F” of the agenda. Other 
than asking questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall 
not interrupt or debate with members of the public during their comments. For those 
addressing City Council, petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation  
time that may be extended with the majority consent of Council and all other interested 
people, their time may be limited to not more than twice nor longer than five (5) minutes 
on any item, unless so permitted by the Chair, in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 15, as amended May 3, 2004. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. 
 
F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral Appointments: 1. Downtown 

Development Authority, 2. Economic Development Corporation; (b) City Council 
Appointments: 1. Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities, 2. Parks and 
Recreation Board 

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council.  Council members submit recommendations 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2004 
 

- 11 - 

for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing).  Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold red lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
(a) Mayoral Appointments 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR with 
COUNCIL APPROVAL to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
Downtown Development Authority 
Mayor, Council Approval (13) – 4 years 
 
Marc W Rosenow resigned due to employment Unexpired term expires 09-30-2007 
 
 Term expires 07-01-2005 (Student) 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Culpepper, Michael W 09/30/04 
Frankel, Stuart 09/30/07 
Hodges, Michele 09/30/05 
Kennis, William 09/30/06 
Kiriluk, Alan M 09/30/04 
York, Thomas 09/30/04 
MacLeish, Daniel 09/30/05 
Price, Carol 09/30/07 
Reschke, Ernest C 09/30/06 
Rosenow, Marc W (Resigned) 09/30/07 
Schroeder, Douglas J 09/30/06 
Weiss, Harvey 09/30/05 
Schilling, Louise E 09/30/04 
Wong, Fred (Student) 07/01/04 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Baughman, Deborah L 03/29/01-06/18/01-

05/2003 
04/09/01-07/09/01 

Bloom, Jerry E 03/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
Brodbine, Anju C 08/13/02-08/2004 08/19/02 
Calice, Mark A 06/01/1997  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2004 
 

- 12 - 

Elenbaum, Anita 04/17/02-04/2004 04/22/02 
Hay, David R 07/19/04-07/2006 08/23/04 
Howrylak, Frank J 04/05/01-06/11/03-

05/2005 
04/09/01-06/16/03 

Hyun, Yul Woong (Jeff) 09/26/03-09/2005 10/06/03 
Huber, Laurie G 06/18/01-05/2003 07/09/01 
Keisling, Laurence G 04/29/04-04/2006 05/03/04 
O’Brien, Michael 07/28/03-07/2005 08/04/03 
Petrulis, Al 02/11/03-02/2005 02/17/03 
Pritzloff, Mark 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Schultz, Robert M 06/19/01-06/2003 01/22/01-07/09/01 
Shah, Jayshree 08/28/01-01/12/04-

04/23/04-04/2006 
09/17/01-02/02/04-05/03/04 

Shier, Frank 02/18/03-02/2005 03/03/03 
Shiner, Mary E 11/28/01-11/2003 12/09/01 
Silver, Neil S 08/11/00-06/20/01-

06/09/03-05/2005 
08/21/00-07/09/01 

Smits, Beatrice G 12/02/03-12/2005 12/15/03 
Victor, Robert 06/03/03-05/2005 06/16/03 
Wilberding, Bruce J 08/05/99-06/17/03-

03/10/04-03/2006 
04/12/04 

Wright, Wayne C 01/07/99-06/18/03-
06/2005 

 

Yousif, Gary 11/24/03-11/2005 01/05/04 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on file   

 
Economic Development Corporation 
Mayor, Council Approval (9) – 6 years 
 
 Term expires 04-30-2009 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Bluhm, Kenneth 04/30/06 
Gigliotti, Robert S 04/30/08 
Licari, Leger (Nino) 04/30/10 
Parker, Michael 04/30/07 
Hoef, Paul V. 04/30/09 
Rocchio, James A.  04/30/03 
Salgat, Charles 04/30/10 
Sharp, John 04/30/09 
Smith, Douglas 04/30/05 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2004 
 

- 13 - 

INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Almassian, Carolyn 04/22/02-04/2004 05/06/02 
Baptista, Michael 05/02/03-05/2005 06/02/03 
Baughman, Deborah L 06/18/01-05/2003 07/09/01 
Chang, Jouky 10/02/01-10/2003 10/15/01 
Courtney, Kenneth 03/12/04-03/2006 03/15/04 
Hoef, Paul V 09/12/01-08/14/02-08/2004 09/17/01 
Hyun, Yul Woong (Jeff) 09/26/03-09/2005 10/06/03 
Lang, Victoria 06/16/03-06/2005 07/07/03 
Pritzloff, Mark 04/17/03-04/2003 04/28/03 
Shah, Jayshree 08/28/01-04/16/04-04/2006 09/17/01-05/03/04 
Silver, Neil S 08/11/00-06/20/01-05/2003 08/21/00-07/09/01 
Smits, Beatrice 12/02/03-12/2005 12/15/03 
Victor, Robert 06/03/03-05/2005 06/16/03 
Wilberding, Bruce 06/17/03-06/2005 07/07/03 
Wright, Wayne 06/18/03-06/2005 07/07/03 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
(b) City Council Appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
Appointed by Council (9 Regular, 3 Alternates) – 3 years 
 Term expires 07-01-2005 (Student) 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
 Susan Robosan-Burt  11/01/06 
 Angela Done 11/01/05 
 Nancy Johnson 11/01/06 
 Leonard G. Bertin 11/01/05 
 Pauline Manetta 11/01/06 
 Dick Kuschinsky 11/01/04 
 Theodora House 11/01/06 
 Grace Yau (Student) 11/01/04 
 Dorothy Ann Pietron 11/01/04 
Nada Raheb (Student) 07/01/03 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2004 
 

- 14 - 

 Mark Pritzloff 11/01/06 
 Cynthia Buchanan 11/01/04 
 Kul B. Gauri 11/01/05 
Adam Fuhrman 11/01/06 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Anbereen Wiqar 09/10/04 08/23/04 
 
Parks and Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council (10) 3 years 
 
 Term expires 07-01-2005 (Student) 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Bordas, Douglas M 09/30/05 
Dixon, Merrill W (Sr Rep) 09/30/06 
Edmunds, Ida (School Rep) 07/31/05 
Fejes, Kathleen M 09/30/04 
Redpath, Stuart 09/30/06 
Kaltsounis, Orestes (Rusty) 09/30/06 
Kerns, Amy (Student) 07/01/04 
Krent, Tom 09/30/04 
Kovacs, Meaghan 09/30/05 
Stewart, Jeffrey (Troy Daze Rep) 09/30/06 
Zikakis, Janice C 09/30/05 
Anderson, Carol (Ex-officio) 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Henson, Brad 12/01/03 08/23/04 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2004 
 

- 15 - 

F-2 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement, Helen A. Kaleto also known as 
Helen A. Rychlewski – 2839 Thames – Sidwell #88-20-25-226-005 – Big Beaver, 
Rochester to Dequindre Road Project #01-105.5 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement to Purchase with conditions between Helen A. Kaleto also 
known as Helen A. Rychlewski and the City of Troy, having Sidwell #88-20-25-226-005, for the 
acquisition of property at 2839 Thames is hereby APPROVED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That authorization is hereby GRANTED to purchase the 
property in the Agreement referenced above in the amount of $210,000.00 plus closing costs. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-3 Community Development Block Grant Status Change from Metropolitan City to 

Urban County 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, In 1975, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 
designated the County of Oakland (County) as an “Urban County” for the purpose of 
administering federal grants including the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
program on behalf of local communities with populations less than 50,000. 
 
WHEREAS, In 1975, the City of Troy (City) entered into a cooperative agreement with the 
County to join the Urban County program. 
 
WHEREAS, In 1980, the City population exceeded 50,000 and HUD recognized Troy as a 
Metropolitan City. 
 
WHEREAS, In 1982, HUD approached the City and presented the options that the City could 
consider to receive CDBG funding as a Metropolitan City. 
 
WHEREAS, The City selected to keep its Metropolitan City status and sign a joint agreement 
with the County to continue under the Urban County administration. 
 
WHEREAS, The City’s Metropolitan City designation under joint agreement with the County 
adversely affects the ability to access additional federal HOME Investment Partnerships 
(HOME) program resources to serve the housing needs of the City’s low and moderate income 
residents. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2004 
 

- 16 - 

WHEREAS, The lack of additional HOME program resources results in the City’s loss of seven 
Home Improvement Program loan opportunities annually.  
 
WHEREAS, The loss of Home Improvement Program activity impedes revitalization efforts in 
the City’s low and moderate income neighborhoods.  
 
WHEREAS, The County has requested that the City relinquish its Metropolitan City designation 
and be incorporated in the Urban County program. 
 
WHEREAS, The inclusion of the City as part of the urban county will allow the county to qualify 
as a participating jurisdiction to receive additional HOME funds and benefit the City’s low and 
moderate income residents beginning in Program Year 2005. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy REQUESTS TO RELINQUISH 
its Metropolitan City status, terminate the joint agreement with Oakland County per 24 CFR 
570.308 and be incorporated into the Urban County program thereby allowing HUD to allocate 
HOME funds to Oakland County in the City’s behalf; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City REQUESTS HUD to waive the three-year period 
requirement per 24 CFR 570.5 to allocate HOME funds to Oakland County for Home 
Improvements in the City of Troy beginning in Program Year 2005. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-4 Street Vacation Application (SV-185) – South 149.26 feet of Beach Road, South of 

Hampton Lane within Wendover Woods Subdivision No. 2 – Section 19 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, A request has been received for the vacation of a portion of the 43-foot-wide 
platted Beach Road Street right-of-way, benefiting sidwell # 20-19-379-003, 2411 Hampton; 
further described as: 
 

Part of Beach Road as recorded in “Wendover Woods Subdivision No. 2”, 
Liber 104, Page 38-39, of Oakland County, Michigan records.  That part of 
Beach Road being 43.00 feet wide extending from the north lot line of Lot 53 
extended east to the south lot line of Lot 53 extended east of said “Wendover 
Woods Subdivision No. 2“ being more particularly described as beginning at 
the southeast corner of said Lot 53; thence North 00 degrees 26 minutes 20 
seconds East, along the east line of said lot, 149.26 feet to the northeast 
corner of Lot 53 and the south line of Hampton Lane; thence South 89 
degrees 33 minutes 40 seconds East, along said south line extended 
easterly, 43.00 feet to the east line of said “Wendover Woods Subdivision No. 
2”; thence South 00 degrees 26 minutes 20 seconds West, along said east 
line, 149.66 feet to the south line of said plat; thence North 89 degrees 01 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2004 
 

- 17 - 

minutes 51 seconds West, along said south line, 43.00 feet to the southeast 
corner of said Lot 53 and the point of beginning.  Said road vacation is 
approximately 149 feet in length.   

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request for vacation of that portion of the 43-
foot-wide platted Beach Road Street right-of-way, extending south 149 feet from Hampton 
Lane, and abutting lot 53 of Wendover Woods Subdivision No. 2, be GRANTED, subject to the 
retention of an easement for public utilities over the eastern 15 feet of the right-of-way, further 
described as:  
 

Part of Vacated Beach Road as recorded in “Wendover Woods Subdivision 
No. 2”, Liber 104, Page 38-39, of Oakland County, Michigan records.  
Beginning at the southeast corner of Lot 53 of said “Wendover Woods 
Subdivision No. 2”; thence North 00 degrees 26 minutes 20 seconds East, 
along the east line of said lot, 149.26 feet to the northeast corner of Lot 53 
and the south line of Hampton Lane; thence South 89 degrees 33 minutes 40 
seconds East, along said south line extended easterly, 15.00 feet; thence 
South 00 degrees 26 minutes 20 seconds West, parallel to the east line of Lot 
53, 149.40 feet to the south line of said plat; thence North 89 degrees 01 
minutes 51 seconds West, along said south line, 15.00 feet to the southeast 
corner of said Lot 53 and the point of beginning.  Containing 2,240 Square 
Feet or 0.051 Acres more or less. 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, The City Clerk shall FORWARD AND RECORD said vacation 
resolution in accordance with Sections 256 and 257 of Act 288 of Michigan Public Acts of 1967, 
as amended.  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-5 Request for Approval of Agreement to Purchase Right-of-Way to the 75-foot Line 

for Sidewalk – 6130 Rochester Road – Section 2 – Sidewalk Gap – Owner: John 
Stewart 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement to Purchase with conditions between John Stewart and the 
City of Troy to purchase right-of-way in fee to the 75 foot line at 6130 Rochester Road, Sidwell 
#88-20-02-301-004 is hereby APPROVED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That AUTHORIZATION IS HEREBY GRANTED to purchase 
the property in the Agreement referenced above in the amount of $39,619.59, plus closing 
costs. 
 
Yes: 
No: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2004 
 

- 18 - 

F-6 Emerald Food Services, Inc.: Proposed Contract and Amendment Executions and 
Request for Quota Class C Liquor License 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, On April 12, 2004, a contract was approved for one year with two additional one-
year options for food service at Sanctuary Lake Golf Course to the bidder with the highest score 
and overall return as the result of a best value process, Emerald Food Service, Inc. (Resolution 
#2004-04-186). 
 
WHEREAS, The award included a combined revenue sharing plan with the Community Center 
Café Operation. 
 
WHEREAS, The expiration dates of both contracts should coincide and staff recommends 
having both contracts expire one year after commencement of the food service operation at the 
golf course with either two additional one-year options to renew or additional two-year options 
to be determined at the end of the first year of operation. 
 
WHEREAS, An integral requirement of the contract for Sanctuary Lake Golf Course includes 
application of Emerald Food Service, Inc. for a new Quota Class C Liquor License which has 
occurred. 
 
WHEREAS, The Liquor Advisory Committee recommends the application for a new Quota 
Class C Liquor License pursuant to the meeting held on August 9, 2004 and a background 
investigation of the applicant by the Troy Police Department revealed no criminal activity or 
disqualifying factors. 
 
(a1) Execution of Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Food and Beverage Service Contract 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the food and beverage service contract for 
Sanctuary Lake Golf Course with Emerald Food Service, Inc. is hereby APPROVED and the 
Mayor and City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents; a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
(a2) Execution of the Third Amendment of the Agreement for the Community Center 

Café/Pro Shop 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the third amendment of the Agreement for the Community Center 
Café/Pro Shop with Emerald Food Service, Inc. is hereby APPROVED and the Mayor and City 
Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents; a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2004 
 

- 19 - 

(b) New License 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Emerald Food Service, Inc. for a new Quota Class C 
Licensed Business with Sunday Sales, Official Permit (food) and Outdoor Service Area, located 
at 1450 E. South Blvd. – Troy, MI 48085 – Oakland County, “above all others”; be considered 
for approval. It is the consensus of this legislative body that the application be 
RECOMMENDED “above all others” for issuance; and 
 
(c) Agreement 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy DEEMS IT 
NECESSARY to enter agreements with applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of 
providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event licensees fail to adhere to City of Troy 
Codes and Ordinances; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy 
hereby APPROVES an agreement with Emerald Food Service, Inc., which shall become 
EFFECTIVE upon approval of the request for a new Quota Class C Licensed Business with 
Sunday Sales, Official Permit (food), and Outdoor Service Area, “above all others”, located at 
1450 E. South Blvd, - Troy, MI; and the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to EXECUTE THE 
DOCUMENT; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-7 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement for Maple Road/Coolidge to Crooks 

Water Main and Sidewalk Project #01.501.5 – McGregor Manufacturing Corporation 
– 2785 West Maple – Sidwell #88-20-32-126-001 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement to Purchase between the City of Troy and McGregor 
Manufacturing Corporation, having Sidwell #88-20-32-126-001 for acquisition of right-of-way at 
2785 West Maple is hereby APPROVED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That AUTHORIZATION IS HEREBY GRANTED to purchase 
the property in the Agreement referenced above in the amount of $132,900.00 plus closing 
costs. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2004 
 

- 20 - 

F-8 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement for Thien Van Le & Yen Lu, - 2919 
Thames – Sidwell #88-20-25-229-002 – Project No. 01.105.5 – Big Beaver Road 
Improvements – Rochester to Dequindre 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement to Purchase between Thien Van Le and Yen Lu and the City 
of Troy, having Sidwell #88-20-25-229-002, for the acquisition of property at 2919 Thames is 
hereby APPROVED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That AUTHORIZATION IS HEREBY GRANTED to purchase 
the property in the Agreement referenced above in the amount of $173,000.00, plus closing 
costs. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-9 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement for Paul K. Davis – 2955 Sparta – 

Sidwell #88-20-25-202-001 – Project No. 01.105.5 – Big Beaver Road Improvements 
– Rochester to Dequindre 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement to Purchase between Paul K. Davis and the City of Troy, 
having Sidwell #88-20-25-202-001, for the acquisition of property at 2919 Thames is hereby 
APPROVED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That AUTHORIZATION IS HEREBY GRANTED to purchase 
the property in the Agreement referenced above in the amount of $170,000.00, plus closing 
costs. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-10 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Proposed Timbercrest Estates Site 

Condominium – 11 Units/Lots Proposed, South Side of Wattles – West of Fernleigh 
– Section 24 – R-1C 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2004 
 

- 21 - 

(a) Proposed Resolution A as Recommended by City Management  
 
RESOLVED, That the Preliminary Plan as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning 
Ordinance (Unplatted One-Family Residential Development) for the development of a One-
Family Residential Site Condominium known as Timbercrest Estates Site Condominium, as 
submitted and as recommended for approval by City Management, located on the south side of 
Wattles, west of Fernleigh, including 11 home sites, within the R-1C zoning district, being 4 
acres in size, is hereby APPROVED. 
 
OR 
 
(b) Proposed Resolution B as Recommended by the Planning Commission 
 
RESOLVED, That the Preliminary Plan as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning 
Ordinance (Unplatted One-Family Residential Development) for the development of a One-
Family Residential Site Condominium known as Timbercrest Estates Site Condominium, as 
submitted and as recommended for approval by Planning Commission, located on the south 
side of Wattles, west of Fernleigh, including 11 home sites, within the R-1C zoning district, 
being 4 acres in size, is hereby APPROVED, with the following conditions, as STIPULATED by 
the Planning Commission in their resolution of July 13, 2004: 
 

1. That the drainage of this property to the properties to the east that are developed, 
is engineered such that there are no water flows that create standing water in the 
properties to the east. 

 
2. The tree survey lists a number of trees that are not the kind of trees the City of 

Troy wants, and those trees that do meet the requirement of being a good tree, on 
the property lines specifically, that every effort be made to do the underground 
utility work without cutting roots and maybe the recommendation would be not to 
do any rear yard underground utility work, but make it all down Timbercrest. 

 
3. If there are trees to be destroyed, the item needs to come back to see how best 

the City and the petitioner can get together and save as many trees as possible. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-11 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Proposed Presidential Place Site 

Condominium – 5 Units/Lots Proposed, West Side of John R Road – North of 
Square Lake Road – Section 2 – R-1D 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2004 
 

- 22 - 

(a) Proposed Resolution A as Recommended by City Management  
 
RESOLVED, That the Preliminary Plan as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning 
Ordinance (Unplatted One-Family Residential Development) for the development of a One-
Family Residential Site Condominium known as Presidential Place Site Condominium, as 
submitted, and as recommended for approval by City Management, located on the west side of 
John R Road, north of Square Lake Road, including 5 home sites, within the R-1D zoning 
district, being 2.236 acres in size, is hereby APPROVED. 
 
OR 
 
(b) Proposed Resolution B as Recommended by the Planning Commission 
 
RESOLVED, That the Preliminary Plan as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning 
Ordinance (Unplatted One-Family Residential Development) for the development of a One-
Family Residential Site Condominium known as Presidential Place Site Condominium, as 
submitted, and as recommended for approval by the Planning Commission, located on the west 
side of John R Road, north of Square Lake Road, including 5 home sites, within the R-1D 
zoning district, being 2.236 acres in size, is hereby APPROVED with the FOLLOWING 
CONDITIONS, as stipulated by the Planning Commission in their resolution of July 13, 2004: 
 

1. The petitioner obtain an MDEQ Wetlands Permit or Jurisdictional Wetland 
Determination Document stating authoritative status, prior to Final Approval. 

2. That all existing illegal trees on the property will be removed. 
3. That the design recommendations provide that the petitioner will duly note all 

drainage concern for neighboring properties and plan for adequate drainage. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-12 Request to Schedule a Study Session to Discuss Neighborhood Compatibility 

Issues 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That a Study Session is SCHEDULED for Tuesday, September 14, 2004 at 7:30 
PM in the Council Board Room of  Troy City Hall – 500 W. Big Beaver – Troy, Michigan 48084 
to discuss Neighborhood Compatibility Issues. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2004 
 

- 23 - 

F-13 Confirmation of Appointment; Mr. Brian Murphy as Assistant City 
Manager/Services 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the appointment by the City Manager of Mr. Brian Murphy as Assistant City 
Manager/Services of the City of Troy is hereby CONFIRMED. 
 
Yes: 
No: 

F-14 Sole Source – Purchase of Opticom Emitters for Emergency Vehicles 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, Carrier and Gable, Inc. is the sole provider of 3M Opticom equipment in Michigan. 
 
WHEREAS, It is necessary to upgrade the system to eliminate potential unauthorized 
preemption of traffic signals. 
 
WHEREAS, To effect the change to a coded system, it is necessary to replace the assorted 
emitters on Fire and MFR vehicles. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy is AUTHORIZED TO 
PURCHASE forty-five (45) Opticom emitters from Carrier and Gable, Inc. at an estimated total 
cost of $31,950.00 which includes trade-ins. 
 
Yes: 
No: 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: No Public Hearing Announcements. 
 
G-2 Green Memorandums:  
(a) Memorandum, Re: Municipal Civil Infractions Ordinance 
(b) Memorandum, Re: Group Day Care Homes 
 
COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2004 
 

- 24 - 

H-1  No Council Referrals advanced to the City Manager. 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments submitted. 
 
REPORTS:  
  
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
(a) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Final – February 26, 2004 
(b) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – June 2, 2004 
(c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – June 2, 2004 
(d) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – June 14, 2004 
(e) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Final – June 22, 2004 
(f) Historic Study Committee/Draft – June 29, 2004 
(g) Planning Commission-Special/Final – July 8, 2004 
(h) Planning Commission/Final – July 13, 2004 
(i) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – July 14, 2004 
(j) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – July 20, 2004 
(k) Historic Study Committee/Draft – July 26, 2004 
(l) Planning Commission-6:00 PM-Special/Final – July 27, 2004 
(m) Planning Commission-7:30 PM-Special/Final – July 27, 2004 
(n) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – July 27, 2004 
(o) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – August 4, 2004 
(p) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – August 9, 2004 
(q) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Draft – August 10, 2004 
(r) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – August 11, 2004 
 
J-2 Department Reports:  
(a) Permits Issued During the Month of July 2004 
(b) Troy Medi-Go Plus – 2003 Annual Report/Newsletter 
(c) Letter from Martha W. Northrup to Troy City Council Re: Wood Fires in the City of Troy 
(d) Memorandum, Re: Political Sign Ordinance – Chapter 85-A of the Troy City Code 
 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 
(a) Letter from Gus Chutorash, Director of Camping for the Detroit Area Council, Boy Scouts 

of America to John Szerlag Recognizing Mark Stimac for His Contribution to the Boy 
Scouts 

(b) Letter from Michael Drapeau to Chief Craft Thanking Sgt. Robert Redmond and the  
Traffic Safety Division, and John Abraham for Their Response to His Speeding Concerns 
in His Neighborhood 

(c) Letter from Barnett Jones, Chief of Police for the City of Sterling Heights to Chief Craft in 
Appreciation of the Tireless Assistance the Troy Police Department Provided in the 
Aftermath of the Tragic Death of Officer Mark Sawyers 

 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None proposed. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2004 
 

- 25 - 

J-5  Calendar 
 
J-6  Memorandum, Re: Status of Section 23 (Raintree Village No. 1) Pavement 

Replacement Project – Contract 04-4 
 
J-7  Memorandum, Re: Update-Somerset Collection Ryder Cup Charity Event 
 
J-8  Memorandum, Re: 2005 City Calendar 
 
J-9  Attached is a communication from Mrs. Mary Ann Bernardi requesting that City 

Council place the issue of the proposed I-75/Crooks Road/Long Lake Interchange 
Improvement Project as an advisory ballot issue for the November 2004 election. 
Also attached are memoranda from City Management, and the City Attorney’s 
Office related to this matter. 

 
J-10  Memorandum, City Manager John Szerlag, Re: Meeting with Mr. Piscopo of 3129 

Alpine regarding the size and elevation of attached garage. Also included is a 
memo from Assistant City Attorney Susan M. Lancaster indicating that public 
funds cannot be used to reduce the size of Mr. Piscopo’s attached accessory 
structure. Resident communications are also attached. 

 
J-11  E-Mail Correspondence Received from Victor Lenivov, Re: Traffic Model at I-

75/Crooks/Long Lake Road – HRC Job No. 20040293.02 and Response from John 
Abraham – Deputy City Engineer/Traffic Engineer 

 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1  No Study Items brought forward. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Public comment is limited to not more than twice nor longer than five (5) minutes on any 
item, unless so permitted by the Chair, in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the 
City Council, Article 15, as amended May 3, 2004. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session – No Study Session Requested. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA August 23, 2004 
 

- 26 - 

RECESSED 
 
RECONVENED 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
John Szerlag, City Manager 



 
 
DATE:   August 13, 2004 
 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Steven J. Vandette, Acting Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Public Hearing 
   Commercial Vehicle Appeal 
   6471 Denton 
 
 
 
 
On May 26, 2004, information was sent to Steven Hundich that identified restrictions 
related to commercial vehicles and equipment located on his residential property.  As 
part of that information, he was advised that the two commercial pick-ups and two 
commercial trailers parked on the property did not comply with the exceptions found in 
Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00.  He was given the option to remove the vehicles or 
appeal to City Council for relief of the Ordinance. 
 
In response to our letters, Mr. Hundich has filed an appeal.  The appeal requests that a 
public hearing date be held in accordance with the ordinance.  A public hearing has 
been scheduled for your meeting of August 23, 2004. 
 
The application for appeal indicates that one of the trailers will be parked in the garage.  
It further indicates that one of the trucks will have the name of the company removed 
from the vehicle.  Even though the name is removed from the vehicle, if it is to be used 
in the operation of the business it still would meet the definition of a commercial vehicle 
and its outdoor storage would require your approval. 
 
The main structure at this location has a ground floor area of 1,966 square feet.  As 
such, Section 40.57.04 would permit a the construction of a detached accessory 
building of up to 983 square feet.  In addition, additional attached garage space could 
be constructed up to the 30% lot coverage and setback limitations of Section 30.10.02. 
 
Should you have any questions or require additional information, kindly advise. 
 
   
 
MS/pr 
 
Attachments 

HolmesBA
Text Box
C-01



 



 



 









 

 



 

 



 















July 22, 2004 
 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From: John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager – Finance/Administration 
 Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
Re: Agenda Item – Public Hearing for COBASYS/Texaco Ovonic 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends that you forward three resolutions to City Council, so they may 
decide which way they prefer to release Texaco Ovonic Battery Systems, L.L.C., 
(now known as COBASYS) from the Letter of Agreement concerning their 
Industrial Facilities Tax Abatement at 1334 Maplelawn. 
 
Detail: 
 
COBASYS is currently located in three facilities in Troy, 1104 W. Maple, 1250 
Maplelawn and 1334 Maplelawn.  They have decided to move and consolidate 
their operations in Orion Township. 
 
The facility at 1334 Maplelawn was designated an Industrial Development District 
(IDD) and granted an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) on 
February 4, 2002 (Resolutions #2002-02-049 and #2002-02-050).  The 
exemption began in 2003, and is set to expire no later than December 31, 2012 
(barring any extension granted by Council). 
 
As part of the granting of an IFEC, and in conjunction with direction from the 
State Tax Commission, all tax abatements must now include a letter of 
agreement between the applicant and the local unit granting the exemption. 
 
The City of Troy and COBASYS (formerly Texaco Ovonic Battery Systems, 
L.L.C.) have such an agreement in place. 
 
In its simplest terms, paragraph 5 of the agreement states that the City of Troy 
may recapture any or all of any abated taxes that have been, or could have been 
exempted for the life of the exemption. 
 
Bearing in mind that any exempted taxes that are recaptured must be returned to 
all of the taxing authorities, based on their share of the abatement, COBASYS 
had $60,632.76 of abated taxes in 2003 (of which $13,892.82 was the City of 
Troy share). 
 

HolmesBA
Text Box
C-02



 
As the December millage rates are not yet certified, it is necessary to estimate 
the 2004 exemption.  Based on the certified July, 2004 millage rates, and using 
the December 2003 millage rates, it is estimated that COBASYS will receive an 
exemption of $60,358.04 (of which $13,512.08 is the actual City of Troy abated 
amount). 
 
Moving forward through the expiration of the abatement requires estimating the 
Assessed and Taxable Value for each year, based on the most recent Personal 
Property Statement filing, and using the only known millage rates we have (July 
2004, and December 2003). 
 
From 2005 through 2012, it is estimated that COBASYS would have received an 
exemption of $292,694.30 (for a Grand Total of $413,685.10). 
 
The City of Troy’s portion of these abated taxes for 2005 through 2012 would be 
estimated at $65,524.14 (for a Grand Total of $92,929.04). 
 
City Council has the option of collecting any portion, or all of the estimated 
abated taxes from COBASYS to satisfy the terms of the Letter of Agreement.  
Additionally, COBASYS will need some closure to this matter to assure a more 
favorable review of their current application for tax abatement in Orion Township, 
along with incentives offered by the Michigan Economic Growth Authority. 
 
Resolutions are attached which would give City Council the option of forgiving all 
the abated and future abated taxes, allow Council to recapture the 2003 and 
2004 abated taxes, or, allow Council to recapture the abated taxes, and the 
estimated future abated taxes. 
 
Additionally, the resolution to recapture the 2003 and 2004 abated taxes is 
crafted to allow a final billing for recapture of the 2004 taxes to take place after 
the December 2004 millage rates are certified by the State of Michigan (generally 
by late October). 
 
Finally, a resolution is presented that will both vacate the existing Industrial 
Development District (IDD) and rescind the existing Industrial Facilities 
Exemption Certificate (IFEC) currently in place at 1334 Maplelawn, which will 
then be forwarded to the State Tax Commission.  This will require a separate City 
Council action. 







CITY OF TROY 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION 

CERTIFICATE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
 

 
     This agreement between Texaco Ovonic Battery Systems, LLC                          
and the City of Troy is for the purpose of fulfilling the requirements of Public Act 
198, as amended in Public Act 334, Section 22. 
 
     In consideration of approval of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate 
(IFEC),Texaco Ovonic Battery Systems, LLC understands that through its 
investment of $ 9,500,000, and the City of Troy, by its investment of the 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate, are mutually investing in and benefiting 
from this economic development project, and furthermore, agree to the following: 

   
 
1.) The length of time for which the abatement is approved is 8 years 

after either completion of construction of the facilities, or December 
31, 2012, whichever is sooner. 

 
2.) At the end of one (1) year or no later than December 31, 2002,  

Texaco Ovonic Battery Systems, LLC will report to the Assessing 
Department the actual cost of this project and indicate any differences 
and the reason for any differences in the cost or scope of the project 
as compared to the IFEC application submitted by the Company. 

 
3.)  Texaco Ovonic Battery Systems, LLC will retain all of the existing 

jobs at the site of the Industrial Development District (IDD). 
 

4.)  Texaco Ovonic Battery Systems, LLC agrees to remain within the 
City of Troy for the period of the Industrial Facilities Tax (IFT) 
abatement in order to retain the benefits of the IFT, unless permission 
for relocation is granted by the City Council of the City of Troy. 

 
5.) Texaco Ovonic Battery Systems, LLC further understands that if it   

chooses to leave the City of Troy without permission for relocation 
prior to the end of the term of the IFT, the City Council of the City of 
Troy has the right to recapture from the Company up to and including 
the total amount of taxes abated by the IFT. 

 
6.)  Texaco Ovonic Battery Systems, LLC further understands that the 

City of Troy may reduce the term of the IFEC, revoke the IFEC and/or 
recover from the Company, the amount of taxes which were abated if 
the project has not been completed, expenditures made, or 
employment reached or retained, as represented by the Company, in 
Section 12’C of its application, by sending a copy of this Agreement 
along with a copy of the City Council Resolution authorizing such 
action to the State Tax Commission. 

 
 



7.)   Texaco Ovonic Battery Systems, LLC agrees that it will operate 
the Project in accordance with all applicable Federal, State and Local 
laws or regulations, including but not limited to zoning, outside 
storage, industrial waste disposal, air and water quality, noise control, 
and other environmental regulations. 

 
8.) By execution of the Agreement, it is understood that the Company’s 

investment in the Project, and the City of Troy’s investment in the 
granting of the IFEC is to encourage economic growth within the City 
of Troy. 
 
The City of Troy acknowledges that in some instances economic 
conditions may prevent the Company from complying fully with this 
Agreement, and the terms of the Application.  The City of Troy will 
give the Company an opportunity to explain the reasons for any 
variations from the representations contained in the Application and 
will evaluate the Company’s situation prior to taking any action 
authorized by Paragraph 4 and 5 of this Letter of Agreement.  

 
 
9.) This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the parties 

and there are no other remedies for breach of this Agreement other 
than as specified in this Agreement or as provided for in Public Act 
198. 

 
     This agreement may only be altered upon mutual consent of both parties. 
 
 



 
 

CITY OF TROY 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION 

CERTIFICATE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
(Signature page) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ __________________ 
   (date) 
 
Name: 
 
Title: 
 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ ___________________ 
 Matt Pryor, Mayor (date) 
 City of Troy 
 500 W Big Beaver 
 Troy, MI 48084-5285 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ ___________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew (date) 
 City Clerk 



  Total Total Total Total
Year Assessed Taxable City City Abated Abated

Value Value Mills Taxes Mills Taxes

2003 2,940,280 2,940,280 9.45000 13,892.82 20.62142 60,632.76
2004 2,859,700 2,859,700 9.45000 13,512.08 21.10642 60,358.04
2005 2,465,880 2,465,880 9.45000 11,651.28 21.10642 52,045.91
2006 2,173,457 2,173,457 9.45000 10,269.58 21.10642 45,873.91
2007 1,935,485 1,935,485 9.45000 9,145.17 21.10642 40,851.17
2008 1,736,044 1,736,044 9.45000 8,202.81 21.10642 36,641.68
2009 1,569,787 1,569,787 9.45000 7,417.24 21.10642 33,132.59
2010 1,446,618 1,446,618 9.45000 6,835.27 21.10642 30,532.93
2011 1,319,264 1,319,264 9.45000 6,233.52 21.10642 27,844.95
2012 1,221,010 1,221,010 9.45000 5,769.27 21.10642 25,771.16

Total 19,667,525 19,667,525 92,929.04 413,685.10

*Assessed and Taxable Values Estimated After 2004

** Millage Rates Estimated After July of 2004

City of Troy - Assessing Department
COBASYS - Summary of Estimated Abated Taxes

1 of 1



City of Troy - Assessing Department
Calculation of Cobasys' Actual and Estimated Abated Taxes

2003 TransP County Intermed CommColl City State Ed Operating Sch Debt Admin Total

Mills 0.29870 2.32485 1.69955 0.79915 4.72500 0.00000 9.00000 1.57000 0.20417 20.62142

T/V 2,940,280 2,940,280 2,940,280 2,940,280 2,940,280 2,940,280 2,940,280 2,940,280 2,940,280 2,940,280

Taxes 878.26 6,835.71 4,997.15 2,349.72 13,892.82 0.00 26,462.52 4,616.24 600.32 60,632.76

2004 TransP County Intermed CommColl City State Ed Operating Sch Debt Admin Total

Mills 0.29870 2.32485 1.68945 0.79445 4.72500 0.00000 9.00000 2.06500 0.20897 21.10642

T/V 2,859,700 2,859,700 2,859,700 2,859,700 2,859,700 2,859,700 2,859,700 2,859,700 2,859,700 2,859,700

Taxes 854.19 6,648.37 4,831.32 2,271.89 13,512.08 0.00 25,737.30 5,905.28 597.60 60,358.04

2005 TransP County Intermed CommColl City State Ed Operating Sch Debt Admin Total

Mills 0.29870 2.32485 1.68945 0.79445 4.72500 0.00000 9.00000 2.06500 0.20897 21.10642

T/V 2,465,880 2,465,880 2,465,880 2,465,880 2,465,880 2,465,880 2,465,880 2,465,880 2,465,880 2,465,880

Taxes 736.56 5,732.80 4,165.98 1,959.02 11,651.28 0.00 22,192.92 5,092.04 515.31 52,045.91

2006 TransP County Intermed CommColl City State Ed Operating Sch Debt Admin Total

Mills 0.29870 2.32485 1.68945 0.79445 4.72500 0.00000 9.00000 2.06500 0.20897 21.10642

T/V 2,173,457 2,173,457 2,173,457 2,173,457 2,173,457 2,173,457 2,173,457 2,173,457 2,173,457 2,173,457

Taxes 649.21 5,052.96 3,671.95 1,726.70 10,269.58 0.00 19,561.11 4,488.19 454.20 45,873.91

2007 TransP County Intermed CommColl City State Ed Operating Sch Debt Admin Total

Mills 0.29870 2.32485 1.68945 0.79445 4.72500 0.00000 9.00000 2.06500 0.20897 21.10642

T/V 1,935,485 1,935,485 1,935,485 1,935,485 1,935,485 1,935,485 1,935,485 1,935,485 1,935,485 1,935,485

Taxes 578.13 4,499.71 3,269.91 1,537.65 9,145.17 0.00 17,419.37 3,996.78 404.47 40,851.17

1 of 2



City of Troy - Assessing Department
Calculation of Cobasys' Actual and Estimated Abated Taxes

2008 TransP County Intermed CommColl City State Ed Operating Sch Debt Admin Total

Mills 0.29870 2.32485 1.68945 0.79445 4.72500 0.00000 9.00000 2.06500 0.20897 21.10642

T/V 1,736,044 1,736,044 1,736,044 1,736,044 1,736,044 1,736,044 1,736,044 1,736,044 1,736,044 1,736,044

Taxes 518.56 4,036.04 2,932.96 1,379.20 8,202.81 0.00 15,624.40 3,584.93 362.79 36,641.68

2009 TransP County Intermed CommColl City State Ed Operating Sch Debt Admin Total

Mills 0.29870 2.32485 1.68945 0.79445 4.72500 0.00000 9.00000 2.06500 0.20897 21.10642

T/V 1,569,787 1,569,787 1,569,787 1,569,787 1,569,787 1,569,787 1,569,787 1,569,787 1,569,787 1,569,787

Taxes 468.90 3,649.52 2,652.08 1,247.12 7,417.24 0.00 14,128.08 3,241.61 328.05 33,132.59

2010 TransP County Intermed CommColl City State Ed Operating Sch Debt Admin Total

Mills 0.29870 2.32485 1.68945 0.79445 4.72500 0.00000 9.00000 2.06500 0.20897 21.10642

T/V 1,446,618 1,446,618 1,446,618 1,446,618 1,446,618 1,446,618 1,446,618 1,446,618 1,446,618 1,446,618

Taxes 432.10 3,363.17 2,443.99 1,149.27 6,835.27 0.00 13,019.56 2,987.27 302.31 30,532.93

2011 TransP County Intermed CommColl City State Ed Operating Sch Debt Admin Total

Mills 0.29870 2.32485 1.68945 0.79445 4.72500 0.00000 9.00000 2.06500 0.20897 21.10642

T/V 1,319,264 1,319,264 1,319,264 1,319,264 1,319,264 1,319,264 1,319,264 1,319,264 1,319,264 1,319,264

Taxes 394.06 3,067.09 2,228.83 1,048.09 6,233.52 0.00 11,873.38 2,724.28 275.69 27,844.95

2012 TransP County Intermed CommColl City State Ed Operating Sch Debt Admin Total

Mills 0.29870 2.32485 1.68945 0.79445 4.72500 0.00000 9.00000 2.06500 0.20897 21.10642

T/V 1,221,010 1,221,010 1,221,010 1,221,010 1,221,010 1,221,010 1,221,010 1,221,010 1,221,010 1,221,010

Taxes 364.72 2,838.67 2,062.84 970.03 5,769.27 0.00 10,989.09 2,521.39 255.16 25,771.16

2 of 2



Year Cost Multiplier Market Year Cost Multiplier Market Year Cost Multiplier Market
Purchased New Value Purchased New Value Purchased New Value

2004 0 0.91 0 2004 0 0.89 0 2004 0 0.60 0
2003 0 0.80 0 2003 2,459,114 0.76 1,868,927 2003 0 0.44 0
2002 2,189 0.69 1,510 2002 3,900,514 0.67 2,613,344 2002 218,796 0.32 70,015
2001 0 0.61 0 2001 0 0.60 0 2001 0 0.24 0
2000 0 0.53 0 2000 0 0.54 0 2000 0 0.19 0
1999 0 0.47 0 1999 9,437 0.49 4,624 1999 0 0.15 0
1998 0 0.42 0 1998 0 0.45 0 1998 0 0.08 0
1997 0 0.37 0 1997 0 0.42 0 Prior 0 0.08 0
1996 0 0.33 0 1996 0 0.38 0     
1995 0 0.29 0 1995 0 0.36 0     
1994 0 0.27 0 1994 0 0.33 0     
1993 0 0.24 0 1993 0 0.31 0     
1992 0 0.22 0 1992 0 0.29 0     
1991 0 0.19 0 1991 0 0.28 0     
1990 0 0.12 0 1990 0 0.23 0     
Prior 0 0.12 0 Prior 0 0.23 0     

2,189 1,510 6,369,065 4,486,895 218,796 70,015
Sub Total 4,558,420
Assessable Tooling 373,332
Total M/V 4,931,752
Total A/V & T/V 2005 2,465,876

Cobasys - Estimate of Assessed and Taxable Values for 2005
City of Troy - Assessing Department

Furniture and Fixtures Machinery and Equipment Computers



Year Cost Multiplier Market Year Cost Multiplier Market Year Cost Multiplier Market
Purchased New Value Purchased New Value Purchased New Value

2005 0 0.91 0 2005 0 0.89 0 2005 0 0.60 0
2004 0 0.80 0 2004 0 0.76 0 2004 0 0.44 0
2003 0 0.69 0 2003 2,459,114 0.67 1,647,606 2003 0 0.32 0
2002 2,189 0.61 1,335 2002 3,900,514 0.60 2,340,308 2002 218,796 0.24 52,511
2001 0 0.53 0 2001 0 0.54 0 2001 0 0.19 0
2000 0 0.47 0 2000 0 0.49 0 2000 0 0.15 0
1999 0 0.42 0 1999 9,437 0.45 4,247 1999 0 0.08 0
1998 0 0.37 0 1998 0 0.42 0 Prior 0 0.08 0
1997 0 0.33 0 1997 0 0.38 0     
1996 0 0.29 0 1996 0 0.36 0     
1995 0 0.27 0 1995 0 0.33 0     
1994 0 0.24 0 1994 0 0.31 0     
1993 0 0.22 0 1993 0 0.29 0     
1992 0 0.19 0 1992 0 0.28 0     
1991 0 0.12 0 1991 0 0.23 0     
Prior 0 0.12 0 Prior 0 0.23 0     

2,189 1,335 6,369,065 3,992,161 218,796 52,511
Sub Total 4,046,008
Assessable Tooling 300,906
Total M/V 4,346,914
Total A/V & T/V 2006 2,173,457

City of Troy - Assessing Department
Cobasys - Estimate of Assessed and Taxable Values for 2006

Furniture and Fixtures Machinery and Equipment Computers



Year Cost Multiplier Market Year Cost Multiplier Market Year Cost Multiplier Market
Purchased New Value Purchased New Value Purchased New Value

2006 0 0.91 0 2006 0 0.89 0 2006 0 0.60 0
2005 0 0.80 0 2005 0 0.76 0 2005 0 0.44 0
2004 0 0.69 0 2004 0 0.67 0 2004 0 0.32 0
2003 0 0.61 0 2003 2,459,114 0.60 1,475,468 2003 0 0.24 0
2002 2,189 0.53 1,160 2002 3,900,514 0.54 2,106,278 2002 218,796 0.19 41,571
2001 0 0.47 0 2001 0 0.49 0 2001 0 0.15 0
2000 0 0.42 0 2000 0 0.45 0 2000 0 0.08 0
1999 0 0.37 0 1999 9,437 0.42 3,964 Prior 0 0.08 0
1998 0 0.33 0 1998 0 0.38 0     
1997 0 0.29 0 1997 0 0.36 0     
1996 0 0.27 0 1996 0 0.33 0     
1995 0 0.24 0 1995 0 0.31 0     
1994 0 0.22 0 1994 0 0.29 0     
1993 0 0.19 0 1993 0 0.28 0     
1992 0 0.12 0 1992 0 0.23 0     
Prior 0 0.12 0 Prior 0 0.23 0     

2,189 1,160 6,369,065 3,585,710 218,796 41,571
Sub Total 3,628,441
Assessable Tooling 242,530
Total M/V 3,870,971
Total A/V & T/V 2007 1,935,485

City of Troy - Assessing Department
Cobasys - Estimate of Assessed and Taxable Values for 2007

Furniture and Fixtures Machinery and Equipment Computers



Year Cost Multiplier Market Year Cost Multiplier Market Year Cost Multiplier Market
Purchased New Value Purchased New Value Purchased New Value

2007 0 0.91 0 2007 0 0.89 0 2007 0 0.60 0
2006 0 0.80 0 2006 0 0.76 0 2006 0 0.44 0
2005 0 0.69 0 2005 0 0.67 0 2005 0 0.32 0
2004 0 0.61 0 2004 0 0.60 0 2004 0 0.24 0
2003 0 0.53 0 2003 2,459,114 0.54 1,327,922 2003 0 0.19 0
2002 2,189 0.47 1,029 2002 3,900,514 0.49 1,911,252 2002 218,796 0.15 32,819
2001 0 0.42 0 2001 0 0.45 0 2001 0 0.08 0
2000 0 0.37 0 2000 0 0.42 0 Prior 0 0.08 0
1999 0 0.33 0 1999 9,437 0.38 3,586     
1998 0 0.29 0 1998 0 0.36 0     
1997 0 0.27 0 1997 0 0.33 0     
1996 0 0.24 0 1996 0 0.31 0     
1995 0 0.22 0 1995 0 0.29 0     
1994 0 0.19 0 1994 0 0.28 0     
1993 0 0.12 0 1993 0 0.23 0     
Prior 0 0.12 0 Prior 0 0.23 0     

2,189 1,029 6,369,065 3,242,759 218,796 32,819
Sub Total 3,276,608
Assessable Tooling 195,480
Total M/V 3,472,088
Total A/V & T/V 2008 1,736,044

City of Troy - Assessing Department
Cobasys - Estimate of Assessed and Taxable Values for 2008

Furniture and Fixtures Machinery and Equipment Computers



Year Cost Multiplier Market Year Cost Multiplier Market Year Cost Multiplier Market
Purchased New Value Purchased New Value Purchased New Value

2008 0 0.91 0 2008 0 0.89 0 2008 0 0.60 0
2007 0 0.80 0 2007 0 0.76 0 2007 0 0.44 0
2006 0 0.69 0 2006 0 0.67 0 2006 0 0.32 0
2005 0 0.61 0 2005 0 0.60 0 2005 0 0.24 0
2004 0 0.53 0 2004 0 0.54 0 2004 0 0.19 0
2003 0 0.47 0 2003 2,459,114 0.49 1,204,966 2003 0 0.15 0
2002 2,189 0.42 919 2002 3,900,514 0.45 1,755,231 2002 218,796 0.08 17,504
2001 0 0.37 0 2001 0 0.42 0 Prior 0 0.08 0
2000 0 0.33 0 2000 0 0.38 0     
1999 0 0.29 0 1999 9,437 0.36 3,397     
1998 0 0.27 0 1998 0 0.33 0     
1997 0 0.24 0 1997 0 0.31 0     
1996 0 0.22 0 1996 0 0.29 0     
1995 0 0.19 0 1995 0 0.28 0     
1994 0 0.12 0 1994 0 0.23 0     
Prior 0 0.12 0 Prior 0 0.23 0     

2,189 919 6,369,065 2,963,594 218,796 17,504
Sub Total 2,982,018
Assessable Tooling 157,556
Total M/V 3,139,574
Total A/V & T/V 2009 1,569,787

City of Troy - Assessing Department
Cobasys - Estimate of Assessed and Taxable Values for 2009

Furniture and Fixtures Machinery and Equipment Computers



Year Cost Multiplier Market Year Cost Multiplier Market Year Cost Multiplier Market
Purchased New Value Purchased New Value Purchased New Value

2009 0 0.91 0 2009 0 0.89 0 2009 0 0.60 0
2008 0 0.80 0 2008 0 0.76 0 2008 0 0.44 0
2007 0 0.69 0 2007 0 0.67 0 2007 0 0.32 0
2006 0 0.61 0 2006 0 0.60 0 2006 0 0.24 0
2005 0 0.53 0 2005 0 0.54 0 2005 0 0.19 0
2004 0 0.47 0 2004 0 0.49 0 2004 0 0.15 0
2003 0 0.42 0 2003 2,459,114 0.45 1,106,601 2003 0 0.08 0
2002 2,189 0.37 810 2002 3,900,514 0.42 1,638,216 Prior 218,796 0.08 17,504
2001 0 0.33 0 2001 0 0.38 0     
2000 0 0.29 0 2000 0 0.36 0     
1999 0 0.27 0 1999 9,437 0.33 3,114     
1998 0 0.24 0 1998 0 0.31 0     
1997 0 0.22 0 1997 0 0.29 0     
1996 0 0.19 0 1996 0 0.28 0     
1995 0 0.12 0 1995 0 0.23 0     
Prior 0 0.12 0 Prior 0 0.23 0     

2,189 810 6,369,065 2,747,931 218,796 17,504
Sub Total 2,766,245
Assessable Tooling 126,990
Total M/V 2,893,235
Total A/V & T/V 2010 1,446,618

City of Troy - Assessing Department
Cobasys - Estimate of Assessed and Taxable Values for 2010

Furniture and Fixtures Machinery and Equipment Computers



Year Cost Multiplier Market Year Cost Multiplier Market Year Cost Multiplier Market
Purchased New Value Purchased New Value Purchased New Value

2010 0 0.91 0 2010 0 0.89 0 2010 0 0.60 0
2009 0 0.80 0 2009 0 0.76 0 2009 0 0.44 0
2008 0 0.69 0 2008 0 0.67 0 2008 0 0.32 0
2007 0 0.61 0 2007 0 0.60 0 2007 0 0.24 0
2006 0 0.53 0 2006 0 0.54 0 2006 0 0.19 0
2005 0 0.47 0 2005 0 0.49 0 2005 0 0.15 0
2004 0 0.42 0 2004 0 0.45 0 2004 0 0.08 0
2003 0 0.37 0 2003 2,459,114 0.42 1,032,828 Prior 218,796 0.08 17,504
2002 2,189 0.33 722 2002 3,900,514 0.38 1,482,195     
2001 0 0.29 0 2001 0 0.36 0     
2000 0 0.27 0 2000 0 0.33 0     
1999 0 0.24 0 1999 9,437 0.31 2,925     
1998 0 0.22 0 1998 0 0.29 0     
1997 0 0.19 0 1997 0 0.28 0     
1996 0 0.12 0 1996 0 0.23 0     
Prior 0 0.12 0 Prior 0 0.23 0     

2,189 722 6,369,065 2,517,949 218,796 17,504
Sub Total 2,536,175
Assessable Tooling 102,354
Total M/V 2,638,529
Total A/V & T/V 2011 1,319,264

City of Troy - Assessing Department
Cobasys - Estimate of Assessed and Taxable Values for 2011

Furniture and Fixtures Machinery and Equipment Computers



Year Cost Multiplier Market Year Cost Multiplier Market Year Cost Multiplier Market
Purchased New Value Purchased New Value Purchased New Value

2011 0 0.91 0 2011 0 0.89 0 2011 0 0.60 0
2010 0 0.80 0 2010 0 0.76 0 2010 0 0.44 0
2009 0 0.69 0 2009 0 0.67 0 2009 0 0.32 0
2008 0 0.61 0 2008 0 0.60 0 2008 0 0.24 0
2007 0 0.53 0 2007 0 0.54 0 2007 0 0.19 0
2006 0 0.47 0 2006 0 0.49 0 2006 0 0.15 0
2005 0 0.42 0 2005 0 0.45 0 2005 0 0.08 0
2004 0 0.37 0 2004 0 0.42 0 Prior 218,796 0.08 17,504
2003 0 0.33 0 2003 2,459,114 0.38 934,463     
2002 2,189 0.29 635 2002 3,900,514 0.36 1,404,185     
2001 0 0.27 0 2001 0 0.33 0     
2000 0 0.24 0 2000 0 0.31 0     
1999 0 0.22 0 1999 9,437 0.29 2,737     
1998 0 0.19 0 1998 0 0.28 0     
1997 0 0.12 0 1997 0 0.23 0     
Prior 0 0.12 0 Prior 0 0.23 0     

2,189 635 6,369,065 2,341,385 218,796 17,504
Sub Total 2,359,524
Assessable Tooling 82,497
Total M/V 2,442,021
Total A/V & T/V 2012 1,221,010

City of Troy - Assessing Department
Cobasys - Estimate of Assessed and Taxable Values for 2012

Furniture and Fixtures Machinery and Equipment Computers



HolmesBA
Text Box
C-03

















































































 August 18, 2004 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Steven J. Vandette, Acting Assistant City Manager/Services 
                      John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 

           Nino Licari, City Assessor 
Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 

 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Request for City at Large to Pay for Sidewalk 

Replacements where Property Owners Meet Low Income 
Guidelines. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
City Management recommends that Council approve the proposed ordinance 
amendment to Chapter 34, Sidewalks and Drive Approaches, which will delineate 
eligibility for city payment of repair and replacement costs based on Community 
Development Block Grant Program income limits established by The U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
At the City Council meeting of August 9, 2004 there was discussion on this 
agenda item and it was postponed for further review.  There was a question of 
uncertainty as to whether General Funds could be used to pay for sidewalk repair 
and replacement.  
 
It has been reviewed and determined by the City Attorneys Office that it is 
appropriate to expend General Funds for sidewalk repair and replacement. It has 
also been determined that an ordinance amendment is appropriate which will 
delineate eligibility. 
 
Included is a Memo from the City Assessor and Assistant City Manager- 
Finance/Administration that explains the expenditure of General Funds as they 
pertain to a Special Assessment. 
 
cc:  Allan Motzny 
 
Prepared by:  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
 
 

HolmesBA
Text Box
D-01



CITY OF TROY 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 34 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the 20th amendment to Chapter 
34, Sidewalks and Driveway Approaches, of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Chapter 34 shall be amended as follows: 
 
Chapter 34, of the Troy City Code is hereby amended by the addition of a new 
section 34.13 to read as follows: 
 
34.13  Costs Paid From General Fund/CDBG Funds 
 
34.13.01 Individual property owners meeting the income guidelines as 

established annually by the United States Department of Housing and 
Urban Development for the Community Development Block Grant 
program shall be eligible for 100% coverage of the costs of sidewalk 
construction, replacement or repair that is required by this Chapter.  
Such costs shall be paid from the General Fund. 

 
34.13.02 The duties, requirements, obligations and/or exceptions provided by 

this Chapter shall not preclude the City of Troy from utilizing 
Community Development Block Grant funding to construct, replace or 
repair sidewalks within the City of Troy.    

 
 

 
 
Section 3. Repeal 
 All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed 
only to the extent necessary to give this ordinance full force and effect. 
 
Section 4.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at 
the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 



 2

proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance 
adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of 
this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending 
at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior 
to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of 
any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such offense. 
 
 Section 5.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 6.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the 23rd  day of August, 2004. 
 
 
 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
      Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
      City Clerk    















Chapter 34 - Sidewalks and Driveway Approaches  
 

 1

 CHAPTER 34 - SIDEWALKS AND DRIVEWAY APPROACHES 
 
34.01  Definitions 
   
  When used in this Chapter, the words defined in this Section shall have the following 

meanings: 
   

(a) "Sidewalk" shall mean the improved portion of the street right-of-way designed for 
pedestrian travel. 

 
(b) “Director of Building and Zoning” means the City of Troy Director of Building and 

Zoning, or his/her designee.  
 
(c) "Driveway Approach" shall mean the improved portion of the street right-of-way 

designed to provide for vehicular travel from private property to a public roadway. 
 
(d) “Director” shall mean the Public Works Director of the City, or his/her designee. 
 
(e) “Engineer” shall mean the City Engineer or his/her designee. 
 
(f) “Superintendent” shall mean the Public Works Superintendent of Streets and 

Drains for the City of Troy. 
 

  (Rev. 06-17-02) 
 
34.02 Permits 
 
34.02.01 No person shall construct, rebuild or repair any sidewalk or driveway approach without 

first obtaining a sidewalk and approach permit from the Director of Building and Zoning, 
except that sidewalk or driveway approach repairs of less than fifty (50) square feet of 
sidewalk or driveway approach may be made without a permit. 

 
34.02.02 The sidewalk and approach permit shall be prominently displayed on the construction 

site. 
 
34.02.03 The fee for the sidewalk and approach permit shall be set by City Council resolution, 

which shall be incorporated by reference. 
 
34.02.04 No sidewalk or driveway approach shall be poured until the site has been inspected and 

approved by the Director or his designee. 
 
34.02.05 Each time a proposed sidewalk or driveway approach construction is inspected and 

rejected by the City, a re-inspection fee of twenty dollars ($20.00) shall be paid prior to re-
inspection. 

 
34.02.06 In the event that a sidewalk or driveway approach is poured without a required permit, 

and/or without the required inspection or without a re-inspection, the sidewalk or driveway 
approach must be removed and replaced at the expense of the owner. 

 
A. As an alternative to removal and replacement, if all visible portions of the 

sidewalk or driveway approach meet the sidewalk and approach specifications, 
the contractor may elect to prove that the concrete meets the thickness and 
strength requirements of the specifications by having cores taken from the 



Chapter 34 - Sidewalks and Driveway Approaches  
 

 2

sidewalk or driveway approach and having them measured and tested by an 
approved independent testing laboratory. 

 
B. As a second alternative to removal and replacement, if all visible portions of the 

sidewalk or driveway approach meet the City’s specifications, the contractor 
may elect to deposit a two (2) year cash bond with the City to cover the cost, as 
estimated by the Director, for the removal and replacement of the entire 
sidewalk or driveway in the event that deficiencies develop within a two (2) year 
time period. 

 
  (Rev. 06-17-02) 
 
34.03  Line and Grade Stakes 
 
  The Contractor or Property Owner shall furnish line and grade stakes as may be 

necessary to construct the sidewalk or driveway approach as approved by the City.  This 
shall include establishment of the property line, adjacent to the sidewalk or driveway 
approach to be constructed. This may require the contractor to either locate existing lot 
corner irons and monuments; or have a licensed land surveyor establish new lot corner 
irons and monuments.  All lot corner irons and monuments shall bear the license number 
of the surveyor that performed the work. 

 
  (Rev. 06-17-02) 
 
34.04  Sidewalk and Driveway Approach Specifications 
 
  All sidewalk or driveway approach construction, rebuild, and/or repair shall conform to the 

"Standard Specifications for Sidewalks and Driveway Approaches" as established by the 
Director. 

 
For new sidewalk construction, any existing objects or improvements which must be 
removed or relocated (in the opinion of the Director) to facilitate the construction of a 
sidewalk or driveway approach, shall be removed or relocated at the owner's expense.  
Such items to be removed or relocated shall include, but are not limited to: trees, ditches, 
drainage structures, culverts, fire hydrants, water service valves, utility poles, guy wires, 
street lights and transformers. 

 
  Any existing underground structures which must be adjusted to a new elevation (in the 

opinion of the Director) to facilitate the construction of a sidewalk or driveway approach, 
shall be adjusted to the approved grade at the owner's expense.  Such items to be 
adjusted in height shall include, but are not limited to: manholes, catch basins, drainage 
chambers, gate wells, valve boxes and utility access structures. 

 
  (Rev. 06-17-02) 
 
34.05  Permit Suspension 
   
  The Superintendent or Director may suspend any permit issued under the terms of this 

Chapter for incompetency or failure to comply with the terms of this Chapter, or the rules, 
regulations, plans and specifications for the construction, reconstruction or repair of any 
sidewalk or driveway approach, as established by the Superintendent or the Director.   

 
  (Rev. 06-17-02) 



Chapter 34 - Sidewalks and Driveway Approaches  
 

 3

 
34.06  Ordering Construction 
 
34.06.01 The City Council may require the construction of sidewalks in locations where they 

declare such construction to be necessary in order to provide a safe and convenient 
route for pedestrian and non-motorized vehicular traffic. 

 
  (Rev. 06-17-02) 
 
34.06.02 When construction is determined necessary by City Council, a resolution shall require 

the owners of lots and premises to build sidewalks or drive approaches in the public 
streets adjacent to and abutting upon such lots and premises. When the Council 
resolution is adopted, the City Clerk shall provide notice of the resolution to the owners of 
such lots or premises in accordance with Chapter 1, Section 1.11 of the Troy City Code. 
The resolution shall require the owner to construct or rebuild such sidewalks or drive 
approaches within twenty (20) calendar days of receipt of the resolution. 

 
  (Rev. 06-17-02) 
 
34.07  Required Construction 
 
  All owners of lots and premises abutting dedicated streets open to the public shall be 

required to construct sidewalks and driveway approaches at the time of construction of 
any new buildings or structures, or additions to buildings or structures, or at the time a 
nonconforming use changes to a permitted use in the Zoning District.  No occupancy 
permit shall be issued until such time as the owners of said property have complied with 
the requirements of this provision. The Director of Building and Zoning Director may 
extend the time for completion of the required sidewalk and driveway approaches in 
accordance with established procedure. 

 
  (Rev. 06-17-02) 
 
34.07.01 Exceptions 
 
  The requirement for the construction of sidewalks and driveway approaches, as stated in 

Section 34.07, shall apply in conjunction with all construction, with the following 
exceptions: 

 
A. The Director of Building and Zoning may extend the time for completion of the 

required sidewalks and driveway approaches upon submission of an adequate cash 
bond to the City. 

 
B. Sidewalk and driveway approaches are not required for the construction of an 

individual one-family or two –family home, on an acreage parcel or lot on those street 
frontages which are not major thoroughfares frontages. This exception shall only 
apply to subdivisions platted prior to January 1, 1990, and shall not apply to one-family 
or two-family residential construction on properties that have been split, combined, 
and/or replatted resulting in the possibility, capability, or potential ability to construct 
two or more new buildings or structures on these pre-existing parcels or lots. 

 
 
C. Sidewalk and driveway approaches are not required in conjunction with construction 

on industrial parcels or lots within industrial subdivisions platted prior to January 1, 



Chapter 34 - Sidewalks and Driveway Approaches  
 

 4

1980, when those street frontages which are not major thoroughfare frontages, or do 
not front on Rankin Drive, Chicago Road or Bellingham Drive. 

 
D. Variances from the requirements of Section 34.07 may be granted by the Traffic 

Committee, in accordance with the procedure as set forth in Chapter 35. 
 
 (Rev. 06-17-02) 
 
34.08  Construction by City 
 
  If the installation, rebuild, or repair of a sidewalk or driveway approach violates the 

provisions of this chapter, the Director shall send a written notice of the violation to the 
property owner, and shall set forth a deadline for compliance. If the owner of any lot or 
premises, after receiving said notice, fails to correct the sidewalk or driveway approach 
deficiencies within the allocated compliance time period, the Director is authorized and 
required to immediately cause such sidewalk or driveway approach to be constructed or 
repaired, and the expense thereof shall be charged to the owner of the premises. The 
expenses shall be collected as provided for by law or Charter, including but not limited to 
assessing the cost on the next tax roll of the City or filing an action in the circuit court to 
recover the costs. 

 
 (Rev. 06-17-02) 
 
34.09  Sidewalk Maintenance 
 
  No person shall permit any sidewalk or driveway approach which adjoins property owned 

by him or her to fall into a state of disrepair or to be unsafe, or to be blocked or obstructed 
with bushes, trees, fixtures, or any other thing so that pedestrians or travelers on that 
sidewalk or vehicles traveling on the driveway approach do not have full use of the 
sidewalk or driveway approach. 

 
  (Rev. 06-17-02) 
 
34.10  Sidewalk Repair and Maintenance 
 
  It is the duty of the owner to place said sidewalk or driveway approach in a safe condition. 

Whenever the Director shall determine that a sidewalk or driveway approach is in a state 
of disrepair, unsafe or blocked for use, notice shall be sent to the owner of the lot or 
premises adjoining to or abutting said sidewalk or driveway approach of such 
determination, which notice shall be given in accordance with Chapter 1, Section 1.11 of 
this Code.  Such notice shall specify a reasonable time, not less than seven (7) calendar 
days, within which such work shall be commenced, and shall further provide that the 
work shall be completed with due diligence.  If the owner of such lot or premises shall 
refuse or neglect to repair, make the sidewalk safe or remove obstruction(s) from said 
sidewalk or driveway approach within the allotted time frame, the Director shall have said 
sidewalk or driveway approach repaired, made safe or remove the obstruction.  If the 
Director determines that the condition of said sidewalk or driveway approach is such that 
immediate repair or maintenance is necessary to protect the public, then notice is not 
required prior to the commencement of the emergency repairs and/or replacement.  The 
cost of repairs hereunder shall be charged to the owner of the premises that adjoins the 
identified sidewalk or driveway. The expenses shall be collected as provided for by law or 
the Charter, including but not limited to assessing the cost on the next tax roll of the City 
or filing an action in circuit court to recover the costs. 



Chapter 34 - Sidewalks and Driveway Approaches  
 

 5

 
  (Rev. 06-17-02) 

 
34.11  Sidewalks to be Cleared 
 
  The occupant of every lot or premises adjoining any street, or the owner of such lot or 

premises, if the same are not occupied, shall clear all ice and snow from sidewalks 
adjoining such lot or premises within the time herein required.  When any snow or ice 
shall cease to fall during the daylight hours, such snow or ice shall be cleared from the 
sidewalks within twelve (12) hours after such cessation.  When a fall of snow or ice shall 
have ceased during the nighttime, it shall be cleared from the sidewalks by 6:00 P.M. of 
the day following. 

 
  (Rev. 10-5-92) 
 
34.12  Failure to Clear 
 
  If any occupant or owner neglects or fails to clear ice or snow from the sidewalk adjoining 

his premises within the allotted time period, or shall otherwise permit ice or snow to 
accumulate on such sidewalk, the owner shall be guilty of a violation of this Chapter. The 
Superintendent may then cause the same to be cleared and the expense of removal shall 
become a debt to the City from the occupant or owner of such premises, and shall be 
collected as any other debt to the City.  

 
  (Rev. 06-17-02) 
 
34.13  Costs Paid From General Fund/CDBG Funds 
 
34.13.01 Individual property owners meeting the income guidelines as established annually by the 

United States Department of Housing and Urban Development for the Community 
Development Block Grant program shall be eligible for 100% coverage of the costs of 
sidewalk construction, replacement or repair that is required by this Chapter.  Such costs 
shall be paid from the General Fund. 

 
34.13.02 The duties, requirements, obligations and/or exceptions provided by this Chapter shall 

not preclude the City of Troy from utilizing Community Development Block Grant funding 
to construct, replace or repair sidewalks within the City of Troy. 

 
  (Rev. 08-23-04) 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft August 9, 2004 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, August 9, 2004, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:31 P.M. 
 
The Invocation was given by Rev. Jim Lauer – First Baptist Church and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin E. Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher  
Martin F. Howrylak   
David A. Lambert  
Jeanne M. Stine  

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentation: Howard Wu introduced himself to City Council, Staff and the members of 
the audience as the Student Representative for the Planning Commission.  

 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items brought forward. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Standard Resolution #4 for Somerton Paving 
 
Resolution #2004-08-391 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has caused Special Assessment Roll No. 01.504.5 to be prepared 
for the purpose of defraying the Special Assessment District’s portion of the following described 
public improvement in the City of Troy, 
 
Bituminous Paving of Somerton. 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council is satisfied with said Special Assessment Roll as prepared by the 
City Assessor. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Special Assessment Roll No. 01.504.5 in the amount of 
$12,269.24 is hereby CONFIRMED as prepared by the City Assessor, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to and become a part of the Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 

HolmesBA
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft August 9, 2004 
 

- 2 - 

C-2 Rezoning Application (Z-#402-C) – North Side of Big Beaver, West of John R Road, 
Section 23 – E-P to O-1 and R-1E to E-P  

 
Resolution #2004-08-392 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the E-P to O-1 and R-1E to E-P rezoning request, located on the north side 
of Big Beaver Road, west of John R Road, Section 23, being 11.08 acres in size, is hereby 
GRANTED, as recommended by the Planning Commission and City Management. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
C-3 Rezoning Application (Z-#695) – South Side of Henrietta Avenue, South of Big 

Beaver Road and East of Rochester Road – Section 27 – R-1E to P-1 (Z-#695) 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the R-1E to P-1 rezoning request, located on the south side of Henrietta 
Avenue, south of Big Beaver Road and east of Rochester Road, Section 27, being 10,880 
square feet in size, is hereby DENIED. 
 
Proposed Amended Resolution by Substitution 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Eisenbacher   
Seconded by Beltramini    
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED BY STRIKING it in its entirety and 
SUBSTITUTED with, “RESOLVED, That the R-1E to P-1 rezoning request, located on the south 
side of Henrietta Avenue, south of Big Beaver Road and east of Rochester Road, Section 27, 
being 10,880 square feet in size, is hereby RETURNED to the Planning Commission.” 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend Proposed Amended Resolution by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2004-08-393 
Moved by Beltramini    
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed Amendment to the Amended Resolution by Substitution be 
further AMENDED by INSERTING, “BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council 
INSTRUCTS the Planning Commission to look at the potential installation of an E-P zoning 
buffer located between the proposed rezoning property and the adjacent residences with 
attention given to grade as it might affect development.” 
 
Yes: All-7  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft August 9, 2004 
 

- 3 - 

Vote on Amendment Resolution as Amended to Proposed Amended Resolution by 
Substitution  
 
Resolution #2004-08-394 
Moved by Eisenbacher     
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED BY STRIKING it in its entirety and 
SUBSTITUTED with, “RESOLVED, That the R-1E to P-1 rezoning request, located on the south 
side of Henrietta Avenue, south of Big Beaver Road and east of Rochester Road, Section 27, 
being 10,880 square feet in size, is hereby RETURNED to the Planning Commission; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council INSTRUCTS the Planning 
Commission to look at the potential installation of an E-P zoning buffer located between the 
proposed rezoning property and the adjacent residences with attention given to grade as it 
might affect development.” 
 
Yes: All-7 
  
Vote on Substituted Resolution as Amended 
 
Resolution #2004-08-395 
Moved by Lambert      
Seconded by Stine   
 
RESOLVED, That the R-1E to P-1 rezoning request, located on the south side of Henrietta 
Avenue, south of Big Beaver Road and east of Rochester Road, Section 27, being 10,880 
square feet in size, is hereby RETURNED to the Planning Commission; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council INSTRUCTS the Planning 
Commission to look at the potential installation of an E-P zoning buffer located between the 
proposed rezoning property and the adjacent residences with attention given to grade as it 
might affect development. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  
 
D-1 Authorization for the City Manager to Work with the Planning Commission Relative 

to Neighborhood Compatibility Issues 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the City Manager is AUTHORIZED to work with the Planning Commission to 
develop ordinance language that will address the relationship of accessory and/or add-on 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft August 9, 2004 
 

- 4 - 

structures in residential districts as to lot size and boundaries, including the review approval 
process. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2004-08-396 
Moved by Eisenbacher 
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by SUBSTITUTION by INSERTING, 
“RESOLVED, That the agenda item, Authorization for the City Manager to Work with the 
Planning Commission Relative to Neighborhood Compatibility Issues, be POSTPONED to a 
Regular City Council Meeting after a City Council Study Meeting that addresses this issue is 
held.” 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
Vote on Substituted Resolution 
 
Resolution #2004-08-397 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the agenda item, Authorization for the City Manager to Work with the 
Planning Commission Relative to Neighborhood Compatibility Issues, be POSTPONED to a 
Regular City Council Meeting after a City Council Study Meeting that addresses this issue is 
held. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2004-08-398 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Broomfield   
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Items E-8 and E-9, which shall be considered after Consent 
Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft August 9, 2004 
 

- 5 - 

E-2  Minutes:  Regular Meeting of July 19, 2004 
 
Resolution #2004-08-398-E-2 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular Meeting of July 19, 2004 be APPROVED 
as submitted. 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  None 
 
E-4 Estate of Leslie McPherson v. City of Troy 
 
Resolution #2004-08-398-E-4 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is hereby AUTHORIZED AND DIRECTED to represent the 
City of Troy in any and all claims and damages in the matter of the Estate of Leslie McPherson 
by Trudy McPherson v. City of Troy and to pay all expenses and to retain any necessary expert 
witnesses to adequately represent the City. 

E-5 Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Air Compressor Repair 
and Maintenance 

 
Resolution #2004-08-398-E-5 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to provide three-year requirements of air compressor repair and 
maintenance for the Fire Department is hereby AWARDED to the low bidder, Air Technologies, 
Inc. of Livonia, Michigan, for an estimated total cost of $21,480.00, at unit prices contained in 
the bid tabulation opened July 2, 2004, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting, with a contract expiration of August 9, 2007; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements.  

E-6 Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Watermain – 2075 Associates Limited 
Partnership – 2085 Big Beaver – Sidwell #88-20-29-201-015 

 
Resolution #2004-08-398-E-6 
 
RESOLVED, That the watermain easement from 2075 Associates Limited Partnership, owner of 
property at 2085 Big Beaver, having Sidwell #88-20-29-201-015 is hereby ACCEPTED for the 
operation, maintenance and repair or replacement of watermain; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
document with the Oakland County Register of Deeds Office; a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft August 9, 2004 
 

- 6 - 

E-7 Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Approval to Expend Funds for Membership 
Dues and Membership Renewals Over $10,000.00: Southeast Michigan Council of 
Governments (SEMCOG) – 2004 Membership Dues 

 
Resolution #2004-08-398-E-7 
 
RESOLVED, That APPROVAL IS GRANTED to pay the 2004 Southeast Michigan Council of 
Governments (SEMCOG) membership dues from July 15, 2004 to July 15, 2005 in the amount 
of $11,040.00. 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-8 Approval of Changed Service Dates for Maintenance Contract for Sanctuary Lake 

Golf Course 
 
Resolution #2004-08-399 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
WHEREAS, On March 1, 2004 through Resolution #2004-03-117, staff was authorized to 
prepare contract documents for Douglas Treadwell Golf and Associates to provide golf 
maintenance from June 1, 2004 through November 30, 2004. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO 
EXECUTE the attached contract documents as corrected, and with the following date change 
from July 1, 2004 through December 31, 2004; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes:  All-7  

E-9 Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Low Bidder Meeting 
Specifications – Tree/Stump Removal Service 

 
Resolution #2004-08-400 
Moved by Howrylak   
Seconded by Stine   
 
RESOLVED, That a one-year contract to provide crews and equipment for Tree / Stump 
Removal Services on City-owned property, including ash trees, with an option to renew for one 
(1) additional year is hereby AWARDED to the low total bidder meeting specifications, J.H. Hart 
Urban Forestry of Sterling Heights, for an estimated yearly cost of $1,500,000.00, at unit prices 
contained in the bid tabulation opened July 30, 2004, and supplemental Schedule of Values as 
listed in Appendix I, copies of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the contractor 
SUBMISSION of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft August 9, 2004 
 

- 7 - 

Yes:  All-7  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 9:13 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:27 PM. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 

F-7 Approval of City at Large to Pay for Sidewalk Replacement Where Property 
Owners Meet Low to Moderate Income Guidelines  

 
Resolution 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
WHEREAS, Per Chapter 34 of the Troy City Code, homeowners are required to pay for 
sidewalk improvements. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That homeowners meeting the income guidelines 
established annually for the Community Development Block Grant program SHALL BE 
ELIGIBLE for 100% coverage of the cost of their sidewalk repairs; funds for this 
REIMBURSEMENT SHALL COME from the General Fund. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution #2004-08-401 
Moved by Howrylak   
Seconded by Stine   
 
RESOLVED, That Approval of City at Large to Pay for Sidewalk Replacement Where Property 
Owners Meet Low to Moderate Income Guidelines be POSTPONED to the Regular City Council 
meeting scheduled for Monday, August 23, 2004. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
F-9 Proposed Amendments to Taxicab and Limousine Ordinance  
 
Resolution  
Moved by Eisenbacher   
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the version allowing reciprocal licensing of the ordinance amendment to 
Chapter 65, Section 7.102 is hereby ADOPTED as recommended by the City Attorney; a copy 
of this ordinance shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft August 9, 2004 
 

- 8 - 

Vote on Amendment 
 
Resolution #2004-08-402 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Broomfield   
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution for proposed amendments to the Taxicab and Limousine 
Ordinance be AMENDED by INSERTING, “and with the appropriate clerical corrections made 
to the numbering”, AFTER “as recommended by the City Attorney;”  
 
Yes: All-7  
 
Vote on Amended Resolution 
 
Resolution #2004-08-403 
Moved by Eisenbacher    
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the version allowing reciprocal licensing of the ordinance amendment to 
Chapter 65, Section 7.102 is hereby ADOPTED as recommended by the City Attorney and with 
the appropriate clerical corrections made to the numbering; a copy of this ordinance shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
F-13 Cultural, Religious and Historical Displays 
 
Resolution #2004-08-404 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the following Mission Statement for Cultural, Religious and Historical 
Displays be ADOPTED by the Troy City Council, “The Troy City Plaza is dedicated to the 
positive expression of our cultural and historical heritage, philosophies, and ethnic diversity, 
encouraging activities and displays depicting events which highlight and honor them.” 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
Vote on Resolution to Reconsider 
 
Resolution #2004-08-405 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Stine 
 
RESOLVED, That Resolution #2004-08-404, Moved by Stine and Seconded by Beltramini, as it 
appears below be RECONSIDERED by City Council: 
 

RESOLVED, That the following Mission Statement for Cultural, Religious 
and Historical Displays be ADOPTED by the Troy City Council, “The Troy 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft August 9, 2004 
 

- 9 - 

City Plaza is dedicated to the positive expression of our cultural and 
historical heritage, philosophies, and ethnic diversity, encouraging 
activities and displays depicting events which highlight and honor them.” 
 
Yes: All-7 

 
Yes: Schilling, Eisenbacher, Stine 
No: Beltramini, Broomfield, Howrylak, Lambert 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Proposed Resolution to Develop a Policy Statement for Cultural, Religious and Historical 
Displays 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Howrylak 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council DIRECTS City Management and the City 
Attorney to formulate a policy statement for Cultural, Religious and Historical Displays based 
upon discussion at the Council Table on Monday, August 9, 2004 and submit the policy 
statement to City Council at the Regular City Council meeting scheduled on Monday, 
September 13, 2004. 
 
Vote on Amendment to Proposed Resolution to Develop a Policy Statement for Cultural, 
Religious and Historical Displays 
 
Resolution #2004-08-406 
Moved by Howrylak   
Seconded by Lambert   
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution to Develop a Policy Statement for Cultural, Religious and 
Historical Displays be AMENDED by INSERTING, “ BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy 
City Council DESIGNATES the southeastern quadrant of Town Center and Civic Center Drive 
as the Cultural, Religious and Historical Displays site.” 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
Vote on Amended Resolution to Develop a Policy Statement for Cultural, Religious and 
Historical Displays 
 
Resolution #2004-08-407 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Howrylak 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council DIRECTS City Management and the City 
Attorney to formulate a policy statement for Cultural, Religious and Historical Displays based 
upon discussion at the Council Table on Monday, August 9, 2004 and submit the policy 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft August 9, 2004 
 

- 10 - 

statement to City Council at the Regular City Council meeting scheduled on Monday, 
September 13, 2004; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council DESIGNATES the southeastern quadrant 
of Town Center and Civic Center Drive as the Cultural, Religious and Historical Displays site. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Confirmation of Mayoral 

Appointments; Local Development Finance Authority; (b) Mayoral Appointments: 
None; (c) City Council Appointments:  Parks and Recreation Board and Troy Youth 
Council 

 
City Council Appointments 
 
Resolution #2004-08-409 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Parks and Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council (10) 3 years 
 
Ida Edmunds Term expires 07-31-2005 
Letter has been received from the Troy School District recommending Ida Edmunds for the 
2004-2005 school year 
 
Troy Youth Council 
Appointed by Council (13) – 1 year 
 
Emily Burns  Term expires 08-31-2005 
 
Min Chong  Term expires 08-31-2005 
 
Juliana D’Amico  Term expires 08-31-2005 
 
Monika Govindaraj  Term expires 08-31-2005 
 
Catherine Herzog  Term expires 08-31-2005 
 
Maniesh Joshi  Term expires 08-31-2005 
 
Andrew Kalinowski  Term expires 08-31-2005 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft August 9, 2004 
 

- 11 - 

 
Manessa Shaw  Term expires 08-31-2005 
 
YuJing Wang  Term expires 08-31-2005 
 
Yes: All-7  
 

Confirmation of Mayoral Appointments 
 
Resolution #2004-08-409 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the appointments of John Szerlag and Douglas Smith to the Local 
Development Finance Authority (LDFA) with terms expiring on June 30, 2007, are hereby 
CONFIRMED BY THE MAYOR with COUNCIL APPROVAL. 
 
Yes: Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher  
No: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Appointments Carried-Over as Item F-1 on the Next Regular City Council Meeting Agenda 
Scheduled for August 23, 2004: 
 
Mayoral Appointments 
 
Downtown Development Authority 
Mayor, Council Approval (13) – 4 years 
 
Marc W. Rosenow resigned due to employment Unexpired term expires 09-30-2007 
 
 Term expires 07-01-2005 (Student) 
 
Economic Development Corporation 
Mayor, Council Approval (9) – 6 years 
 
 Term expires 04-30-2009 
 
City Council Appointments 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
Appointed by Council (9 Regular, 3 Alternates) – 3 years 
 
 Term expires 07-01-2005 (Student) 
 
Parks and Recreation Board 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft August 9, 2004 
 

- 12 - 

Appointed by Council (10) 3 years 
 
 Term expires 07-01-2005 (Student) 
 
 
F-2 Approval for Troy Daze Fee 
 
Resolution #2004-08-410 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That a fee of $1.00 for 3 tickets is APPROVED for participation in children’s 
games at the Troy Daze Festival in addition to the previously approved Troy Daze Fee 
schedule. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
F-3 Troy v. Maurice David Freed, et al 
 
Resolution #2004-08-411 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council APPROVES the proposed Consent Judgment; a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, in the City of Troy v. 
Freed, Oakland County Circuit Court Case No. 03-048401-CC, and AUTHORIZES payment in 
the amounts stated therein, and further AUTHORIZES the Assistant City Attorney to EXECUTE 
the Consent Judgment on behalf of the City of Troy. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
F-4 Approval of Purchase Agreement, Michael G. Leinonen and Catherine Helena 

Leinonen, 2803 Thames, Sidwell #88-20-25-226-002, Big Beaver, Rochester to 
Dequindre Road Project - #01.105.5 

 
Resolution #2004-08-412 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement to Purchase between Michael G. Leinonen and Catherine 
Helena Leinonen, and the City of Troy, having Sidwell #88-20-25-226-002, for the acquisition of 
property at 2803 Thames is hereby APPROVED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That authorization is hereby GRANTED to purchase the property 
in the Agreement referenced above in the amount of $185,000.00, plus closing costs. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft August 9, 2004 
 

- 13 - 

Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Lambert, Stine  
No: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
F-5 Community Center Fitness Room Expansion to Enhance Customer Service 
 
Resolution #2004-08-413 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That to enhance customer service in the Community Center Fitness Room, the 
EXPANSION of the fitness room include approximately 1,200 square feet to accommodate 
additional cardiovascular equipment at an approximate cost of $4,500.00 to renovate and 
$24,000.00 per year to lease the equipment. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
F-6 Rescind Bid Award / Re-Award Contract Hair and Body Shampoo  
 
Resolution #2004-08-414 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
WHEREAS, On June 7, 2004, a one-year contract for Duraview Hair & Body Shampoo with an 
option to renew for an additional year was awarded to Lobaido Cleaning Supply, the low bidder 
meeting specifications (Resolution #2004-06-300-E-8). 
 
WHEREAS, After numerous attempts by staff to obtain the product, the City was notified by the 
manufacturer, Kutol, that Lobaido Cleaning Supply is not an authorized dealer to sell the 
Duraview product. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the contract to supply Hair & Body Shampoo be 
RESCINDED with prejudice from Lobaido Cleaning Supply, and REAWARDED to the next 
lowest acceptable bidder, Lower Huron Supply at unit prices contained in the attached bid 
tabulation opened April 14, 2004; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of 
this meeting with a contract expiration of June 1, 2005. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
F-8 Approval of Negotiated Agreement with the Michigan Municipal Risk Management 

Authority (MMRMA) for Casualty and Property Insurance Coverage 
 
Resolution #2004-08-415 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft August 9, 2004 
 

- 14 - 

WHEREAS, On November 4, 1996, a three-year contract for Casualty and Property Insurance 
was awarded to the low bidder, Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority (MMRMA) 
(Resolution #96-1032). 
 
WHEREAS, The contract was extended on August 16, 1999 for three years with an option to 
renew for three additional years (Resolution #99-376-E-4). 
 
WHEREAS, The contract was again approved for extension on August 2, 2002 for a two-year 
option under the same terms and conditions with changes in self-insured retention, stop loss, 
sewer back up coverage, and terrorism coverage due to the hardening insurance market 
(Resolution #2002-08-453). 
 
WHEREAS, On March 1, 2004 authorization was given to the City Manager to negotiate a new 
agreement with the MMRMA for Casualty and Property Insurance (Resolution #2004-03-108-E-
11). 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That an agreement to renew the contract for Casualty 
and Property Insurance with the MMRMA be EXERCISED at a premium cost of  $293,689.00 
with no change in terms and conditions.  This cost represents a 4% increase over last year’s 
premium; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That this contract INCORPORATES an option to renew for the 
2005/2006 coverage year depending on exposures, claims, underwriting, and market 
conditions.  This agreement also INCLUDES the maintenance of a positive loss fund balance of 
up to $150,000.00 expiring November 7, 2006. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
F-10 Traffic Committee Recommendations - July 21, 2004  
 
Resolution #2004-08-416 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
(a) Installation of a STOP Sign on Southbound Thurber at Longfellow 
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order #04-08-22 is hereby APPROVED for the installation of 
a STOP signs on southbound Thurber at Longfellow. 
 
(b) Installation of a STOP Sign on Thurber at Tallman 
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order #04-09-SS is hereby APPROVED for the installation of 
a STOP sign on Thurber at Tallman. 
 
(c) No Changes to Parking Restrictions on Tallman 
 
RESOLVED, That there be no changes to parking restrictions on Tallman. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft August 9, 2004 
 

- 15 - 

(d) Installation of a STOP Sign on Evergreen at Amberly 
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order #04-10-04 is hereby APPROVED for the installation of 
a STOP sign on Evergreen at Amberly. 
 
(e) Installation of a STOP Sign and a DO NOT BLOCK INTERSECTION Sign on 

Rochester Court at Robinwood and a DO NOT BLOCK INTERSECTION Sign on 
Robinwood at Rochester Court    

 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order #04-11-04 is hereby APPROVED for the installation of 
a STOP sign and a DO NOT BLOCK INTERSECTION sign on Rochester Court at Robinwood. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order #04-02-MR is hereby APPROVED for 
the installation of a DO NOT BLOCK INTERSECTION sign on Robinwood at Rochester Court. 
 
(f) Establishment of FIRE LANES at 1821 Maplelawn 
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order #04-03-MR is hereby APPROVED for the establishment 
of fire lanes at 1821 Maplelawn as recommended by the Fire Department. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
F-11 Rescind Bid Award / Re-Bid Contract-Duct Cleaning Gun Range Ventilation System

  
Resolution #2004-08-417 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, On January 5, 2004, a contract to provide duct cleaning of the Police Department 
gun range ventilation system was awarded to the low bidder, Sani-Vac Service, Inc. (Resolution 
#2004-01-006); and 
 
WHEREAS, The awarded bidder, Sani-Vac Service, Inc. and the only other bidder, Indoor Air 
Professionals have notified the City that they have withdrawn their bid due to their inability to 
comply with the Lead Compliance Plan as outlined by Testing Engineers & Consultants, at the 
prices bid. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the contract for duct cleaning of the Police 
Department gun range ventilation system be RESCINDED WITHOUT PREJUDICE from Sani-
Vac Service, Inc., and be re-solicited. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
F-12 Final Site Condominium Approval – Wattles Ridge Site Condominium, South of 

Wattles, East of Rochester, Section 23 – R-1C 
 
Resolution #2004-08-418 
Moved by Lambert  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft August 9, 2004 
 

- 16 - 

Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That the Final Site Plan as submitted by the petitioner, under Section 34.30.00 of 
the Zoning Ordinance (Unplatted One-Family Residential Development) for the development of 
a One-Family Residential Site Condominium know as Wattles Ridge Site Condominium and as 
recommended for approval by City Management and the Planning Commission, located south 
of Wattles Road, east of Rochester Road, including 14 home sites, within the R-1C Zoning 
District, being 4.92 acres in size is hereby APPROVED. 
Yes: All-7  
 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
(a) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 6471 Denton – Scheduled for August 23, 2004 
(b) Cobasys Abandonment of Industrial Facilities District – Scheduled for August 23, 2004 
(c) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA #202) – Article 28.30.02 – Outside Storage of 

Commercial and Recreational Vehicles in Self Storage Facilities – Scheduled for August 
23, 2004 

Noted and Filed 
 
G-2 Green Memorandums:  
(a) Proposed Ballot Language for Staggering of Terms 

Noted and Filed 
 
COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 
 
H-1  Resolution Advanced by Council Member Stine Requesting the City Manager to 

Meet with the Property Owner of 3129 Alpine 
 
Resolution 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
WHEREAS, It is the obligation of the Troy City Council to protect property values and to assist 
in maintaining the residential character of neighborhoods. 
 
WHEREAS, The attached accessory structure currently being constructed at 3129 Alpine is a 
detriment to property values and the residential character of homes in the immediate area. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That City Management is AUTHORIZED to meet with 
the owners of 3129 Alpine Street for the purpose of reducing the size of the attached accessory 
structure and/or modifying the exterior elevation so as to make it compatible with the 3129 
Alpine home and the surrounding neighborhood; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft August 9, 2004 
 

- 17 - 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That any costs involved in accomplishing a reduced accessory 
structure and/or elevations making it compatible with the 3129 Alpine home and the surrounding 
homes be BROUGHT BACK to City Council for approval.   
 
Proposed Resolution #1 to Amend 
 
Resolution 
Moved by Lambert   
Seconded by Eisenbacher   
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution Requesting the City Manager to Meet with the Property 
Owner of 3129 Alpine be AMENDED by STRIKING, “approval” and INSERTING 
“consideration”. 
Vote on Resolution #2 to Amend 
 
Resolution #2004-08-419 
Moved by Eisenbacher    
Seconded by Howrylak    
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution Requesting the City Manager to Meet with the Property 
Owner of 3129 Alpine be AMENDED by STRIKING, “purpose” and INSERTING “intent”; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Resolution Requesting the City Manager to Meet with 
the Property Owner of 3129 Alpine be AMENDED by STRIKING the first two WHEREAS 
paragraphs. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
Vote on Resolution #1 to Amend  
 
Resolution #2004-08-420 
Moved by Lambert   
Seconded by Eisenbacher   
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution Requesting the City Manager to Meet with the Property 
Owner of 3129 Alpine be AMENDED by STRIKING, “approval” and INSERTING 
“consideration”. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
Vote on Amended Resolution 
 
Resolution #2004-08-421 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That City Management is AUTHORIZED to meet with the owners of 3129 
Alpine Street for the intent of reducing the size of the attached accessory structure and/or 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft August 9, 2004 
 

- 18 - 

modifying the exterior elevation so as to make it compatible with the 3129 Alpine home and the 
surrounding neighborhood; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That any costs involved in accomplishing a reduced accessory 
structure and/or elevations making it compatible with the 3129 Alpine home surrounding homes 
be BROUGHT BACK to City Council for consideration.   
 
Yes: All-7  
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

Display of the Olympic Flag Below the City Flag: August 16 – August 29, 2004 
 
Resolution 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Lambert 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the display of the Olympic Flag 
below the City Flag located at the City Plaza between August 16 – August 29, 2004 in 
recognition of the Olympic Games. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #5 
 
Resolution #2004-08-422 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That City Council SUSPEND Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #15 - I 
Council Comments and AUTHORIZE City Council to discuss and take action on agenda item, 
Display of the Olympic Flag Below the City Flag: August 16-August 29, 2004. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
Vote on Resolution 
 
Resolution #2004-08-423 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Lambert 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the display of the Olympic Flag 
below the City Flag located at the City Plaza between August 16 – August 29, 2004 in 
recognition of the Olympic Games. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft August 9, 2004 
 

- 19 - 

REPORTS:  
  
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
(a) Downtown Development Authority/Draft – April 21, 2004 
(b) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – June 9, 2004 
(c) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Draft – June 10, 2004 
(d) Planning Commission/Draft – July 8, 2004 
(e) Planning Commission/Draft – July 13, 2004 
(f) Employees’ System Board of Trustees/Draft – July 14, 2004 
(g) Planning Commission-Special-Study/Draft – July 27, 2004 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-2 Department Reports:  
(a) 2004 Year-to-Date Crime and Calls for Service Report 
(b) 2004 Second Quarter Litigation Report 
(c) Mancini v. City of Troy 
(d) City Council Expense Report, Re: Council Member Beltramini, Council Member Broomfield, 

Council Member Howrylak, Council Member Lambert, Mayor Schilling and Council Member 
Stine 

(e) Barton Malow Co. v. Kmart Corp. City of Troy, et al. 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 
(a) Letter from Elizabeth Symonenko to Bill Huotari in Appreciation of the Hard Work and 

Consideration by City Staff During the Installation of The Water Main Replacement and 
Storm Sewer Work on Their Street with Special Recognition Given to Michael Dooley  

(b) Letter from Mark Foran, High Gear Riders Ministry at Kensington Community Church 
Thanking Sgt. Redmond and Officer Tim Garcher for Their Assistance with the “Motorcycles 
for Ministers” Fundraiser 

(c) Letter from The Wilson Family Thanking Officer Minton for His Assistance in Having an Old 
Truck Removed After Their Two and One Half Year Effort to Have it Removed  

(d) Thank You Note Received from Gary Hauff, Asset Protection Detective – Saks Fifth Avenue 
to Chief Craft Thanking Officer Jay Reynolds for His Excellent Presentation on Fraud 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None 
 
J-5  Calendar 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-6  Memorandum, Re: Political Sign Ordinance – Chapter 85-A of Troy City Code 

Noted and Filed 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft August 9, 2004 
 

- 20 - 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1  International City/County Management Association (ICMA) Citizen Survey 
 
Removed by City Management and rescheduled for the Regular Meeting to be held on Monday, 
August 23, 2004. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session  
 
Resolution #2004-08-424 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as 
permitted by MCL 15.268 (e), Nancy Cook v. City of Troy and Ronald Makowski, Hunciag v. 
City of Troy; and Troy v. Premium Construction. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
The meeting RECESSED at 12:36 AM on Tuesday, August 10, 2004. 
. 
The meeting RECONVENED at 1:40 AM on Tuesday, August 10, 2004. 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 1:41 AM on Tuesday, August 10, 2004. 
 
 
  
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 

 

  
 Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC - City Clerk 

 



 
 
DATE:   August 10, 2004 

  
 

 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
    
FROM:  Steven J. Vandette, Acting Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Request from First Baptist Church of Troy 

for Temporary Suspension of Chapter 47, House Trailers 
    

 
 

 
We have received a request from Philip Fitzgerald, Business Manager of the Troy 
Baptist Church for the temporary suspension of Chapter 47 of the Troy City Code 
regarding the placement of an on-site motor home on their site from October 8–17, 
2004.  A visiting pastor and his family will use the motor home during his stay at the 
church.  Similar requests have been approved in the past without incident. 
 
We will be happy to provide additional information regarding this request if you desire. 

HolmesBA
Text Box
E-04





HolmesBA
Text Box
E-05



August 16, 2004 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Steve Vandette, Acting Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Carol Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
   
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: State Of 

Michigan MiDEAL Program— Large Capacity Riding Rotary Mower 
With ROPS 4-Post Canopy 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
City management requests approval and authorization to purchase a large 
capacity riding rotary mower through the State of Michigan MiDEAL Program 
(formerly the Extended Purchasing Program) with Spartan Distributors, Inc. at an 
estimated total cost of $38,115.00.  Spartan Distributors will deliver the Toro 
equipment listed below and provide all warranty repairs.  Spartan Distributors will 
purchase the 4-post ROPS canopy and wire mesh cab, which protects operators 
from golf balls, separately from another vendor not covered by the State 
Contract, at an estimated cost of $1,325.00.  Spartan Distributors will then install 
the canopy unit on the riding mower, and deliver to us the complete package as 
one unit. 
 
SUMMARY 
This purchase will replace equipment due to come out of service from Sylvan 
Glen Golf Course.  We are requesting authorization to purchase the following 
piece of equipment: 
 
Parks and Recreation Department 
Sylvan Glen Golf Course  
 
QTY Model # Description Mfrs Suggested Retail Price Discounted Price 

1 30410 Toro Groundsmaster 4000-D  
 

$51,856.00 *$38,114.16 
 

 
  
QTY Model # Description Unit Price Total Price Discounted Price 

1 JPBR Jodale Perry Boxer ROPS 4-Post Canopy $1,325.00 $1,325.00 $1.325.00 
ESTMATED GRAND TOTAL 
* Price reflects 26.5% State of Michigan Contract Discount 

 $39,439.16 

 
BUDGET 
Funds for the purchase of this mower are available in the Sylvan Glen Capital 
Account 788.7978.010.  
 
Prepared by:  Danny T. McDonald, Acting Superintendent of Greens  
Cc:  Jake Pilat, Director of Golf Operations 

HolmesBA
Text Box
E-06













HolmesBA
Text Box
E-07







August 3, 2004 
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Steve Vandette, Acting Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 

Steve Pallotta, Director Building Operations  
Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 

 
Subject: Agenda Item – Informal Quotation Process 

Award of Professional Engineering Services for Emergency Back-
Up Power at the Community Center    

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
City management recommends that a professional service contract for electrical 
engineering design and limited architectural design for emergency back-up 
power at the Troy Community Center be awarded to the firm submitting the 
lowest informal proposal, EAM Engineers, Inc., of Troy, MI, at an estimated cost 
of $9,900, plus an additional $1,000.00 for reimbursable expenses. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Based on a review of city operations after 9-11 and the blackout of 2003, it was 
determined that a city facility with back-up emergency power is needed.  In July 
2004, staff solicited and received informal quotes from three engineering firms for 
services to design the specifications for the back-up emergency power at the 
Community Center.  Since the project scope was not considered to be a major 
project, a shortlist of firms was prepared from three firms who have been 
successful in past City projects.  Once the engineering design specifications are 
developed, staff will bid the project for installation. 
 
BUDGET 
Funding for this project is in the Community Center’s Capital Budget, Account 
number 401755.7978.045. 
 
 
Prepared By:  Stuart J. Alderman, Superintendent of Recreation  

HolmesBA
Text Box
E-08



Appendix 1 
Proposal Price Summary 

 
Community Center Back-Up Power 

Engineering Services 
 
 
Company     Prices    
 
EAM Engineers, Inc. $9,900, plus reimbursable/additional services 

(as required/if needed) 
 
Berbiglia Associates, Inc.   $11,000, plus reimbursable/additional services 
      (as required/if needed) 
 
James Partridge Associates, Inc.  $11,500, plus reimbursable/additional services  
      (as required/if needed) 
 
 
 
 



HolmesBA
Text Box
E-09











August 13, 2004 
 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
   
SUBJECT: Agenda Item - Request To Waive Parking Restrictions 
 
 
Smith Middle School requests that the parking restrictions be waived on Donaldson 
street from Square Lake Road to Cotswald street, so that they may host an open 
house on September 9, 2004, from 6:15pm to 9:00 pm 
 
Both sides of Donaldson are posted no parking areas and parking at Smith Middle 
School is limited.   
 
Smith Middle School makes this request each year and city staff is supportive of the 
requests.  Therefore, it is recommended that parking restrictions on the non-hydrant 
side of the street (the west side) be waived on the dates and times requested.  
Waiving the restrictions on the non-hydrant side will provide additional parking while 
still allowing for the passage of emergency vehicles. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HolmesBA
Text Box
E-10



HolmesBA
Text Box
E-11





WINTER MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 
 

Under 1951 PA 51, As Amended 
 
 
 This Agreement made this ___________day of _____________________, 2004, between the Board 
of County Road Commissioners of the County of Oakland, State of Michigan, a Public Body Corporate, 
hereinafter referred to as the “BOARD”, and the City of Troy, Oakland County Michigan, a Municipal 
Corporation hereinafter referred to as the “CITY”, witnesseth as follows to-wit: 
 
 Certain county primary and local roads more specifically set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto, are 
under the jurisdiction and control of the Board and are located within or adjacent to the City. 
  
 The City hereby agrees to be responsible for the winter maintenance of said roads under the terms of 
this Agreement and the Board agrees to participate in the cost thereof as provided in Section III of this 
Agreement. 
 
 The “Winter Maintenance” included in the terms of this Agreement shall be such as is defined in 
Section I of this Agreement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual convenants set forth herein as provided, it is 
hereby agreed as follows: 
 
 

I 
 

Winter Maintenance, as herein required to be performed by City, shall include the following 
minimum requirements: 
 
 SNOW AND ICE CONTROL:  Snow removal by blading, plowing and other methods necessary to 
make the roads reasonably safe for public travel.  Ice Control by salting, sanding, scraping and other methods 
necessary to make the roads reasonably safe for public travel. 
 
 

II 
 
 City agrees to hold harmless, represent, defend and indemnify the Board, its officials and employees 
from any and all suits arising out of the performance or non-performance of the activities, which are the 
subject matter of this Agreement only, specifically those activities set out in Section I. However, this hold 
harmless provision does not apply if any claim or suit is alleged to be or demonstrated to be the result of a 
defect in highway design or condition not related to the maintenance activities set out in Section I. Further, 
since the Board has the statutory responsibility for maintenance of the roads under this Agreement, its is the 
intent of the parties that the delegation by Agreement of those maintenance responsibilities to the City 
provide immunity to the City as an agent of the County. Therefore, the City falls within the governmental 
immunity protection of the County.  
 

Only during that part of the year that the City is providing snow removal or ice control under Section 
I, the City agrees to notify the Board within 30 days, should it become aware of defects or maintenance 
requirements in the roads set forth in Exhibit A, if said defects or maintenance requirements are not Winter 
Maintenance subject to this Agreement.  

 
  
  



III 
 
 In consideration of the assumption of Winter Maintenance by the City, the Board agrees to pay to the 
City the sum of  

$3,005.07 per mile, for roads having two lanes of through traffic 
$4,263.68 per mile, for roads having three lanes of through traffic 
$5,258.87 per mile, for roads having four or five lanes of through traffic 
$6,486.28 per mile, for roads having six or more lanes of through traffic, 

in accordance with the mileage set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof.  Such amounts 
are to be used by the City for Winter Maintenance.  Payments are to be made by the Board to the City as 
follows: 

 
35% in December 2004 

65% in March 2005 
 
 The making of said payments shall constitute the Board’s entire obligation in reference to Winter 
Maintenance. 
 

IV 
 
 The usual maintenance guidelines and standard practices utilized by the Board, including but not 
limited to, the Board adopted Winter Maintenance Guidelines, shall control.  Should any dispute arise as to 
the character or extent of Winter Maintenance or to City’s performance hereunder, the controversy may be 
referred to an arbitration board consisting of the Road Commission for Oakland County Director of Highway 
Maintenance, the Public Works Director and a third person to be chosen by them for settlement thereof. 
 

V 
 
 The City shall acquire and maintain, during the term of the Agreement, statutory Worker’s 
Compensation Insurance, automobile and comprehensive general liability insurance coverage as described in 
Exhibit C attached hereto covering the Board’s liability for any and all claims arising out of the City’s 
performance or non-performance of the activities which are the subject matter of this Agreement. 
 
 Certificates of insurance for each policy providing for 30 days notice of cancellation, termination or 
material change shall be provided to the Board, and are attached as Exhibit D. 
 

VI 
 
 The City further agrees to comply with all relevant laws and regulations of the State of Michigan for 
safeguarding the air and waters of the State.  In particular, City facilities and operations must meet the 
provisions of the Administrative Rules of the Waste Management Division of the Department of 
Environmental Quality, as detailed in the Manual for Storage of Road Maintenance Chemicals at Road 
Agency Maintenance Garages. 

 
VII 

 
In accordance with 1976 PA 453, as amended, and 1976 PA 220, as amended, the City covenants not 

to discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment with respect to hire, tenure, terms, 
conditions, or privileges of employment, or a matter directly or indirectly related to employment because of 
race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, height, weight, marital status or because of a handicap that is 
unrelated to the individual’s ability to perform the duties of the particular job or position and to require a 
similar covenant on the part of any subcontractor employed in the performance of the Agreement. 

 



VIII 
 
 It is the intention of the parties hereto that this Agreement is not made for the benefit of any third 
party. 
 
 It is anticipated that subsequent agreements regarding Winter Maintenance activities will be executed 
annually by the Parties hereto. 
 
 The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall become effective on October 1, 2004, and shall 
continue in full force and effect until a subsequent Winter Maintenance agreement has been executed by the 
parties hereto or until this agreement is terminated, as set forth below. 
 
 In the event that a subsequent Winter Maintenance agreement has not been executed by the parties 
hereto on or before September 1, 2005, either party may terminate this Agreement by providing the other 
party hereto with written notice of intent to terminate, at least thirty days prior to the date of termination. 
 
 This Agreement is executed by the Board at its meeting of _________________________________, 
and by the City by authority of a resolution of its governing body, adopted ___________________________, 
(copy attached as Exhibit B). 
 
 
Witnesses:      CITY OF TROY 
       A Municipal Corporation 
 
 
________________________________________ By:________________________________________ 
 
 
       Its:________________________________________ 
 
 
________________________________________ By:________________________________________ 
 
 
       Its:________________________________________ 
 
 
Witnesses:      BOARD OF COUNTY ROAD COMMISSIONERS 
       OF THE COUNTY OF OAKLAND, 
       A Public Body Corporate 
 
 
________________________________________ By:_________________________________________ 
 
 
       Its:_________________________________________ 
 
 
________________________________________ By:_________________________________________ 
 
 
       Its:_________________________________________ 
 



WINTER MAINTENANCE 
2004-2005 

CITY OF TROY 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 
Long Lake Road 
Extending from Adams to Dequindre 

1.54 miles at $3,005.07 per mile     $   4,627.81 
0.16 miles at $4,263.68 per mile     $      682.19         
3.47 miles at $5,258.87 per mile     $ 18,248.28  
0.86 miles at $6,486.28 per mile     $   5,578.20   
TOTAL        $ 29,136.48 

 
 
John R Road 
Extending from Fourteen Mile Road to South Boulevard 

1.15 miles at $3,005.07 per mile     $   3,455.83     
0.32 miles at $4,263.68 per mile     $   1,364.38 
4.37 miles at $5,258.87 per mile     $ 22,981.26  
0.38 miles at $6,486.28 per mile     $   2,464.79  
TOTAL        $ 30,266.26 

 
 
Big Beaver 
Extending from Adams to Dequindre 

3.40 miles at $5,258.87 per mile     $  17,880.16  
2.61 miles at $6,486.28 per mile     $  16,929.19 
TOTAL        $  34,809.35 

 
 
Crooks Road 
Extending from Maple Road to South Boulevard 

0.38 miles at $3,005.07 per mile     $    1,141.93  
0.26 miles at $4,263.68 per mile     $    1,108.56 
3.08 miles at $5,258.87 per mile     $  16,197.32  
1.40 miles at $6,486.28 per mile     $    9,080.79 
TOTAL        $  27,528.60 

 
 
Livernois Road 
Extending from Maple Road to South Boulevard 

1.31 miles at $3,005.07 per mile     $   3,936.64 
0.34 miles at $4,263.68 per mile     $   1,449.65 
3.05 miles at $5,258.87 per mile     $ 16,039.55  
0.43 miles at $6,486.28  per mile     $   2,789.10 

 TOTAL        $ 24,214.94  
 

 
 
 
 



WINTER MAINTENANCE 
2004-2005 

CITY OF TROY 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
Maple Road 
Extending from Dequindre to Coolidge 
 5.01 Miles at $5,258.87 per mile     $  26,346.94 
 
 
South Boulevard 
Extending from Dequindre to Adams 
 5.96 Miles at $3,005.07 per mile     $  17,910.22 
 
Dequindre Road 
Extending from Fourteen Mile to South Boulevard 
 2.16 Miles at $3,005.07 per mile     $    6,490.95 
 3.98 Miles at $5,258.87 per mile     $  20,930.30 
 TOTAL        $  27,421.25 
 
 
Adams Road 
Extending from South Troy City Limits to South Boulevard 
 4.34 Miles at $ 3,005.07 per mile     $  13,042.00 
 
 
 

TOTAL        $230,676.04 
 
 



CITY OF TROY 
EXHIBIT A 
(Continued) 
 
TWO LANES 
($3,005.07 per mile) 

    1.54 miles      $   4,627.81    
    1.15 miles      $   3,455.83 
    0.38 miles      $   1,141.93  
    1.31 miles      $   3,936.64 
    5.96 miles      $ 17,910.22 
    2.16 miles      $   6,490.95   
    4.34 miles      $ 13,042.00 

16.84 miles      $ 50,605.38  
 
 
THREE LANES 
($4,263.68 per mile) 

  0.16 miles      $     682.19     
  0.32 miles      $  1,364.38 
  0.26 miles      $  1,108.56  
  0.34 miles      $  1,449.65 
  1.08 miles      $  4,604.78   

 
 
FOUR OR FIVE LANES 
($5,258.87 per mile) 

 3.47 miles      $  18,248.28 
  4.37 miles      $  22,981.26 

 3.40 miles      $  17,880.16 
 3.08 miles      $  16,197.32 

   3.05 miles      $  16,039.55 
 5.01 miles      $  26,346.94 
 3.98 miles      $  20,930.30 
26.36 miles      $138,623.81 

 
 
SIX OR MORE LANES 
($6,486.28 per mile) 
   0.86 miles      $    5,578.20 
   0.38 miles      $    2,464.79 
   2.61 miles      $  16,929.19 
   1.40 miles      $    9,080.79 
   0.43 miles      $    2,789.10 
   5.68 miles      $  36,842.07 
 
. 
TOTAL   49.97 miles      $230,676.04 
 
 

35% in December, 2004  $  80,736.61 
65% in March, 2005   $149,939.43 

       $230,676.04 









 

 

   Memorandum 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
From: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & 

Administration 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 

Date: August 9, 2004 
Subject: Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from 

the Michigan Accountancy Foundation (MAF) for the Purpose of 
Obtaining a Charitable Gaming License 

 
 
Attached is a request from Peggy A. Dzierzawski, Secretary of the Michigan 
Accountancy Foundation (MAF) seeking recognition as a non-profit organization 
for the purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming license in order to sponsor a 
raffle to raise funds for its Fifth/Graduate Year Scholarship program. It has been 
City Management’s practice to support the approval of such requests.  

HolmesBA
Text Box
E-12































































HolmesBA
Text Box
E-13















 
 
August 16, 2004 
 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Steven J. Vandette, Acting Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
  Dennis C. Stephens, Right of Way Representative 
 
RE: Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement, Helen A. Kaleto also 

known as Helen A. Rychlewski, 2839 Thames, Sidwell #88-20-25-
226-005, Big Beaver, Rochester to Dequindre Road Project 
#01.105.5 

 
 

As part of the proposed Big Beaver Road Widening Project – Rochester to 
Dequindre, the Real Estate & Development Department has reached an 
agreement with Helen A. Kaleto also known as Helen A. Rychlewski to purchase 
property at 2839 Thames, having Sidwell #88-20-25-226-005.  The subject parcel 
is approximately 0.172 acres of land with a single family home and attached 
garage totaling 1,216 square feet. The seller has requested that she be allowed to 
retain ownership of the items listed in Condition #10 of the Agreement to Purchase  
 
Based on an appraisal performed by R.S. Thomas & Associates, Inc., and 
reviewed by Kimberly Harper, Deputy Assessor, staff believes that $210,000.00, 
the compensation agreed upon, is a justifiable value to this acquisition. 
 
In order for the City to proceed with the acquisition of this parcel, staff requests that 
City Council approve the attached Purchase Agreement with Helen A. Kaleto also 
known as Helen A. Rychlewski in the total amount of $210,000.00, plus closing 
costs.  Funds will come from the Big Beaver – Rochester to Dequindre Road 
Project #01.105.5.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HolmesBA
Text Box
F-02



BIG BEAVER - ROCHESTER TO DEQUINDRE ROAD 
PROJECT #01.105.5 

 

2839 Thames 
Sidwell# 88-20-25-226-005











DATE:  July 29, 2004 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Steve Vandette, Acting Assistant City Manager  / Services 
  Tim Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
RE: Agenda Item – Community Development Block Grant Status 

Change from Metropolitan City to Urban County.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the City of Troy change its CDBG status from Metropolitan City status, 
terminate the Joint Agreement with Oakland County and request Urban County 
status and become incorporated into the Oakland County Program. 
 
DETAILS 
 
Oakland County has provided an allocation analysis based on the City of Troy 
status as a Metropolitan City vs. Urban County.  Attached is the allocation 
analysis and a letter stating that if the City of Troy were to relinquish its 
Metropolitan City status it could regain it at the end of each three-year cycle of 
the program. This is an important issue allowing the City of Troy to retain the 
option to become a Metropolitan City based on future allocation analysis and 
case study. 
 
At the present time it is not in the best interest of the City of Troy to act alone as 
a Metropolitan City for the following key reasons. 
 
§ Low / Moderate-income areas qualify with 51% of the population falling 

below those levels.  We currently receive a 36.1% threshold to qualify as a 
Low / Moderate level. 

 
§ Funding levels allowed for Public Service activities (Home Chore) are 

currently at 50% ($97,000) of CDBG appropriations. Acting as a 
Metropolitan City Public Service activities expenditures are limited to 15% 
($64,000). Currently our annual Public Services activities are in excess of 
$70,000. 

 
§ To act alone as a Metropolitan City additional direct City of Troy cost 

would include additional requirements for staff, software, training, printing, 
office supplies, cell phone, vehicle, home inspections, legal fees, review 
fees, and mandatory compliance with federal certifications.  

 
§  The City would be responsible for any of these costs in excess of 20% 

($85,800) of the funding as a Metropolitan City.  Estimates are that these 

HolmesBA
Text Box
F-03



additional direct costs would significantly exceed the allowable 20% 
funding level. 

 
 
We agree with the Allocation Analysis Recommendation that the City of Troy 
relinquish its Metropolitan City status, terminating the joint agreement with 
Oakland County and be incorporated into Oakland County’s Urban County 
Program.  This would allow HUD to allocate Home funds to Oakland County on 
behalf of the City of Troy rather then those funds being allocated to the State of 
Michigan 
 
SUMMARY 
 
Funding levels to the City of Troy would increase by $156,000 over Metropolitan 
City funds coming in the form of additional Home Improvement Program 
resources. The change from Metropolitan City Status to Urban County Status 
would allow for any unused funds to be available to other residents in Oakland 
County.   Currently the State of Michigan would capture the funding and could 
distribute it across all counties across Michigan. 
 

 
 
 
Attachments: 
 
   1.  Community Development Block Grant (CBDG) Participant Designation  

2. Allocation Analysis Summary 
3. Troy CDBG Allocation Analysis Metropolitan City vs. Urban County 
4. Letter to HUD   
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Reviewed and Approved by City Attorney’s Office 

 

















 1

August 16, 2004 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Steven J. Vandette, Acting Assistant City Manager/Services  
 Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 

William J. Huotari, Acting City Engineer 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
  
SUBJECT: STREET VACATION APPLICATION (SV-185) – South 149.26 feet of 

Beach Road, south of Hampton Lane, within Wendover Woods 
Subdivision No. 2, Section 19 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
City Council adopted an authorizing resolution for this item on June 21, 2004.  The 
petitioner has attempted to dedicate easement rights to a public utility company; 
however, he must obtain ownership of the property before the easement rights can 
be dedicated.  City Management recommends approval of the final street vacation 
request and the reservation of a 15-foot wide private easement for public utilities 
upon vacation (see attached easement language).  Therefore, the City can then 
reserve the easement rights to the public utility company as part of the vacation. 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of applicant(s): 
Toby and Julie Buechner. 
 
Location of property owned by applicant(s): 
The applicant owns lot 53 of Wendover Woods Subdivision No. 2.  The property is 
located on the south side of Hampton Lane, abutting Beach Road to the west. 
 
History of Right of Way: 
The right-of-way is entirely within Wendover Woods Subdivision No. 2, which was 
platted in 1961.  A portion of the right-of-way is paved and functions as the 
applicant’s driveway.  The property to the south is completely built out as a 
residential neighborhood so there is no need to maintain the property as a right-of-
way. 
 
Length and width of right-of-way: 
The right-of-way is 143.26 feet long by 43 feet wide.  The entire section of right-of-
way is located within Wendover Woods Subdivision No. 2.  The ownership of the 
entire portion of right-of-way will revert to the applicant.  A portion of the right-of-way 
is paved and presently functions as the applicant’s driveway. 
 

HolmesBA
Text Box
F-04



 2

ANALYSIS 
 
Reason for Street Vacation (as stated on the Street/Alley Vacation Application): 
The application states the following: “I would like to put up a home addition that gets 
close to but not on this easement”. 
 
Future Land Use Designation: 
The property is designated on the Future Land Use Plan as Low Density Residential. 
 
Need for Future Easements: 
There is a 12-foot wide utility easement that runs along the south end of lots 53 
through 55.  Since this easement can be accessed from Caswell Road, the City has 
no need for future easements within this portion of the Beach Road right-of-way. 
 
There are DTE overhead wires located within the right-of-way.  The right-of-way can 
be vacated with the reservation of a 15-foot wide easement for the DTE facilities.   
 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Minutes from June 21, 2004 City Council Public Hearing 
3. Easement description 

 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ SV 185 
 
G:\STREET VACATION\SV 185 BEACH RD SEC 19\CC Final Vacation Beach Road St Vacation 08 16 04.doc 

















August 17, 2004 
 
 
TO                 John Szerlag, City Manager 
  
FROM:           Steven J. Vandette, Acting Assistant City Manager/Services 

  Doug Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
  Dennis C. Stephens, Right of Way Representative 

   
 
SUBJECT: Request for approval of Agreement To Purchase Right of Way to 

the 75 foot line for sidewalk – 6130 Rochester Road - Section 2 
Sidewalk Gap 

                     Owner: John Stewart 
   
 
On June 7, 2004 City Council authorized an unconditioned offer to purchase 
right-of-way on the east side of Rochester road, north of Square Lake Road, in 
Resolution #2004-06-316, to fill a sidewalk gap. The value authorized and the 
appraised value was $36,619.59. 
 
The appraised value for this parcel was prepared by Andrew Reed, a state 
Certified General Appraiser and reviewed by Kimberly A. Harper, Deputy 
Assessor. Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director prepared the Tree and Shrub 
Evaluation. 
 
Mr. Stewart has signed and returned the Agreement to Purchase with an 
increase in the amount, to $39,619.59, which is $3,000.00 more than the 
approved amount. There is also a condition that the city will bring a water tap to 
the right of way line on this parcel at a fee not to exceed $2,000.00 that the 
owner will need to pay.   
 
The Right-of-Way Department has conferred with the Department of Law and the 
Water and Sewer Department.  
 
City staff believes it would be in the City’s best interest to approve this 
Agreement to Purchase, with conditions.     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HolmesBA
Text Box
F-05











 
 

ROCHESTER ROAD GAP SIDEWALK 
6130 ROCHESTER ROAD – SECTION 2 

 
 
 
 

 

SUBJECT 



August 18, 2004 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Items:  Emerald Food Services, Inc. 

Contract and Amendment Executions and Class C Liquor License 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Four inter-related agenda items are recommended by staff for approval and affect 
contracts with Emerald Food Service, Inc.  The items are as follows: 
 

(a1)  Contract execution of the Food Service at Sanctuary Lake 
Golf Course 

 
(a2) Execution of the third amendment to the Community 

Center Café / Pro Shop Agreement 
 

(b) The new Class C (quota) liquor license for Emerald Food 
Service, Inc. for Sanctuary Lake Golf Course 

 
(c) The corresponding agreement for the Liquor License 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
On April 12, 2004, City Council awarded a contract to Emerald Food Service, Inc. for 
food and beverage service at Sanctuary Lake Golf Course (resolution #2004-04-186).  
The accepted proposal required combined revenue sharing for the Community Center 
Café / Pro Shop and the Golf Course.  The expiration dates of both contracts should, 
therefore, coincide.  The expiration date would be one year after the commencement of 
the food service at the golf course with two additional one-year options to renew or 
additional two-year options to be determined at the end of the first year of operation.   
 
The third amendment to the Community Center and the final contract documents for 
Sanctuary Lake are attached and it is requested that the City Clerk and Mayor execute 
these documents.   
 
On August 9, 2004, the Liquor Advisory Committee approved a new full year (quota) 
Class C liquor license with Sunday Sales, Official Permit (Food), and Outdoor Service 
Area for Emerald Food Service, Inc.  After a background investigation of the applicant 
revealed no criminal activity or disqualifying factors, the request by Emerald Food 
Service, Inc. for the license is attached and the Police Department has no objection to 
this request.  Also attached is the license agreement since City Council deems it 
necessary to enter into an agreement with applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose 
of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event licensees fail to adhere to Troy 
Codes and Ordinances. 

HolmesBA
Text Box
F-06



 
August 17, 2004 
 
 
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:   Steve Vandette, Acting Assistant City Manager 
   Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
   Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
Subject:  Agenda Item:  Food Service Contract Execution 
 
 
On April 12, 2004, City Council awarded a contract to Emerald Food Service at 
the Sanctuary lake Golf Course for one year with two additional one-year options.  
The resolution (#2004-04-186) included recasting the lease agreement of the 
Community Center so that the revenue sharing of the two facilities is combined 
and expiration dates are consistent. 
 
Terms of the agreement have been successfully negotiated with the vendor.  As 
clarification, expiration of the agreements will be one year after the 
commencement of food service.  The vendor applied for a liquor license and was 
approved by the Liquor Advisory Committee for a Class C liquor license at the 
August 9, 2004 meeting. 
 
The contract is attached and it is requested that the City Clerk and Mayor 
execute the documents. 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Reviewed and approved by City Attorney’s Office 















































August 18, 2004 
 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Steven J. Vandette, Acting Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
  Patricia A. Petitto, Senior Right of Way Representative 
 
RE: AGENDA ITEM - Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement for 

Maple Road/Coolidge to Crooks Water Main and Sidewalk  
Project #01.501.5 – McGregor Manufacturing Corporation  
2785 West Maple - Sidwell #88-20-32-126-001 

 
 
As part of the Maple Road/Coolidge to Crooks Water Main and Sidewalk Project, 
an agreement has been reached with McGregor Manufacturing Corporation to 
purchase 14,256 square feet of right-of-way at 2785 West Maple.  This property 
is located on the south side of Maple, east of Coolidge, in the northwest ¼ of 
Section 32. 
 
Based on an appraisal prepared by Thomas H. Chuba and Kenneth A. Blondell 
of Integra Realty Resources, and recent market information, management 
believes that the appraised value of $132,900 is justifiable.  The property is 
zoned M-1 and the compensation is for both real property and landscaping.  This 
agreement has been reviewed and approved by both our Law Department and 
Engineering Department. 
 
In order for the City to proceed with this project, management requests that City 
Council approve the attached purchase agreement in the amount of $132,900, 
plus closing costs.  Funding for this project will come from the Water Main Fund. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HolmesBA
Text Box
F-07



 













August 18, 2004 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Steven J. Vandette, Acting Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
  Patricia A. Petitto, Senior Right of Way Representative 
 
RE:  Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement 

Thien Van Le & Yen Lu, 2919 Thames 
Sidwell #88-20-25-229-002 Project No. 01.105.5  
Big Beaver Road Improvements, Rochester to Dequindre 

 
 
As part of the proposed Big Beaver Road Widening Project – Rochester to 
Dequindre, the Real Estate & Development Department has reached an 
agreement with Thien Van Le and Yen Lu to purchase his property at 
2919 Thames, having Sidwell #88-20-25-229-002.  The subject parcel is 
approximately 0.172 acres of land with a single family home and detached 
garage totaling 1,161 square feet.  The sellers have requested that they 
be allowed to retain ownership of the item listed in Condition #10 of the 
Agreement to Purchase. 
 
Based on an appraisal prepared by R.S. Thomas & Associates, Inc., and 
reviewed by Kimberly Harper, Deputy Assessor, staff believes that 
$173,000, the compensation agreed upon, is a justifiable value for this 
acquisition. 
 
In order for the City to proceed with the acquisition of this parcel, staff 
requests that City Council approve the attached Purchase Agreement with 
Thien Van Le and Yen Lu in the total amount of $173,000, plus closing 
costs.  Funds will come from the Big Beaver Road– Rochester to 
Dequindre project. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HolmesBA
Text Box
F-08













August 17, 2004 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Steven J. Vandette, Acting Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
  Patricia A. Petitto, Senior Right of Way Representative 
 
RE:  Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement 

Paul K. Davis, 2955 Sparta, Sidwell #88-20-25-202-001 
Project No. 01.105.5 - Big Beaver Road Improvements, 
Rochester to Dequindre 

 
 
As part of the proposed Big Beaver Road Widening Project – Rochester to 
Dequindre, the Real Estate & Development Department has reached an 
agreement with Paul K. Davis to purchase his property at 2955 Sparta, 
having Sidwell #88-20-25-202-001.  The subject parcel is approximately 
0.188 acres of land with a single family home and detached garage 
totaling 1,176 square feet. 
 
Based on an appraisal prepared by R.S. Thomas & Associates, Inc., and 
reviewed by Kimberly Harper, Deputy Assessor, staff believes that 
$170,000, the compensation agreed upon, is a justifiable value for this 
acquisition. 
 
In order for the City to proceed with the acquisition of this parcel, staff 
requests that City Council approve the attached Purchase Agreement with 
Paul K. Davis in the total amount of $170,000, plus closing costs.  Funds 
will come from the Big Beaver Road– Rochester to Dequindre project. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HolmesBA
Text Box
F-09













 1

August 16, 2004 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Steven J. Vandette, Acting Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 William J. Huotari, Acting City Engineer 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY SITE CONDOMINIUM REVIEW – Proposed Timbercrest 

Estates Site Condominium, 11 units/lots proposed, South side of Wattles, 
West of Fernleigh, Section 24 – R-1C 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
At the July 13, 2004 Planning Commission Regular Meeting, the Planning Commission 
adopted the following resolution and conditions: 
 

Resolution # PC-2004-07-075 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council, that 
the Preliminary Site Plan (Section 34.30.00 Unplatted One-Family Residential 
Development), as requested for Timbercrest Estates Site Condominium, including 
11 units, located south of Wattles Road and west of Fernleigh Road, Section 24, 
within the R-1C zoning district be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. That an adjacent property plat layout for the properties to the south and to 

the west be on file at the Planning Department before the item goes to City 
Council. 

2. That the drainage of this property to the properties to the east that are 
developed is engineered such that there are no water flows that create 
standing water in the properties to the east. 

3. The tree survey lists a number of trees that are not the kind of trees the City 
of Troy wants, and those trees that do meet the requirement of being a good 
tree, on the property lines specifically, that every effort be made to do the 
underground utility work without cutting roots and maybe the 
recommendation would be not to do any rear yard underground utility work, 
but make it all down Timbercrest. 

4. If there are trees to be destroyed, the item needs to come back to see how 
best the City and the petitioner can get together and save as many trees as 
possible. 

HolmesBA
Text Box
F-10



 2

Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Khan, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
The Planning Department has prepared a potential layout for the abutting property to 
the south and west, as stipulated in condition #1.  The potential impact of drainage on 
abutting properties, as stipulated in condition #2, will be reviewed by the Engineering 
Department prior to Final Engineering Approval.  The Landscape Analyst has reviewed 
and approved a Tree Preservation Plan, which indicates the trees to be preserved and 
the trees that will remain on site.  The Tree Preservation Plan is not consistent with 
conditions #3 and #4 but meets all City standards.  City Management recommends 
approval of the Preliminary Site Condominium Plan as submitted.  Two resolutions have 
been provided to City Council for consideration, Resolution A (as recommended by City 
Management) and Resolution B (as recommended by Planning Commission). 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owners are Benjamin Gill and Omar Ammori.  The engineer is Beckman Wehbe 
Corporation. 
 
Location of subject property: 
The property is located on the south side of Wattles, west of Fernleigh, in Section 24. 
 
Size of subject parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 4 acres in area. 
 
Description of proposed development: 
The applicant is proposing to develop an 11-unit site condominium.  
 
The applicant submitted an alternative layout at the request of the Planning Department.  
In this layout, the road ends in a cul-de-sac rather than a stub street.  This layout yields 
10 units.  The Planning Department recognizes the potential for future development on 
parcels to the south, and prefers a stub road that could be extended in the future. 
 
Current use of subject property: 
A single family residence presently sits on the parcel.  
 
Current use of adjacent parcels: 
North: Single family residential. 
 
South: Single family residential. 
 
East: Single family residential. 



 3

West: Single family residential. 
 
Current zoning classification: 
The property is currently zoned R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
Zoning classification of adjacent parcels:  
North: R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
South: R-1C One Family Residential. 
  
East: R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
West: R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
Future Land Use Designation: 
The property is designated on the Future Land Use Plan as Low Density Residential. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Compliance with area and bulk requirements: 
Lot Area:  10,500 square feet is required.  The application meets this requirement.  
 
Lot Width:  85 feet.  The application meets this requirement.  
 
Height:  2 stories or 25 feet.  The application will be required to meet this requirement.  
 
Setbacks: Front:  30 feet.  The application meets this requirement.  
  Side (least one):  10 feet.  The application meets this requirement.  
  Side (total two):  20 feet.  The application meets this requirement.  
  Rear:  40 feet.  The application meets this requirement.  
 
Minimum Floor Area:  1,200 square feet.  The application will be required to meet this 
requirement.  
 
Maximum Lot Coverage:  30%.  The application will be required to meet this 
requirement.  
 
The applicant meets the area and bulk requirements of the R-1C One Family 
Residential District. 
 
Off-street parking and loading requirements:  
The applicant will be required to provide 2 off-street parking spaces per unit. 
 
Environmental provisions, including Tree Preservation Plan: 
A Tree Preservation Plan was submitted and approved.  



 4

Stormwater detention: 
The applicant is proposing to construct a detention basin in the northwest corner of the 
property, just north of Unit 11. 
 
Natural features and floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no significant natural features located on 
the property. 
 
Subdivision Control Ordinance, Article IV Design Standards  
 

Blocks:  The applicant is proposing a simple street layout that will stub at the 
southern property line.  
 
Lots:  There are 11 lots proposed for the development. 
 
Topographic Conditions:  The topography is relatively flat, with some trees on the 
property.  The wetland report completed by King & MacGregor Environmental 
Inc. on May 13, 2004 states that there are six separate wetland areas (non-
regulated) ranging in size from 700 to 10,000 square feet.  The total area of 
wetland is estimated to be approximately 16,000 square feet. 
 
Streets:  The applicant is proposing a 28-foot wide street within a 60-foot wide 
right-of-way.  The street will be stubbed at the southern property line. 

 
Sidewalks:  The applicant is proposing a 5-foot wide sidewalk along both sides of 
the proposed street and an 8-foot wide sidewalk on the south side of Wattles 
Road. 

 
Utilities:  The property will be served with public water and sewer. 

 
 
DEPARTMENTAL REVIEW 
 
The following is a summary of comments generated during the City of Troy 
Departmental Review process: 
 
Building Department 
There is a requirement for an 8-foot wide sidewalk on Wattles (this has been provided). 
 
Engineering Department 
No floodplain or wetlands.  Sanitary, water and storm all available on Wattles to provide 
service.  Provide 8’ wide sidewalk along Wattles.  Passing lane per Traffic Engineer. 
 
Environmental Specialist 
No wetlands or floodplain issues. 



 5

Department of Public Works 
No floodplain or woodland issues.  No brownfield issues.  Rear yard drains will be 
required in yards. 
 
Fire Department 
OK. 
 
Transportation Engineer 
If there are plans to continue development, a passing lane will be required. 
 
Parks and Recreation Department 
Tree Preservation Plan approved.  
 
Road Commission of Oakland County 
There is no work proposed in public right-of-way under the jurisdiction of the Road 
Commission for Oakland County. 
 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Unplatted Residential Development Levels of Approval 
3. Comparison Between Site Condominiums and Plats 
4. Planning Commission Minutes from July 13, 2004 
5. Letter from King & MacGregor Environmental Inc., dated May 13, 2004 
6. Potential Future Development 
7. Resident Correspondence, dated 8-18-04 

 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ Timbercrest Estates Site Condominium 

 
 

G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Timbercrest Estates Site Condo Sec 24\Timbercrest Estates CC Preliminary Approval.doc 





2004 timbercrest estates sc.dgn  8/18/2004 11:43:45 AM







UNPLATTED RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT LEVELS OF APPROVAL 
 

Preliminary Plan Approval  
A sign is placed on the property informing the public of the proposed development. 
Adjacent property owners are notified by mail 
Public meeting held by Planning Commission for review and recommendation to City Council 
City Council reviews and approvals plan 
 
The following items are addressed at Preliminary Plan Approval: 

• Street Pattern, including potential stub streets for future development 
• Potential development pattern for adjacent properties 
• Fully dimensioned residential parcel layout, including proposed building configurations 

o Number of lots 
o Building setbacks 
o Lot dimensions 
o Locations of easements 

• Preliminary sanitary sewer, storm sewer, and water main layout 
• Environmental Impact Statement (if required) 
• Location(s) of wetlands on the property 
 

Final Plan Approval 
Notice sign is posted on site 
City Council review and approval of: 

• Final Plan 
• Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) 
 

The following items are addressed at Final Plan Approval: 
• Fully dimensioned plans of the total property proposed for development, prepared by 

registered Civil Engineer or Land Surveyor 
• Corners of all proposed residential parcels and other points as necessary to determine 

that the potential parcels and building configurations will conform with ordinance 
requirements 

• Warranty Deeds and Easement documents, in recordable form for all ROW. and 
easements which are to be conveyed to the public 

• Construction plans for all utilities and street improvements, prepared in accordance 
with City Engineering Design Standards: 

o Sanitary and Storm sewer 
o Water mains 
o Detention / Retention basins 
o Grading and rear yard drainage 
o Paving and widening lanes 
o Sidewalk and driveway approaches 

• Approval from other government agencies involved with the development 
• Verification of wetlands and M.D.E.Q. permit if necessary 
• Financial guarantees to insure the construction of required improvements and the 

placement of proper property and parcel monuments and markers shall be furnished 
by the petitioner prior to submittal of the Final Plan to the City Council for review and 
approval 

• Floor Plans and Elevations of the proposed residential units 



PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

 
01-15-03 

 
COMPARISON BETWEEN SITE CONDOMINIUMS AND PLATS   

 
The site condominium is a form of development that closely resembles the more 
traditional form of land subdivision known as a “subdivision” or a “plat”.  Although both 
types of development have the same basic characteristics, site condominiums are a 
newer form of development and are not, therefore, as familiar to homebuyers and 
neighbors as the more customary plats.  An important concept related to any type of 
condominium development is that condominiums are a form of OWNERSHIP, not a type 
of physical development. 
 
The following summary is intended to compare and contrast the two types of 
development. 
 

1. Comparisons between site condominiums and plats. 
 

a. Statutory Basis – Site condominium subdivisions first became possible 
under the Michigan Condominium Act, which was adopted by the Michigan 
Legislature in 1978.  Plats are created under the Michigan Land Division 
Act, formerly the Michigan Subdivision Control Act of 1967. 

 
b. Nature and Extent of Property Ownership – An individual homesite 

building in a platted subdivision is called a “lot”.  In a site condominium, 
each separate building site or homesite is referred to by the Condominium 
Act as a “unit”.  Each unit is surrounded by “limited common area”, which is 
defined as common elements reserved in the master deed for the exclusive 
use of less than all of the co-owners”.  The remaining area in the site 
condominium is “general common area”, defined as the common elements 
reserved in the master deed for the use of all of the co-owners.  The nature 
and extent of ownership of a platted lot and a condominium unit, with the 
associated limited common area, are essentially equivalent from both a 
practical and legal standpoint. 

 
c. Compliance with Zoning Ordinance – Both site condominiums and 

subdivisions are required to comply with the minimum requirements of the 
City of Troy Zoning Ordinance for area and bulk, including minimum lot 
size, lot width, setbacks and building height.  Essentially, site 
condominiums and subdivisions in Troy must “look” similar.   

 
d. Creation/Legal Document – A site condominium is established by 

recording in the records of the county in which the land is located a master 
deed, bylaws and condominium subdivision plan (“plan”).  A platted 
subdivision is created by the recording of a subdivision plat (“plat”), usually 
coupled with a declaration of easements, covenants, conditions and 
restrictions   The plan depicts the condominium units and limited and 
general common areas, while the plat defines the lots.  Both have 



PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

 
01-15-03 

substantially the same geometrical appearance and characteristics.  The 
master deed and bylaws on the one hand and the declaration on the other 
have essentially the same functions with respect to the site condominium or 
platted subdivision, namely, establishment of:  (i) building and use 
restrictions; (ii) rights of homeowners to use common areas; (iii) financial 
obligations of owners; and, (iv) procedures for operation of the subdivision. 

 
e. Home Maintenance and Real Estate Taxes – Each unit and lot, as 

respectively depicted on a condominium plan or subdivision plat, together 
with any home located thereon, are required to be individually maintained 
by the owner.  Likewise, separate real estate taxes are assessed on each 
condominium unit or platted lot and paid individually by each homeowner. 

 
f. Roads and Utilities – In most plats, roads are dedicated to the public and 

maintained by the county road commission or the municipality in which the 
subdivision is located.  Site condominium roads can be either public or 
private.  Sanitary sewer and water supply are public in both.  Storm water 
detention can vary between public and private dedication in both platted 
and condominium subdivisions.   

 
g. Common Areas – In a site condominium, general common areas, such as 

open space, entrance areas and storm drainage system, are owned by 
condominium unit owners in common as an incident of ownership of each 
unit.  In a platted subdivision, legal title to common areas is owned by a 
homeowners association.  In both forms of development, a homeowners 
association administers the common areas for the benefit of all 
homeowners equally. 

 
h. Homeowners Association – It is important in both types of development 

to incorporate a homeowners association comprised of all lot owners or unit 
owners, as the case may be, to maintain common areas, enforce 
restrictions and regulations, collect assessments and otherwise administer 
the common affairs of the development.  Because the Condominium Act 
confers special enforcement powers upon homeowner associations, which 
are not characteristic of platted subdivision associations, it is generally 
thought that the condominium form is superior from the standpoint of 
enforcing rules and regulations of the private community. 

 
i. Financial Obligations of Homeowners – In both types of development, 

the homeowners association is given the power to assess property owners 
to pay for maintenance of all common areas and other expenses of 
administration.  Failure to pay give rise to a lien on the defaulting owner’s 
homesite thus providing financial security that the common areas will be 
properly maintained for the benefit of all homeowners. 

 



PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

 
01-15-03 

j. Public Relations – The same types of public health, safety and welfare 
regulations apply to both forms of development.  Procedurally, the methods 
of applying for and obtaining plat or condominium plan approval are similar 
at the municipal level. 

 
k. Unique Characteristics of Condominium Unit Purchase – The 

Condominium Act provides special benefits for site condominium unit 
purchasers:  (i) a 9-day period after signing a purchase agreement within 
which a purchaser may withdraw without penalty; and (ii) a requirement that 
all condominium documents, supplemented by an explanatory disclosure 
statement, be furnished to all purchasers at the time of entry into a 
purchase agreement.  There are no similar benefits to purchasers provided 
under the Land Division Act. 

 
l. Local and State Review – Both development types require City Council 

approval, following a recommendation by the Planning Commission.  Unlike 
subdivisions, site condominiums do not require the review and approval of 
the Michigan Department of Consumer and Industry Services. For this 
reason it can sometimes take a substantially shorter period of time to obtain 
necessary public approvals of site condominiums than platted subdivisions.   

 
2. Reason for choosing one form versus another. 

 
Developers and municipalities often prefer the site condominium approach 
because of better control of market timing.  It should be emphasized that the 
site condominium choice never sacrifices any public protections that would 
otherwise be present in the case of a platted subdivision under similar 
circumstances. 

 
3. Conclusion. 

 
The platted subdivision approach and the newer site condominium technique 
are two different statutory methods of reaching essentially the same practical 
and legal result of dividing real estate into separate residential building sites.  
Both methods are required to meet substantially the same public health, safety 
and welfare requirements.  The site condominium is sometimes chosen over 
the platted subdivisions because of perceived benefits to purchasers, 
homeowners, and developers. 

 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Comparison of Site Condos and Plats.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 13, 2004 

5. SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Timbercrest Estates Site Condominium, 11 
units/lots proposed, South side of Wattles, West of Fernleigh, Section 24 – R-1C 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed Timbercrest Estates Site Condominium.  Mr. Miller noted that the 
Planning Department recognizes the potential for future development on parcels 
to the south and west, and the Planning Department has worked with the 
petitioner to create a layout that would include a stub street to the south property 
line that would allow for the extension of further development.  Mr. Miller reported 
that it is the recommendation of the Planning Department to approve the 
preliminary site condominium plan as submitted.  
 
Mr. Chamberlain said the Planning Commission should be advised on the 
potential development of surrounding properties in relation to proposed projects.  
Mr. Chamberlain noted there is a potential curb cut on Wattles Road should the 
property to the west of the proposed development be developed, and it is very 
important to the Commission how that property to the west might be developed.   
 
Mr. Miller said his research showed the property to the west as an old outlot that 
runs one-half mile to the south and the majority of the property is owned by the 
State of Michigan.  Mr. Miller reported that the City has a long history of asking 
petitioners to provide information on potential development of surrounding 
properties, but there is no requirement.  He noted there is a requirement in the 
Subdivision Ordinance to provide information on potential development of large 
tracts of unplatted land.  Mr. Miller apologized for the Planning Department’s 
error in not providing information on the potential development of the 160-foot 
wide property to the west.  Mr. Miller said the matter was discussed with the 
petitioner, and indicated the petitioner may be able to address it further.  He said 
the Planning Department could prepare alternate layouts for the surrounding 
area for a future study meeting, should the Commission desire.  Mr. Miller said 
the City should provide a means for future development in the rear portions that 
front Fernleigh. 
 
Mr. Chamberlain pointed out that the Planning Department should have on file 
how this particular piece of property could be developed before the item is 
forwarded to the City Council for review and approval.   
 
Discussion continued on the potential development of the property to the west 
with respect to different design layouts, emergency access, additional access 
points, and a boulevard entrance.   
 
Nader Wehbe of Beckman Wehbe Corp., 25775 W. Ten Mile Road, Southfield, 
and Ben Gill of Chesterfield Building, 31125 Westwood, Farmington Hills, were 
present.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 13, 2004 

Mr. Wehbe commented on the access situation and alternate layouts.  He said 
he worked closely with the Planning Department, and it is the preference of the 
Planning Department to provide the stub road because it would create many 
possibilities to extend the road for future development.  
 
Mr. Gill stated that negotiations with the owner to purchase the property to the 
west were unsuccessful.   
 
Chair Waller opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Claude Vidal of 2506 E. Wattles Road, Troy, was present.  Mr. Vidal is the owner of 
the property to the west and has lived there for 52 years.  He said that is the reason 
he asked such an exorbitant purchase price.  Mr. Vidal said he does not appreciate 
the Commission dissecting his property and telling him how it should be developed.  
Mr. Vidal said there is a retention pond on the DNR strip, and asked if he would 
really have to look out his front window at the proposed project’s retention pond that 
would be located directly next door and in the front of his house.  Mr. Vidal stated 
that he had a speech prepared but implied he was too emotional to present it.   
 
Stephen Mounteer of 3845 Fernleigh Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Mounteer said 
his home is at the southeast corner of the proposed development.  Mr. Mounteer 
expressed concerns with the potential traffic and safety issues that would result 
from the proposed development.  He said currently it is almost impossible to exit 
onto Wattles Road, in either direction, during morning traffic.  He expressed 
concerns with the potential widening of Wattles Road, and noted that the proposed 
development is at the narrowest part of the Wattles Road.  Mr. Mounteer said he 
would like to see lower density on the development or improvement to the traffic 
flow from the property.   
 
Pat O’Donnell of 3951 Fernleigh, Troy, was present.  Ms. O’Donnell expressed her 
objection to the proposed development because it appears to be too high of a 
density for the space available, and she believes it would take away from the 
atmosphere of the neighborhood.  Ms. O’Donnell also asked for information on the 
widening of Wattles Road to five lanes. 
 
Mr. Miller replied that the ultimate right of way for Wattles Road is 120 feet wide, 
which would accommodate a five-lane road.  Mr. Miller informed Ms. O’Donnell to 
contact the Engineering Department for the improvement schedule for Wattles 
Road.   
 
Max Akins of 2545 E. Wattles Road, Troy, was present.  Mr. Akins said he does not 
want to look at a retention pond across from his house, which is where the 
proposed retention pond would be located.  He asked how the City would widen 
Wattles Road at that particular point and expressed concerns with the remaining 
frontage of his home.  
 
A short discussion followed on the future widening of Wattles Road.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 13, 2004 

Mr. Wehbe responded to the concerns expressed on the retention pond.  He said 
the proposed retention basin is 3 feet high with a 1:6 slope, unfenced and well 
landscaped.  Mr. Wehbe said the retention pond would look like a depression on 
the ground, and would fill up with water only during rain events.  Mr. Wehbe 
confirmed the detention pond would be conveyed to the City for maintenance 
purposes. 
 
Chair Waller announced that any drainage concerns should be brought to the 
attention of the Planning Department or Engineering Department.   
 
Mr. Strat asked if the petitioner proposed to do the landscaping as indicated on the 
plan, approximately 4 feet deep. 
 
Mr. Wehbe answered in the affirmative.   
 
Mr. Vleck directed comments to the resident who owns the property to the west.  
He said the reason the Commission would like to be advised of future development 
is that should the property be sold, the Commission must take into consideration 
what may happen in the future, and that the Commission tries to design as best it 
can for future development.  The Commission’s concern in looking at the property 
to west is whether or not the street layout would accommodate possible future 
developments.   
 
Mr. Littman requested an explanation on the location of the retention basin. 
 
Mr. Wehbe responded that the property is considered fairly level, and the retention 
basin is best positioned at the outlet in the corner of the property.  He said also that 
its location near a public road is best for overflow purposes.  Mr. Wehbe said that 
everything on site would stay on sight, inclusive of landscaping and trees, and the 
run-off water would be collected in the underground storm system.   
 
Mr. Schultz apologized to the property owner to the west if there was a 
misunderstanding.  He said the Commission is not indicating that his property must 
be developed.  Mr. Schultz explained that it is in the best, long-term interest of the 
property owner that he/she is not left with an undevelopable piece of property.   
 
Mr. Strat asked if the Planning Department received any specific comments on the 
proposed development from the Environmental Specialist.   
 
Mr. Miller replied that the only comment from the Environmental Specialist is that 
there are no wetlands or flood plain issues.   
 
Chair Waller asked that the motion reflect the comments of the petitioner that the 
trees along the property line would be saved, and that should rear yard drain 
routing result in tree loss, the petitioner would come back before the Planning 
Commission. 
 
The floor was closed. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 13, 2004 

Resolution # PC-2004-07-075 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council, that 
the Preliminary Site Plan (Section 34.30.00 Unplatted One-Family Residential 
Development), as requested for Timbercrest Estates Site Condominium, including 
11 units, located south of Wattles Road and west of Fernleigh Road, Section 24, 
within the R-1C zoning district be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. That an adjacent property plat layout for the properties to the south and to 

the west be on file at the Planning Department before the item goes to City 
Council. 

2. That the drainage of this property to the properties to the east that are 
developed is engineered such that there are no water flows that create 
standing water in the properties to the east. 

3. The tree survey lists a number of trees that are not the kind of trees the City 
of Troy wants, and those trees that do meet the requirement of being a good 
tree, on the property lines specifically, that every effort be made to do the 
underground utility work without cutting roots and maybe the 
recommendation would be not to do any rear yard underground utility work, 
but make it all down Timbercrest. 

4. If there are trees to be destroyed, the item needs to come back to see how 
best the City and the petitioner can get together and save as many trees as 
possible. 

 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Khan, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Schultz proposed that the motion be amended to reflect that the petitioner is 
required to bring back the site plan for approval should there be any significant 
change to the site plan. 
 
Mr. Chamberlain asked for a legal opinion on the proposed amendment to the 
motion. 
 
Mr. Motzny said the Commission could put the language in the motion but, in his 
opinion, City Council is not required to honor the request because the motion is 
only a recommendation to City Council. 
 











1

Kathy Czarnecki

From: Mary F Redden
Sent: Wednesday, August 18, 2004 10:00 AM
To: Kathy Czarnecki
Subject: FW: Timbercrest Estates

Hi, Kathy~

The following email is going to be attached to your Agenda item for Timbercrest Estates.  Will you 
please include this in your .pdf file to the Clerk's Office?  Thanks~

Mary Redden
Admin. Assistant to the City Manager
City of Troy
(248) 524-3329

-----Original Message-----
From: Jean-Claude Vidal [mailto:jcvidalus@yahoo.com]
Sent: Tuesday, August 17, 2004 10:40 PM
To: 000schilling@ameritech.net
Cc: dave@lambert.net; talk2cristina@aol.com; david@eisenbacher.org;
mfhowryl@umich.edu; stinejm@wwnet.net; szerlagaj@ci.troy.mi.us;
millermf@ci.troy.mi.us
Subject: Timbercrest Estates

Dear Councilmembers:

I was to be on vacation the week of August 9 when the
Timbercrest Estates, a condominium development, was
originally scheduled to be reviewed. I rescheduled my
vacation and it now conflicts with the August 23
review date. I hope to be back in time to attend the
council meeting, but in case I’m not, I am submitting
this letter as my public comment of record.

I would like to express some worries, concerns and
disappointments to you, the officials of this fair
city.

I am a fifty three year resident of this community,
long before Troy was a city. I have seen many changes:
sod farms turned into subdivisions, corn fields turned
into parking lots, fruit orchards becoming office
plazas. With each change, the city became a little
colder.

I’m sure I’m not the first resident to complain to you
about the rampant, unchecked building allowed to go on
in this city. So I’ll skip the generalities and get to
specific problems.



2

Timbercrest Estates on Wattles Road. OK. So a
developer can cram eleven condominiums where once
stood two houses. I can almost accept that. What I
cannot accept is the complete indifference the
Planning Commission (including the Planning Director)
has to the concerns of long time residents. I had some
concerns in a statement I was going to make at the
meeting. Before I was allowed to speak, the Commission
rambled on for several minutes asking the developer
why he had not bought more surrounding property,
especially mine, in order to make a larger
development. Not one word of concern was said about
the house or family that had been there for over half
a century.

I’m sure I am not alone in telling you, that in my
opinion, the city planners do a great disservice to
this community.

When the Planning Commission asked the developer’s
engineer if there was a water problem on the site, he,
of course, said no. The Planning Director, when asked
specific questions by several commissioners, could not
provide accurate answers. He admitted that no wetland
studies had been conducted at the site. When I and
several neighbors wanted to dispute the water problem,
the chair person would not recognize us, we could not
speak.

The following day I went to the Engineering
department, expressing my concerns about the flooding
at the rear of this site, asking if this, the rear of
the property, should not be the obvious location for
the retention pond, since for five decades I have seen
standing water in the back of this property. They
assured me that they require the development to have
proper drainage before work can begin.

For the last two weeks, before City Council’s final
approval, tons and tons of fill has been dumped on the
property adjacent to mine. 

I would like to know who will be responsible if and
when my acreage becomes a flood plain?

The developer mentioned he plans to save as many trees
as possible. There are no trees worth saving on the
property adjacent to mine. I’m requesting that the
developer be required to plant a green belt on the
west side of the development.

Thank you for this opportunity to voice my opinion and



3

as stated before, if I am not able to attend the City
Commission meeting on August 23, I would like this
letter to be  submitted as my public comment for the
record.

Jean-Claude Vidal
2506 E. Wattles Rd.
Troy, MI 48085
248-689-7284

__________________________________
Do you Yahoo!?
Yahoo! Mail is new and improved - Check it out!
http://promotions.yahoo.com/new_mail



 1

August 17, 2004 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Steven J. Vandette, Acting Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
 William J. Huotari, Acting City Engineer 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY SITE CONDOMINIUM REVIEW – Proposed Presidential 

Place Site Condominium, 5 units/lots proposed, West side of John R 
Road, North of Square Lake Road, Section 2 – R-1D 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
At the July 13, 2004 Planning Commission Regular Meeting, the Planning Commission 
adopted the following resolution and conditions: 

 
Resolution # PC-2004-07-074 
 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council, that 
the Preliminary Site Plan (Section 34.30.00 Unplatted One-Family Residential 
Development), as requested for Presidential Place Site Condominium, including 5 
units, located on the west side of John R Road and north of Square Lake Road, 
Section 2, within the R-1D zoning district be granted, subject to the following 
conditions: 
 
1. Construction of a 5-foot wide concrete sidewalk, designed and constructed to 

City standards, within the 5-foot wide sidewalk easement. 
2. The petitioner obtain an MDEQ Wetlands Permit or Jurisdictional Wetland 

Determination Document stating authoritative status, prior to Final Approval. 
3. The petitioner create a general common area to replace the recreation 

easement that provides access to the pond and gazebo. 
4. That all existing illegal trees on the property will be removed. 
5. That the note on the drawing that states “sump pump discharge directly to 

pond for Units 4 and 5 will be removed. 
6. That the design recommendations provide that the petitioner will duly note all 

drainage concern for neighboring properties and plan for adequate drainage. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Littman, Schultz, Vleck, Waller 
No: Strat 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Khan, Wright 
MOTION CARRIED 

HolmesBA
Text Box
F-11



 2

City Management agrees with the Planning Commission recommendation for approval, 
however City Management does not agree with all of the conditions of approval.  
Condition #1 has been met, as the petitioner has added the required sidewalk to the site 
plan.  Conditions # 2 and 6 are engineering design considerations that will be addressed 
prior to Final Site Condominium Approval.  Condition #3 is no longer relevant, as the 
petitioner has removed the recreation easement along the southern boundary of the site 
and proposes only a landscape, surface drainage and utility easement.  The City does 
not have the authority to impose Condition #4, as the Landscape Design and Tree 
Preservation Standards do not require the removal of existing trees.  Condition #5 has 
been met, as the petitioner has removed the note related to sump pump discharge of 
units 4 and 5. 
 
City Management recommends approval of the Preliminary Site Condominium Plan as 
submitted.  Two resolutions have been provided to City Council for consideration, 
Resolution A (as recommended by City Management) and Resolution B (as 
recommended by Planning Commission)   
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
Beatris Haddad and Joseph Haddad own the property and are the applicants. 
 
Location of subject property: 
The property is located on the west side of John R Road, south of South Boulevard and 
north of Square Lake Road in section 2. 
 
Size of subject parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 2.236 acres in area. 
 
Description of proposed development: 
The applicant is proposing to develop a 5-unit site condominium.  
 
The applicant submitted an alternate layout for the development, as requested by the 
Planning Department (Layout “C”).  The proposed 60-foot wide public road stubs at the 
southern property line, creating a stub street and future connection to the south.  The 
property to the south appears to be comprised almost entirely of MDEQ-regulated 
wetlands.  The layout yields 5 units.  Because there is limited potential to develop the 
property to the south, the Planning Department does not recommend approval of the 
alternate layout. 
 
Current use of subject property: 
The property is presently vacant. 
 
Current use of adjacent parcels: 
North: City of Troy Fire Station No. 5. 
 
South: Vacant. 



 3

East: Vacant. 
 
West:  Single family residential. 
 
Current zoning classification: 
The property is currently zoned R-1D One Family Residential. 
 
Zoning classification of adjacent parcels:  
North: R-1D One Family Residential. 
 
South: R-1D One Family Residential. 
 
East: R-1D One Family Residential. 
 
West: R-1D One Family Residential. 
 
Future Land Use Designation: 
The property is designated on the Future Land Use Plan as Low Density Residential. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Compliance with area and bulk requirements: 
Note:  The applicant is utilizing the Lot Averaging Option, which permits the reduction of 
lot area and lot width by up to 10% on some lots. 
 
Lot Area:  7,650 square feet with lot averaging, with an average size of at least 8,500 
square feet.  
 
Lot Width:  67.5 feet with lot averaging. 
 
Height:  2 stories or 25 feet. 
 
Setbacks: Front:  25 feet. 
  Side (least one):  8 feet. 
  Side (total two):  20 feet.  
  Rear:  40 feet. 
 
Minimum Floor Area:  1,000 square feet. 
 
Maximum Lot Coverage:  30%. 
 
The applicant meets the area and bulk requirements of the R-1D One Family 
Residential District. 
 
Off-street parking and loading requirements:  
The applicant will be required to provide 2 off-street parking spaces per unit. 
 



 4

Environmental provisions, including Tree Preservation Plan: 
A Preliminary Tree Preservation Plan was submitted as part of the application. 
 
Stormwater detention: 
The applicant is proposing an on-site detention basin in the southeast corner of the 
property. 
 
Natural features and floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there is a pond in the southwest corner of the 
parcel.  In addition, there is a small area of potential wetlands along the southern 
property line. 
 
Subdivision Control Ordinance, Article IV Design Standards: 
 

Blocks:  Access to the site condominium will be provided by private street with 
access on John R. 
 
Lots:  All units meet the minimum area and bulk requirements of the Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 
Topographic Conditions:  The site slopes upward approximately 12 feet from the 
east side to the west side of the property. 
 
Streets:  The 28-foot wide paved street is within a 40-foot wide private street 
easement. 

 
Sidewalks:  The applicant is proposing 5-foot wide sidewalk easement on the 
south side of the street.  The north side of the street will not be fronted by houses 
and therefore does not require a sidewalk.  The site plan does not indicate a 
constructed sidewalk, which is required.  An 8-foot wide sidewalk is proposed for 
the west side of John R.  A 5-foot wide asphalt pathway is proposed along the 
southern property line. 

 
Utilities:  The parcel is served by public water and sewer. 

 
Easements:  The applicant proposes a 40-foot wide private street easement and 
a 5-foot wide sidewalk easement outside of and abutting the private street 
easement.  A 15-foot wide non-access easement is proposed along John R.  A 
20-foot wide easement for landscape, surface drainage, and utilities is proposed 
along the southern property line.   

 
DEPARTMENTAL REVIEW 
 
The following is a summary of comments generated during the City of Troy 
Departmental Review process: 
 



 5

Building Department 
No comments provided. 
 
Engineering Department 
Must provide retention not detention.  Drainage on John R is not adequate.  Wrap water 
main around cul-de-sac. 
 
Environmental Specialist 
No floodplain issues.  Island in cul-de-sac could be a bio-retention area to collect 
stormwater runoff.  MDEQ letter from October 17, 1996 is not valid anymore.  MDEQ 
letter is unclear as to what parcel determination was made for.  The delineated wetlands 
are contiguous to a +/- 30-acre wetland.  Must apply for an MDEQ permit, or provide a 
jurisdictional wetland determination document from the MDEQ stating authoritative 
status prior to final approval.   
 
Department of Public Works 
No floodplain or brownfield issues.  Potential for rain garden in the traffic island. 
 
Fire Department 
OK. 
 
Transportation Engineer 
No comments. 
 
Parks and Recreation Department 
Preliminary Tree Preservation Plan approved. 
 
Road Commission of Oakland County 
No comments provided. 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Unplatted Residential Development Levels of Approval 
3. Comparison Between Site Condominiums and Plats 
4. Planning Commission Minutes from July 13, 2004. 
5. Letter from S & R Environmental Consulting, dated June 9, 2004. 

 
 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ Presidential Place Site Condominium 

 
 

G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Presidential Place Site Condo\Presidential Place CC Preliminary Approval.doc 
 













UNPLATTED RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT LEVELS OF APPROVAL 
 

Preliminary Plan Approval  
A sign is placed on the property informing the public of the proposed development. 
Adjacent property owners are notified by mail 
Public meeting held by Planning Commission for review and recommendation to City Council 
City Council reviews and approvals plan 
 
The following items are addressed at Preliminary Plan Approval: 

• Street Pattern, including potential stub streets for future development 
• Potential development pattern for adjacent properties 
• Fully dimensioned residential parcel layout, including proposed building configurations 

o Number of lots 
o Building setbacks 
o Lot dimensions 
o Locations of easements 

• Preliminary sanitary sewer, storm sewer, and water main layout 
• Environmental Impact Statement (if required) 
• Location(s) of wetlands on the property 
 

Final Plan Approval 
Notice sign is posted on site 
City Council review and approval of: 

• Final Plan 
• Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) 
 

The following items are addressed at Final Plan Approval: 
• Fully dimensioned plans of the total property proposed for development, prepared by 

registered Civil Engineer or Land Surveyor 
• Corners of all proposed residential parcels and other points as necessary to determine 

that the potential parcels and building configurations will conform with ordinance 
requirements 

• Warranty Deeds and Easement documents, in recordable form for all ROW. and 
easements which are to be conveyed to the public 

• Construction plans for all utilities and street improvements, prepared in accordance 
with City Engineering Design Standards: 

o Sanitary and Storm sewer 
o Water mains 
o Detention / Retention basins 
o Grading and rear yard drainage 
o Paving and widening lanes 
o Sidewalk and driveway approaches 

• Approval from other government agencies involved with the development 
• Verification of wetlands and M.D.E.Q. permit if necessary 
• Financial guarantees to insure the construction of required improvements and the 

placement of proper property and parcel monuments and markers shall be furnished 
by the petitioner prior to submittal of the Final Plan to the City Council for review and 
approval 

• Floor Plans and Elevations of the proposed residential units 



PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

 
01-15-03 

 
COMPARISON BETWEEN SITE CONDOMINIUMS AND PLATS   

 
The site condominium is a form of development that closely resembles the more 
traditional form of land subdivision known as a “subdivision” or a “plat”.  Although both 
types of development have the same basic characteristics, site condominiums are a 
newer form of development and are not, therefore, as familiar to homebuyers and 
neighbors as the more customary plats.  An important concept related to any type of 
condominium development is that condominiums are a form of OWNERSHIP, not a type 
of physical development. 
 
The following summary is intended to compare and contrast the two types of 
development. 
 

1. Comparisons between site condominiums and plats. 
 

a. Statutory Basis – Site condominium subdivisions first became possible 
under the Michigan Condominium Act, which was adopted by the Michigan 
Legislature in 1978.  Plats are created under the Michigan Land Division 
Act, formerly the Michigan Subdivision Control Act of 1967. 

 
b. Nature and Extent of Property Ownership – An individual homesite 

building in a platted subdivision is called a “lot”.  In a site condominium, 
each separate building site or homesite is referred to by the Condominium 
Act as a “unit”.  Each unit is surrounded by “limited common area”, which is 
defined as common elements reserved in the master deed for the exclusive 
use of less than all of the co-owners”.  The remaining area in the site 
condominium is “general common area”, defined as the common elements 
reserved in the master deed for the use of all of the co-owners.  The nature 
and extent of ownership of a platted lot and a condominium unit, with the 
associated limited common area, are essentially equivalent from both a 
practical and legal standpoint. 

 
c. Compliance with Zoning Ordinance – Both site condominiums and 

subdivisions are required to comply with the minimum requirements of the 
City of Troy Zoning Ordinance for area and bulk, including minimum lot 
size, lot width, setbacks and building height.  Essentially, site 
condominiums and subdivisions in Troy must “look” similar.   

 
d. Creation/Legal Document – A site condominium is established by 

recording in the records of the county in which the land is located a master 
deed, bylaws and condominium subdivision plan (“plan”).  A platted 
subdivision is created by the recording of a subdivision plat (“plat”), usually 
coupled with a declaration of easements, covenants, conditions and 
restrictions   The plan depicts the condominium units and limited and 
general common areas, while the plat defines the lots.  Both have 



PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

 
01-15-03 

substantially the same geometrical appearance and characteristics.  The 
master deed and bylaws on the one hand and the declaration on the other 
have essentially the same functions with respect to the site condominium or 
platted subdivision, namely, establishment of:  (i) building and use 
restrictions; (ii) rights of homeowners to use common areas; (iii) financial 
obligations of owners; and, (iv) procedures for operation of the subdivision. 

 
e. Home Maintenance and Real Estate Taxes – Each unit and lot, as 

respectively depicted on a condominium plan or subdivision plat, together 
with any home located thereon, are required to be individually maintained 
by the owner.  Likewise, separate real estate taxes are assessed on each 
condominium unit or platted lot and paid individually by each homeowner. 

 
f. Roads and Utilities – In most plats, roads are dedicated to the public and 

maintained by the county road commission or the municipality in which the 
subdivision is located.  Site condominium roads can be either public or 
private.  Sanitary sewer and water supply are public in both.  Storm water 
detention can vary between public and private dedication in both platted 
and condominium subdivisions.   

 
g. Common Areas – In a site condominium, general common areas, such as 

open space, entrance areas and storm drainage system, are owned by 
condominium unit owners in common as an incident of ownership of each 
unit.  In a platted subdivision, legal title to common areas is owned by a 
homeowners association.  In both forms of development, a homeowners 
association administers the common areas for the benefit of all 
homeowners equally. 

 
h. Homeowners Association – It is important in both types of development 

to incorporate a homeowners association comprised of all lot owners or unit 
owners, as the case may be, to maintain common areas, enforce 
restrictions and regulations, collect assessments and otherwise administer 
the common affairs of the development.  Because the Condominium Act 
confers special enforcement powers upon homeowner associations, which 
are not characteristic of platted subdivision associations, it is generally 
thought that the condominium form is superior from the standpoint of 
enforcing rules and regulations of the private community. 

 
i. Financial Obligations of Homeowners – In both types of development, 

the homeowners association is given the power to assess property owners 
to pay for maintenance of all common areas and other expenses of 
administration.  Failure to pay give rise to a lien on the defaulting owner’s 
homesite thus providing financial security that the common areas will be 
properly maintained for the benefit of all homeowners. 

 



PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

 
01-15-03 

j. Public Relations – The same types of public health, safety and welfare 
regulations apply to both forms of development.  Procedurally, the methods 
of applying for and obtaining plat or condominium plan approval are similar 
at the municipal level. 

 
k. Unique Characteristics of Condominium Unit Purchase – The 

Condominium Act provides special benefits for site condominium unit 
purchasers:  (i) a 9-day period after signing a purchase agreement within 
which a purchaser may withdraw without penalty; and (ii) a requirement that 
all condominium documents, supplemented by an explanatory disclosure 
statement, be furnished to all purchasers at the time of entry into a 
purchase agreement.  There are no similar benefits to purchasers provided 
under the Land Division Act. 

 
l. Local and State Review – Both development types require City Council 

approval, following a recommendation by the Planning Commission.  Unlike 
subdivisions, site condominiums do not require the review and approval of 
the Michigan Department of Consumer and Industry Services. For this 
reason it can sometimes take a substantially shorter period of time to obtain 
necessary public approvals of site condominiums than platted subdivisions.   

 
2. Reason for choosing one form versus another. 

 
Developers and municipalities often prefer the site condominium approach 
because of better control of market timing.  It should be emphasized that the 
site condominium choice never sacrifices any public protections that would 
otherwise be present in the case of a platted subdivision under similar 
circumstances. 

 
3. Conclusion. 

 
The platted subdivision approach and the newer site condominium technique 
are two different statutory methods of reaching essentially the same practical 
and legal result of dividing real estate into separate residential building sites.  
Both methods are required to meet substantially the same public health, safety 
and welfare requirements.  The site condominium is sometimes chosen over 
the platted subdivisions because of perceived benefits to purchasers, 
homeowners, and developers. 

 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Comparison of Site Condos and Plats.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 13, 2004 

4. SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Presidential Place Site Condominium, 5 units/lots 
proposed, West side of John R, North of Square Lake, Section 2 – R-1D 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed Presidential Place Site Condominium.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the 
recommendation of the Planning Department to approve the preliminary site 
condominium plan as submitted, subject to three conditions:  (1) construction of a 
5-foot wide concrete sidewalk, designed and constructed to City standards, 
within the 5-foot wide sidewalk easement; (2) that the petitioner obtain an MDEQ 
Wetlands Permit or Jurisdictional Wetland Determination Document stating 
authoritative status prior to Final Approval; and (3) that the petitioner create a 
general common area to replace the recreation easement that provides access to 
the pond and gazebo. 
 
Mr. Schultz questioned the limited space remaining with respect to the 25-foot 
front setback and the required 5-foot sidewalk, and asked if the building could be 
pushed back to eliminate the possibility of parked cars on the sidewalk.   
 
Mr. Miller replied that the 25-foot setback is the City’s current standard. 
 
Mr. Chamberlain expressed concern with the designated trees on the preliminary 
tree preservation plan.  He said he would not vote favorably on the site plan 
unless the trees were removed from the tree preservation plan.   
 
Mr. Miller said the preliminary tree plan is in essence only a tree inventory, and it 
is at the discretion of the Commission to remove the trees from the tree 
preservation plan at this time.  Mr. Miller noted the petitioner would be required to 
remove the trees from the plan prior to getting final site plan approval.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain expressed concern that a potential dam could be created with 
the fill dirt that would be necessary for the proposed development, and said this 
is a good example that final grading plans should be required for site plan 
approval.   
 
Mr. Miller replied that the petitioner’s engineer would address this concern.   
 
Mr. Strat questioned why the recommendations of the City’s Environmental 
Specialist have not been incorporated in the site plan; i.e., bio retention in the 
center aisle.  He said the plan shows no creativity with respect to the retention 
pond. 
 
Chair Waller questioned the location of the required 8-foot sidewalk.   
 
Mr. Miller clarified that the 8-foot sidewalk is along John R and the 5-foot 
sidewalk is within the interior roads.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 13, 2004 

Chair Waller shared information with respect to new ideas on storm water 
detention.  He proposed that the petitioner contact the Planning Department with 
respect to incorporating the new ideas in the development of the project’s storm 
water detention.   
 
There was a brief discussion on the site plan designation of “detention” and the 
Engineering Department’s recommendation of a “retention” pond.  Mr. Miller said 
he would check the original Engineering Department review and confirm the 
correct designation.   
 
Bill Mosher of Apex Engineering, 47745 Van Dyke, Shelby Township, was 
present on behalf of the petitioner.  Mr. Mosher confirmed that the site plan 
shows the sidewalk easement on the outside of the 40-foot private road 
easement.  Mr. Mosher said a wetlands permit would be obtained, and noted that 
a previous MDEQ letter of no authority had expired.  Mr. Mosher said the plan 
would be revised to include a general common area instead of the recreational 
component.  To address the setback concerns, Mr. Mosher said it would be 
possible to impose a 30-foot setback on Lots 1 and 2, but not on Lots 3, 4, and 5.  
Mr. Mosher said the designated trees would be removed from the tree 
preservation plan.  He also addressed the grading issues and stated he would 
work with the Engineering Department to insure that the detention is sufficient.  
Further, Mr. Mosher said he would work on a creative concept for the proposed 
detention pond. 
 
Mr. Miller reported that the Engineering Department’s review specifically states 
“retention”, not “detention”.  The Engineering Department’s review states there is 
a lack of drainage capacity on John R and notes there are no planned 
improvements until the year 2008 or later. 
 
Discussion followed with respect to maintaining the pond as a retention pond, 
once improvements are completed on John R. 
 
Mr. Mosher said he would like to keep the pond dry and the building envelopes 
as large as possible, and noted there is a detention facility at the fire station.  Mr. 
Mosher said he would work with the Engineering Department on a complete 
evaluation of the storm water detention. 
 
Mr. Strat asked if the petitioner would come back to the Planning Commission for 
resubmission of site plan approval should the preliminary engineering 
requirements change.   
 
Mr. Mosher answered in the affirmative.  He stated that a condition of the 
Condominium Act is to review some forms of drainage and lot configurations.  
Mr. Mosher said that should the Engineering Department not waive the 
requirement for a retention facility, there would be changes in the layout and it 
would be necessary to re-evaluate the plan.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 13, 2004 

Chair Waller asked if it is reasonable to have the City review the fire station 
retention pond at the same time.   
 
Mr. Miller replied that a request could be made to the Engineering Department.  
 
Discussion continued on the grades.   
 
Mr. Mosher said he would do whatever is necessary to get the project going; i.e., 
bio swales, catch basin, etc.   
 
Chair Waller opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Leonid Shashlo of 6336 Atkins Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Shashlo voiced his 
objections to the proposed development.  He said Unit #5 of the proposed 
development is too close to his property.  Mr. Shashlo expressed concern for the 
young children playing near two roads and the potential to destroy the existing 
environment and wildlife.   
 
Jerry Slywka of 6322 Atkins Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Slywka has been a 
Troy resident for 25 years.  Mr. Slywka bought the property in 1969 and sold the 
property to Mr. Haddad approximately six or seven years ago.  Mr. Slywka said 
Mr. Haddad promised to build two nice houses on the property for his sons.  Mr. 
Slywka protested strongly to the proposed development because of potential 
danger to the existing environment, nature and wildlife.  Mr. Slywka voiced 
concerns that the sump pumps would be connected to the pond.  He asked that 
the 17-foot pond not be touched because it provides clean water for his children 
and grandchildren to swim in.  Mr. Slywka questioned the logic of the City that it 
placed such strong restrictions on the quality of water when he created the pond, 
but has no interest in the water quality with the proposed development.  Mr. 
Slywka said the proposed development would affect his life and the lives of his 
neighbors, children and grandchildren.  Further, Mr. Slywka questioned the size 
of the lots in relation to the size of the homes, and encouraged the City to impose 
soil and boring tests on the property.   
 
Chair Waller explained that the petitioner is proposing to create a pond for 
aesthetic pleasure and the pond would not be used for water sports or anything 
similar.  Chair Waller confirmed that a wetlands report would be provided.  He 
also stated that a natural features ordinance proposed several years ago was not 
passed because the majority of residents were in opposition to it.   
 
Mr. Vleck clarified that (1) there is no rezoning request on the subject parcel; (2) 
the proposed development is on the petitioner’s property and not on anybody 
else’s property; (3) the Planning Commission does not have the authority to 
deviate from the requirements set forth by the City; and (4) the petitioner has met 
all of the City codes and requirements. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 13, 2004 

Kinette Bayliss, owner of 2.5 acres of property located to the south of the 
proposed development, Sidwell No. 88-20-02-427-007, was present.  Ms. Bayliss 
is very concerned about the development of the property.  She said it was her 
understanding that the property would remain as two residential lots after it was 
sold.  She questioned how the property could go from two residential lots to five 
lots without the property getting rezoned.  Ms. Bayliss said her concerns are 
similar to the concerns expressed by Mr. Slywka; i.e., sump pump run-off into the 
pond and the clean water in the pond for recreational purposes.  She said that 
she and Mr. Slywka developed the pond to be what it is and it is very important to 
them that the pond water remains the same.  She asked for an explanation why 
the City would go from all wetlands to constructing condominiums.   
 
Mr. Miller provided a brief explanation of the R-1D zoning district and its 
requirements and provisions for development. 
 
Ms. Bayliss asked if there was a capacity requirement for the use of the pond.   
 
Chair Waller announced that the floor at tonight’s meeting is the wrong forum to 
discuss the pond.  He said that any concern about the quality of the pond and 
whether or not the sump pumps from Lots 4 and 5 might be directed toward the 
pond is something that should be negotiated with the property owner.  Chair 
Waller said that concerns should be brought to the attention of the City Council.  
He explained that the decision made tonight by the Planning Commission is only 
a recommendation to the City Council for its review and approval.  Chair Waller 
stated that Mr. Haddad owns part of the pond and Ms. Bayliss can only wish that 
the future property owners would have her passion for its quality.  Chair Waller 
assisted Ms. Bayliss in locating the retention pond on the proposed site plan in 
relation to her property.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain said his sump pump drains into the storm system, and he 
presumes that is how sump pumps are in operation today. 
 
Mr. Miller agreed.  Mr. Miller further advised the Planning Commission to strike 
the notation on the site plan that relates to the discharge of the sump pumps to 
Lots 4 and 5.  He stated that the information is extraneous at this time.   
 
Priscilla King of 6310 Atkins, Troy, was present.  Ms. King said the Planning 
Commission informed her the property could not be developed because it was 
wetlands.  Ms. King strongly objected to the proposed development, and stated 
that her husband spent years trying to improve the property. 
 
The floor was closed. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 13, 2004 

Resolution # PC-2004-07-074 
 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council, that 
the Preliminary Site Plan (Section 34.30.00 Unplatted One-Family Residential 
Development), as requested for Presidential Place Site Condominium, including 5 
units, located on the west side of John R Road and north of Square Lake Road, 
Section 2, within the R-1D zoning district be granted, subject to the following 
conditions: 
 
1. Construction of a 5-foot wide concrete sidewalk, designed and constructed to 

City standards, within the 5-foot wide sidewalk easement. 
2. The petitioner obtain an MDEQ Wetlands Permit or Jurisdictional Wetland 

Determination Document stating authoritative status, prior to Final Approval. 
3. The petitioner create a general common area to replace the recreation 

easement that provides access to the pond and gazebo. 
4. That all existing illegal trees on the property will be removed. 
5. That the note on the drawing that states “sump pump discharge directly to 

pond for Units 4 and 5 will be removed. 
6. That the design recommendations provide that the petitioner will duly note all 

drainage concern for neighboring properties and plan for adequate drainage. 
 
Discussion on the motion. 
 
Mr. Littman requested that the motion be amended to reflect the site plan 
designation of a “retention” pond, as recommended by the Engineering 
Department.  
 
Mr. Miller explained the difference between a detention pond and a retention 
pond.  He said detention pond water is detained and slowly released so there is 
not a quick flash of water that would overburden the storm water drainage 
system.  Retention pond water is retained and in essence is a wet pond.  Mr. 
Miller noted that not all storm water drainage systems are City owned; that the 
County owns some of the systems.   
 
Mr. Vleck recommended the site maintain a detention pond because the fire 
station has an existing detention pond and a retention pond with its standing 
water would create a risk factor for West Nile Virus.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 13, 2004 

Vote on the motion on the floor, as moved and seconded. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Littman, Schultz, Vleck, Waller 
No: Strat 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Khan, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Strat stated his reasons for not voting in favor of the motion.  He feels (1) the 
final engineering has not been provided to determine exactly the size of the 
detention pond or retention pond; (2) the wetlands report might affect the final 
layout of the design of the site and the plan might have to return to the Planning 
Commission for a second approval; (3) the plan does not protect the value of the 
adjacent property owners; and (4) there is a lack of innovative design and bio 
retention, as indicated by the City’s Environmental Specialist review comments.   
 
Members Chamberlain and Strat encouraged the residents to voice their objections 
to the City Council.   
 
Mr. Miller said the item most likely would be on the City Council agenda at their 2nd 
meeting in August or their 1st meeting in September.  Mr. Miller confirmed that 
abutting property owners would be notified. 

 





August 18, 2004 
 
 
 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Schedule Study Session to Discuss Neighborhood Compatibility Issues 
 
 
 
We received several dates from our planning consultant, Dick Carlisle when he 
would be available to meet City Council and City Staff regarding neighborhood 
compatibility issues.  The date that seems to work for the majority of Council 
Members is Tuesday, September 14, 2004 at 7:30 PM.  I recommend that we set 
a study session for September 14 with Mr. Carlisle. 
 
In addition, if I can schedule a special meeting with the Downtown Development 
Authority (DDA), we may be able to have a joint Council/DDA meeting on this date 
as well. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JS/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2004\Set Study Session 

 
 

HolmesBA
Text Box
F-12



HolmesBA
Text Box
F-13





















































August 16, 2004 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 

FROM: Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  William S. Nelson, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item:  Sole Source- Purchase of Opticom Emitters for 

Emergency Vehicles 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Fire Department recommends the City purchase forty-five (45) Opticom emitters 
from Carrier and Gable Inc., the sole provider of Opticom equipment in Michigan for 
an estimated total cost of $31,950.00.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 

The Fire department has utilized emergency vehicle traffic signal preemption for 
over 25 years.  Due to intellectual property rights, there were only two manufacturers 
of the equipment required at the traffic signals and on the emergency vehicles and 
both systems were compatible. Recently, the patents on this technology have 
expired and the two major vendors 3M and Tomar have introduced coded systems 
in which equipment is not interchangeable.    
 
In addition, other small electronic manufacturers have produced generic emitters, 
which can preempt non-coded intersections.  The sale of these units to the general 
public has caused concern within the Road Commission for Oakland County as well 
as the City administration. 
 
To eliminate the potential for unauthorized preemption of traffic signals, it is 
necessary to upgrade to one of the coded systems. Currently, Troy has 87 
intersections equipped with Opticom equipment that can be programmed to 
eliminate non-coded vehicle emitters.  The existing emitters on the fire and MFR 
vehicles are not capable of being programmed to activate the Opticom equipped 
intersections once these intersections are programmed to accept coded emitters 
only.  
  
To effect the change to a coded system, it is necessary to replace the assorted 
emitters on the fire and EMS vehicles.  3M has an exclusive sales agreement with 
the Carrier and Gable, Inc., which means we can only purchase Opticom equipment 
from them for use in Michigan.  Attached is a quote from Carrier and Gable, which 
reflects a discount of approximately 25% when the City participates in the 3M trade-
in program.  
 
BUDGET 
Funds to purchase these units are budgeted in the Fire department equipment 
account #338.7740.115 
 
 

HolmesBA
Text Box
F-14





HolmesBA
Text Box
G-02a































 
 
August 13, 2004 
 
 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From: Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 Mark Stimac, Building & Zoning Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
Subject: GROUP DAY CARE HOMES 
 
A Group Day Care Home provider, Mrs. Sharon Schafer, was recently cited by 
the Troy Building and Zoning Department for violation of the City of Troy Zoning 
Ordinance.  Mrs. Schafer operates a Group Day Care Home, which is licensed 
by the State of Michigan but is not a permitted use in the R-1C One Family 
Residential Zoning District.  Mrs. Schafer has brought this issue to the attention 
of the Planning Commission, and the Planning Commission is reviewing the 
issue.  
 
Presently Family Day Care Homes are permitted subject to special conditions in 
the R-1A through R-1E zoning districts.  Child Care Centers are permitted 
subject to special conditions or special use approval in every residential district 
and are permitted by right or special conditions in the B-1, B-2 and B-3 districts.  
 
The following definitions are provided by the Family Independence Agency of the 
State of Michigan: 

Family Day Care Home – “A private residence that the child care provider 
lives in and cares for up to six unrelated children for more than 4 weeks in 
a year when the children's parents/guardians are not immediately 
available”.   

Group Day Care Home – “A private residence that the child care provider 
lives in and cares for up to 12 unrelated children for more than 4 weeks in 
a year when the children's parents/guardians are not immediately 
available”. 

Child Care Center - A facility, other than a private residence, where child 
care is provided for 1 or more children whose parents/guardians are not 
immediately available.  Centers must be licensed if they provide care for 
more than 2 consecutive weeks per year.  Centers include public and 
private preschools, nursery schools, parent cooperative preschools, full-
day child care centers and drop in centers. 

(Source: Family Independence Agency, State of Michigan). 

HolmesBA
Text Box
G-02b



Currently there are approximately 20 Group Day Care Homes, 46 Family Day 
Care Homes, and 47 Child Day Care Centers in Troy (Source: Family 
Independence Agency, State of Michigan).  These facilities provide a child care 
capacity for 3,964 children.  It should be noted that the 20 Group Day Care 
Homes are licensed by the State of Michigan but are not permitted in the R-1A 
through R-1E zoning districts.  Therefore, all are presently operating illegally in 
Troy. 
 
The City Attorney’s Office has researched this issue and has determined that 
there is a statutory requirement for cities to permit Family Day Care Homes by 
right in single-family residential districts.  Troy complies with this requirement.  
There is no requirement that cities permit Group Day Care Homes in a single- 
family residential zoning district.  It is expected that the Planning Commission will 
continue researching this issue to decide whether to recommend amending the 
Zoning Ordinance.  
 
 

Attachments: 
1. Explanation of Group Day Care and Family Day Care licensing 
2. Lists of Family Day Care, Group Day Care and Child Care Centers in Troy 

 
 
cc: File 
 Sharon Schafer 
 
 
G:\BRENT SAVIDANT\Group Day Care Homes CC Information Item 08 13 04.doc 

























Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Final February 26, 2004 
 

1 

A Meeting of the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) was held Thursday, February 26, 2004, at 
Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road in the Council Boardroom. Chairman McGinnis called 
the meeting to order at 7:05 PM. 
 
ROLL CALL 
   PRESENT:  Chairman Donald E. McGinnis, Jr.   
     Commissioner Patrick Daugherty 
     Commissioner David Cannon 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Lori Bluhm - City Attorney, Peggy Clifton - Human Resources 

Director, Police Chief Charles Craft, Captain Edward Murphy, 
Barbara A. Holmes - Deputy City Clerk, Jeanette Menig - Human 
Resources Specialist, Police Officer Mark F. Livingston, Roxanne 
Ostrowski, Lieutenant Stephen M. Zavislak (retired), Craig Lange – 
Lange & Cholack, P.C., Christine Felts – Court Reporter – Christine 
Felts & Associates 

 
Approval of Minutes of January 22, 2004 
 
Resolution #CSC-2004-02-005 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by Daugherty 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the meeting of January 22, 2004 be APPROVED as 
presented. 
 
Yes: All-3 
 
Petitions and Communications 
 
It was the consensus of the Commission to move forward Petitions and Communications Items 
(c) Approval of Eligible List – Police Officer and (b) Request for an Act 78 Appeal Hearing – 
Police Officer – Mark F. Livingston. 
 
(c) Approval of Eligible List – Police Officer
 
Resolution #CSC-2004-02-006 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by Daugherty 
 
RESOLVED, That the Eligible List for Classification: Police Officer established on Thursday, 
January 22, 2004 and APPROVED (Resolution #CSC-2004-01-002) as presented on 
Thursday, January 22, 2004 be hereby AMENDED with the REVISED Eligible List for 
Classification: Police Officer established on Tuesday, February 24, 2004. 
 
Yes: All-3 
 
 

HolmesBA
Text Box
J-01



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Final February 26, 2004 
 

2 

(c) Request for an Act 78 Appeal Hearing – Police Officer Mark F. Livingston
 
Chair McGinnis noted that Police Officer Livingston does not have legal counsel and advised 
him that it is within his right to seek counsel. 
 
Police Officer Mark F. Livingston’s request for an Act 78 appeal hearing challenges the 
rejection of his application for the rank of Lieutenant within the Troy Police Department. Police 
Officer Livingston maintains that he meets the requirements because the posting does not 
specify that the two years of lower rank must be served with the City of Troy. Officer Livingston 
advised that as a sergeant for the City of Detroit, he tested for lieutenant prior to coming to Troy 
and would have been promoted to lieutenant in the City of Detroit in July 1998. 
 
Mr. Lange advised that Section 12.2 of the State Statute clearly states that two years in the 
next lower rank in the police department is required, and  5 years service in the police 
department is required, and that the petitioner’s request should be rejected based on this 
section. 
 
Chair McGinnis asked the petitioner whether he believes he qualifies under the act or the 
posting. 
 
Police Officer Livingston believes he qualifies based upon the posting. 
 
Mr. Lange noted that the posting includes language stating “pursuant to Act 78”. 
 
Commissioner Daugherty asked Police Officer Livingston when he believes he became eligible. 
 
Police Officer Livingston responded that he has two years as police sergeant with the City of 
Detroit and five years as a police officer with Troy. 
 
Mr. Lange restated that state statute requires two years in a lower rank and that a candidate 
cannot jump from police officer to sergeant. 
 
Chair McGinnis believes the statute should be interpreted to mean that the rank of sergeant is 
in the City of Troy. 
 
Commissioner Cannon agreed that the law is clear and asked whether there is any case law 
that interprets this section differently. 
 
Mr. Lange replied that there is no case law and restated that the language is clear in this 
matter. However, he noted that the petitioner does not disagree with the statute and that his 
appeal is based upon the posting. 
 
Commissioner Daugherty asked whether an exception has ever been made within the Troy 
Police Department. 
 
Chief Craft replied that this appeal is the first encountered by Troy’s Police Department. 
 
Commissioner Cannon sees ambiguity in the statute posting and asked whether any 
exceptions have been made in other jurisdictions. 



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Final February 26, 2004 
 

3 

 
Chief Craft responded that there are none that he is aware of, but understands that some 
jurisdictions hire laterally. 
 
Commissioner Cannon understands that they are bound by state statute and that there is no 
case law available at this time to support Officer Livingston’s appeal. 
 
Chair McGinnis noted that Chief Craft has already indicated that there has never been a case in 
Troy, but asked whether or not Police Officer Livingston can provide evidence that there has 
been a situation where a posting supersedes the state statute. 
 
City Attorney Bluhm advised that she has done some research and would do further, but was 
unable to discover any case law in her initial research. 
 
Chair McGinnis believes the petition is legitimate and asked that future postings be less 
ambiguous and more reflective of the statute. 
 
Resolution #CSC-2004-02-007 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by Daugherty 
 
RESOLVED, That the petition requesting an Act 78 Appeal Hearing by Police Officer Mark F. 
Livingston be DENIED without prejudice due to the State Statute clearly defining the two (2) 
year requirement of serving lower rank within the police department that the petitioner is 
currently serving; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the petitioner can resubmit a request for an appeal hearing 
if he is able to bring forward practical evidence stipulating that this requirement has been 
waived. 
 
Yes: All-3 
 
(a) Request for an Act 78 Appeal Hearing – Roxanne Ostrowski 
 
Chair McGinnis noted that Ms. Ostrowski does not have legal counsel and advised her that it is 
within her right to seek counsel 
 
Ms. Ostrowski replied that she is aware that she can have counsel, but does not believe it is 
necessary at this time. She proceeded to state that she is before the Commission because she 
was previously employed as a Service Aide with the City of Troy for four years and received the 
same background and psychological testing then that she received when she applied more 
recently with Troy for a police officer position. She continued by stating that she is appealing the 
decision of the withdrawal of her application because she believed that everything went well 
and since the information on her application had been unchanged since she applied as a 
Service Aide and was hired.  Chair McGinnis noted for the record Ms. Ostrowski’s waiver of 
right to Counsel.   
 
Chair McGinnis believes the Commission should have a copy of the police officer rejection 
correspondence in hand. 



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Final February 26, 2004 
 

4 

 
Mr. Lange provided the rejection and psychological background information to the Commission. 
 
Chair McGinnis asked whether or not Ms. Ostrowski waived her right to keep the information 
confidential. 
 
Ms. Ostrowski advised that she did not receive the documents. 
 
Mr. Lange understands that the petitioner filed a Freedom of Information request and that it was 
denied. 
 
City Attorney Bluhm advised that the petitioner was not provided with a copy; she was provided 
with a summary however. 
 
Chair McGinnis believes that due process would require that the petitioner should have been 
provided with the documentation. 
 
City Attorney Blum replied that this type of information is not released and added that she did 
not realize that it would be submitted as evidence. 
 
Chair McGinnis asked that a formal request be made to the Act 78 Commission authorizing the 
release of the psychological analysis and background information to the petitioner. 
 
Mr. Lange agrees that the petitioner needs to review the documents to assess her appeal. 
 
Chair McGinnis believes the petitioner has a right to privacy and that she should review the 
documents before they are released to the Commission. 
 
Mr. Lange informed the Commission that because the documents are official police documents 
that they should not be released to the petitioner. He then requested that the documents be 
made available to the petitioner in-camera. 
 
City Attorney Bluhm believes in-camera viewing of the documents is the perfect solution. 
 
Ms. Ostrowski made a formal request to the Act 78 Commission to view her background check 
and psychological evaluation. 
 
Commissioner Cannon asked whether the petitioner is waiving her right to privacy. 
 
Ms. Ostrowski replied that she would like to first review the documents prior to moving forward 
with her appeal request. 
 
Chair McGinnis acknowledged that the petitioner has made a formal request to the Act 78 
Commission for discovery purposes and that the psychological evaluation and background 
check be made available to her. 
 
Mr. Lange noted that there are attachments to the background check and that the Commission 
will have to determine whether or not the attachments should be made available to the 
petitioner. 



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Final February 26, 2004 
 

5 

 
Chair McGinnis replied that if the attachments are used as evidence, then they are to be made 
available to the petitioner. 
 
Mr. Lange noted that Lieutenant Zavislak’s report is very comprehensive and that it will not be 
necessary to offer the attachments as evidence. He continued by stating that the petitioner can 
contact the Human Resources Department to arrange to view the documents. 
 
Chair McGinnis asked whether or not the petitioner would seek counsel. 
 
Ms. Ostrowski replied that she would determine whether or not she would seek counsel if she 
felt it was necessary after reviewing the documents. 
 
Chair McGinnis asked when would the petitioner view the documents. 
 
Ms. Ostrowski advised that she would make an appointment within one week. 
 
Chair McGinnis understands that the petitioner would withdraw or pursue her appeal based 
upon her review of the documents. 
 
Ms. Ostrowski agreed. 
 
There was a consensus of the Commission to return the unviewed evidence to Mr. Lange until 
the petitioner makes a decision regarding her appeal hearing. 
 
Commissioner Cannon advised that he would be out of the country from March 12, 2004 
through April 3, 2004.  
 
Chair McGinnis advised that he will be out of the area from March 10, 2004 through March 24, 
2004, and then unavailable until April 9, 2004. 
 
Chair McGinnis advised that the Commission would not be available again until the latter part of 
April should the petitioner wish to pursue her appeal. 
 
Chair McGinnis confirmed that the petitioner would be provided with the documentation 
regarding her background check and psychological evaluation and added that if any other 
documents are to be put forward in regard to this Act 78 ruling, that she would be provided with 
those documents as well. 
 
New Business: None presented 
 
Old Business:  None presented 
 



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Final February 26, 2004 
 

6 

Adjournment:   The meeting was adjourned at 8:00 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Donald E. McGinnis, Jr., Chairman  Barbara A. Holmes, CMC - Deputy City Clerk 



City of Troy
J-01





City of Troy
J-01





LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL                        June 14, 2004 
 

Page 1 of 3 

A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, June 14, 2004 
in Conference Room C of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  Chairman Max K. 
Ehlert called the meeting to order at 6:58 p.m. 
  
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Henry W. Allemon 
    Alex Bennett 
    Anita Elenbaum 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    James R. Peard 
    Carolyn Glosby, Assistant City Attorney 
    Sergeant Thomas J. Gordon 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: James C. Moseley 
    Emily Polet, Student Representative 
 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Member James C. Moseley 
 
Resolution #LC2004-06-113 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Bennett 
 
RESOLVED, that the absence of Committee member Moseley at the Liquor Advisory 
Committee meeting of June 14, 2004 BE EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Moseley 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of May 10, 2004 Meeting  
 
Resolution #LC2004-06-114 
Moved by Elenbaum 
Seconded by Ehlert 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the May 10, 2004 meeting of the Liquor Advisory 
Committee be approved. 
 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 

HolmesBA
Text Box
J-01



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL                        June 14, 2004 
 

Page 2 of 3 

Absent: Moseley 
_____________________________________________________________________  
 
Agenda Items: 
 
1.     BABYLON RESTAURANT GROUP, INC. requests a new full year (quota) 

Class C license with Sunday Sales and Official Permit (Food) to be located at 888 
W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County.   Proposed restaurant to be 
called The Melting Pot, featuring fondue based menu 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were Aaron VanDeMark, Ryan Husaynu, 
and Jonathan Brateman. 
 
Mr. VanDeMark informed the Committee that The Melting Pot is an upscale, dinner-only 
restaurant with a fondue-based menu that will occupy space on the first floor vacated by 
Fidelity Bank.  There are currently Melting Pot establishments in 30 states in the nation, 
with the proposed Troy location being the first in Michigan.  There is the possibility for 
future restaurants in Ann Arbor and Novi.  The Melting Pot attracts couples for special 
occasion and romantic events, with over 80% of the revenue resulting from food sales.  
There will be 198 seats in the restaurant and 14 seats at the bar.  Mr. VanDeMark has 
been in the restaurant management business for several years, the past two years spent as 
manager of a Melting Pot in Raleigh, North Carolina. He is an owner with a 60% share of 
the business and will be the on-site manager with approximately 40 employees.  His 
partner, Bill Holt, will own 40% of the business.  All employees will be trained in the 
TIPS/TAMS program and will be required to sign the company’s “Statement of Liquor 
Dispensing Policies” at the time of hire.   
 
Sgt. Gordon reported that his background investigation revealed one incident in 
Greensboro, North Carolina in 1998 involving restaurant employees smoking marijuana 
while on duty.  At the time of this incident, Bill Holt was the manager of the restaurant.  The 
employees were terminated. 
 
Resolution #LC2004-06-115 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Elenbaum 
 
RESOLVED, that BABYLON RESTAURANT GROUP, INC. be granted new full year 
(quota) Class C license with Sunday Sales and Official Permit (Food) to be located at 888 
W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0  
Absent: Moseley 
____________________________________________________________________ 

Informational Items 
 

PIDGEON RIVER IMPORTS, LLC, requests a new Outstate Seller of 
Wine license, to be located at 3250 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI 48084, 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL                        June 14, 2004 
 

Page 3 of 3 

Oakland County.  [MLCC REQ ID #232608]   Office use only, no storage 
of alcoholic beverages on site 
 

This item will be handled by Sgt. Gordon and no action is required by the Committee.   
 
____________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
KNIGHTS OF COLUMBUS, ST. JOSEPH CHALDEAN COUNCIL NO. 
9154, requests to transfer location (governmental unit) of 2003 Club 
licensed business from 35220 Mound, Sterling Heights, MI 48310, 
Macomb County, to 36949 Dequindre, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County.  
[MLCC REQ ID# 233780]   Current site of Asia Mart market; Zoning issues 
may prevent transfer 
 

No information to report on this item. 
 
 
 
 

EMERALD FOOD SERVICE, INC. requests a new full year (quota) 
Class C license with  Sunday Sales, Official Permit (Food), and Outdoor 
Service Area, to be located at 1450 E. South Blvd., Troy, MI 48085, 
Oakland County.   This request is anticipated to be made by the food 
service vendor for the new Sanctuary Lakes golf course; not yet in process 
 

 
Assistant City Attorney Carolyn Glosby reported that the City is currently negotiating a food 
vendor contract for Sanctuary Lakes Golf Course. There was a discussion by the 
Committee as to the anticipated request for a quota Class C license and the small number 
of seats available in the club house.   
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:43 p.m. 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Patricia A. Gladysz, Clerk-Typist 



FINAL 
TROY DAZE ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

 
A regular meeting of the Troy Daze Advisory Committee was held Tuesday, June 22, 2004 
at the Troy Community Center. Meeting was called to order at 7:33 pm. 
 
Present:

Marilyn Musick 
  Jim Cyrulewski 
  Bob Berk 
  Cecile Dilley 
  Kessie Kaltsounis 
  Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski 

 Bob Preston 
 Bill Hall 
 Mike Gonda 
 Jeff Stewart 
 Dhwani Mehta 

 
City Staff Present: 

Tonya Perry  
  Bob Matlick 
  Jeff Biegler 

 Cindy Stewart 
 Bob Kowalski

 
 
Resolution # TD-2004-05-16 
Moved by Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski 
Seconded by Cecile Dilley  
 
RESOLVED that the minutes from the May 25, 2004 Troy Daze Advisory Committee are 
approved as submitted.   
 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
1) Update on Contracts 
 

a) Shirts:  Colors available per Jeff Biegler are white, birch, black, forest green, light blue, 
maroon, navy, putty, red, royal blue, sports grey. 

 
Resolution #TD-2004-05-17 
Moved by Mike Gonda 
Seconded by Kessie Kaltsounis  
 
RESOLVED that an order be placed for black golf shirts for members and t-shirts for 
volunteers (150 quantity).   
 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

City of Troy
J-01



 
b) Fireworks: P.O. in the system 
c) Pony Rides: Bob Berk spoke with Shirley at Wilson’s Pony Rides. Steve Cooperrider, 

Risk Manager says they need to provide general liability and auto liability and workers 
compensation unless family members work for them. Coverage more than enough. 
Maximum 40’x90’ area needed. Pony, camel rides and petting zoo. Troy Daze 
receives 15% of take.  Hours not discussed - Friday, Saturday and Sunday.  

d) Stage/Dance Floor/Lighting: all quotes are out and waiting for them to be returned. 
e) Formal bid on tents: next council meeting, S & R Tent Rental low bid. 

 
Resolution #TD-2004-05-18 
Moved by Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski 
Seconded by Kessie Kaltsounis  
 
RESOLVED that the Troy Daze Advisory Committee is adjourned.   
 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Meeting is adjourned at 7:45 pm.   
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Cheryl Whitton-Kaszubski, Treasurer 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, Recording Secretary 
 



TROY DAZE MINUTES        
 
A regular meeting of the Troy Daze Festival Committee was held Tuesday, June 22, 2004 at 
the Troy Community Center. Meeting was called to order at 7:46 pm. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Present:  

Marilyn Musick 
   Jim Cyrulewski 
   Bob Berk 
   Cecile Dilley 
   Kessie Kaltsounis 

  Bob Preston   
  Bill Hall 
  Mike Gonda 
  Jeff Stewart 
  Dhwani Mehti  

Tom Kaszubski 
   Diane Mitchell 
   Cheryl Kaszubski 
   Cynthia Buchanan 
   Poncho Massaini 
   JoAnn Preston 
 

  Len Bertin 
  Bob Broquet 
  Scott Wharf 
  Dave Lambert 
  Laura Fitzpatrick 
  Dan O’Brien 
 

City Staff Present:
Tonya Perry  

   Bob Matlick 
   Jeff Biegler 
   Cindy Stewart 
   Bob Kowalski 
 
Minutes: 
 
Motion to approve the minutes from May 25, 2004.  
 
Moved by Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski 
Seconded by Cecile Dilley  
Approved unanimously. 
 
No treasurer’s report. 
 
July meeting—photo of committee for supplement. 
 
Correspondence 
Coalition request for ride tickets to be used at Jam Fest. Okay- check sent to Arnold’s 
Amusements. Tickets to be given to Nickie Kaptur. 
 
Ride tickets for Thursday night-  $0.50 are cheapest in the state, now all tickets $1.  Special 
10 rides for $10 or $0.50 if buy less. 
 
In packet: 

• Equipment Request Form 
• Award and Check Request Form 

 
Events Chairpersons 
Marilyn Musick (Children’s Tent - Young People’s Palace) – entertainers to date include: 



Magician – Sunday 3 pm and 5 pm, Ventriloquist – Saturday 2 pm and 4 pm.  Times: 
Saturday 12-7 pm and Sunday 12-7 pm.  Needs:  stages 8x8, bales of hay for kids to sit on 
Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski (Corporate Sponsors) - Finalize and mail all info out.  National 
City Bank - new sponsor for Kids Palace 
Diane Mitchell (Cutest Toddler) - 5 contestants to date, need 100. 
Tom Kaszubski (Parade) - lots of applications in already, got application for “Alice” 
Kessie Kaltsounis (shuttle carts) – Order 15 carts with lights 
Bill Hall (Mr. Troy/Info booth) - order helium, 5 tanks. Will check if need balloons. 
Cele Dilley (Booths) – To date 45 under tent, 2 outside, 14 food vendors 
Community Bowling should be a business.  Per Cindy - Krispy Kreme will donate all 
doughnuts Wed-Mon 
Bob Preston (student volunteers) - contract issued to Bishop Foley SADD Chapter increased 
rate $6 to $7/hour. 
Len Bertin (Ability Expo) – Info/applications mailed out. Assistance from Advisory Committee 
for Persons with Disabilities will be provided.  Hours: Thursday 12:30-7 pm.  Need 10 
volunteer shirts 
JoAnn Preston (EthniCity) -  Any chance of Internet connection in tent? Probably not. 
Applications slowing coming in. 
Bob Matlick (Fire Department) - Clawson Fire accepted challenge from Troy for water battle 
Dan O’Brien (Outdoor EthniCity Entertainment) - 24 contracts sent out, 7 groups booked. 
How to deal with fees? Call Cheryl for last year’s budget. Get line up to Cindy. 
Mike Gonda (Operations) - Request to Boulan Middle School to keep lights on for Troy Daze 
Met with Pepsi- set for this year.  2 liter bottles for Special Needs Day. Pepsi rep will be at 
Booth meeting. Truck for vendors to access.  Spoke with Tim Richnak DPW to use yard to 
unload trailer - No. 
Laura Fitzpatrick (Jaycees 5K/10K) - Getting insurance this week through state 
organization. New sponsor – Noodles 
Jeff Stewart (Special Needs Kids) – Meeting with Linda H. Report next month. 
Cindy Stewart (Publicity) - New supplement vendor – C&G Newspaper.  Will get ad 
sizes/costs & contact info to everyone. 
 
New Business: 
Troy Roots 2005 
Looking for people re: Talking History, photos, info displays. 
 
Motion to adjourn the Festival Committee meeting by Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski 
Seconded by Bob Berk  
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Meeting is adjourned at 8:36 pm.   



1 

TROY HISTORIC STUDY COMMITTEE – DRAFT JUNE 29, 2004 
 
This Meeting of the Troy Historic Study Committee was held Tuesday, June 29, 2004 at 
the Troy Museum & Historic Village. The meeting was called to order at 7:40 P.M.   
 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Kevin Lindsey 
 Charlene Harris 
 Kinda Hupman 
 Bob Miller 
 Linda Rivetto 
 Paul Lin 
 Marjorie Biglin 
 
  STAFF: Loraine Campbell 
 
Mrs. Marilyn Miller attended the meeting. She and husband Robert Miller own the 
historically designated structure at 2356 East Long Lake Road. 
 
 
Resolution #HDC-2004-06-001 
Moved by Harris  
Seconded by Biglin 
 
RESOLVED, That.the minutes of the June 1, 2004 meeting be approved as 
submitted. 
Yes: 7 Lindsey, Harris, Hupman, Miller, Rivetto, Lin and Biglin 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
OLD BUSINESS 

A. Request to de-list 2356 E. Long Lake Rd 
Research conducted on the property revealed: 

1. The original characteristics of the structure had already been 
lost when the structure was designated 

2. The data used to support the original designation was 
incorrect 

3. The historic district was established with defective 
procedures 

 
Resolution #HDC-2004-06-002 
Moved by Harris  
Seconded by Biglin 
 

HolmesBA
Text Box
J-01



2 

RESOLVED, That.the Committee complete a report recommending that 2356 E. 
Long Lake Road be de-listed. 
  
Yes: 5 Lindsey, Harris, Hupman, Rivetto, and Biglin 
No: 0 
Abstain: 2 Miller and Lin 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

The committee will hold a public hearing at the next scheduled meeting. 
 
 

B. 46 E. Square Lake Road 
Resolution #HDC-2004-06-003 
Moved by Lin  
Seconded by Lindsey 
 
RESOLVED, The committee will conduct thorough research on this property 
before making a recommendation. 
Yes: 7 Lindsey, Harris, Hupman, Miller, Rivetto, Lin and Biglin 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
  
NEW BUSINESS 

A. 5875 Livernois 
The letter from the resident requesting de-listing was read. Linda Rivetto, Kinda 
Hupman and Charlene Harris drove by the home. It is poor repair. It appears the 
elderly homeowner is concerned about being forced to make repairs because of 
the designation. Loraine will check if Mr. Davis is eligible for some assistance in 
keeping up basic home repairs. 

 
The Troy Historic Study Committee Meeting was adjourned at 9:00 p.m.  The next 
regular meeting will be held Monday, July 26, 2004 at 7:30 p.m. at the Troy Museum & 
Historic Village. 

 
 
 
Kevin Lindsey 
Chairman 
 
 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL MEETING - FINAL JULY 8, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Waller at 3:00 p.m. on July 8, 2004, at the Sanctuary Lake Golf Course, 1450 E. South 
Boulevard, Troy, Michigan. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Gary Chamberlain Lynn Drake-Batts 
Fazal Khan Mark J. Vleck 
Lawrence Littman Wayne Wright 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
David T. Waller 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-07-071 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Drake-Batts, Vleck and Wright be excused from 
attendance at this meeting.  
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent:  Drake-Batts, Vleck, Wright 
 
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

3. TOUR OF GOLF COURSE 
 
There was general discussion regarding the design of the golf course. 
 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

City of Troy
J-01



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL MEETING - FINAL JULY 8, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

ADJOURN 
 
The Special Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 4:37 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
       
David T. Waller, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2004 PC Minutes\Final\07-08-04 Special Meeting_Final.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 13, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Waller at 7:30 p.m. on July 13, 2004, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Gary Chamberlain Lynn Drake-Batts 
Lawrence Littman Fazal Khan 
Robert Schultz Wayne Wright 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Howard Wu, Student Representative 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-07-072 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Drake-Batts, Khan and Wright be excused from 
attendance at this meeting.   
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Khan, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-07-073 
Moved by:  Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the June 22, 2004 Special/Study Meeting minutes as 
published.  

City of Troy
J-01



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 13, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Yes: Chamberlain, Schultz, Strat, Waller 
No: None 
Abstain: Littman, Vleck 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Khan, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLANS 
 
4. SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Presidential Place Site Condominium, 5 units/lots 

proposed, West side of John R, North of Square Lake, Section 2 – R-1D 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
Presidential Place Site Condominium.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the 
recommendation of the Planning Department to approve the preliminary site 
condominium plan as submitted, subject to three conditions:  (1) construction of a 5-
foot wide concrete sidewalk, designed and constructed to City standards, within the 
5-foot wide sidewalk easement; (2) that the petitioner obtain an MDEQ Wetlands 
Permit or Jurisdictional Wetland Determination Document stating authoritative 
status prior to Final Approval; and (3) that the petitioner create a general common 
area to replace the recreation easement that provides access to the pond and 
gazebo. 
 
Mr. Schultz questioned the limited space remaining with respect to the 25-foot front 
setback and the required 5-foot sidewalk, and asked if the building could be pushed 
back to eliminate the possibility of parked cars on the sidewalk.   
 
Mr. Miller replied that the 25-foot setback is the City’s current standard. 
 
Mr. Chamberlain expressed concern with the designated trees on the preliminary 
tree preservation plan.  He said he would not vote favorably on the site plan unless 
the trees were removed from the tree preservation plan.   
 
Mr. Miller said the preliminary tree plan is in essence only a tree inventory, and it is 
at the discretion of the Commission to remove the trees from the tree preservation 
plan at this time.  Mr. Miller noted the petitioner would be required to remove the 
trees from the plan prior to getting final site plan approval.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain expressed concern that a potential dam could be created with the 
fill dirt that would be necessary for the proposed development, and said this is a 
good example that final grading plans should be required for site plan approval.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 13, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Mr. Miller replied that the petitioner’s engineer would address this concern.   
 
Mr. Strat questioned why the recommendations of the City’s Environmental 
Specialist have not been incorporated in the site plan; i.e., bio retention in the center 
aisle.  He said the plan shows no creativity with respect to the retention pond. 
 
Chair Waller questioned the location of the required 8-foot sidewalk.   
 
Mr. Miller clarified that the 8-foot sidewalk is along John R and the 5-foot sidewalk is 
within the interior roads.   
 
Chair Waller shared information with respect to new ideas on storm water detention.  
He proposed that the petitioner contact the Planning Department with respect to 
incorporating the new ideas in the development of the project’s storm water 
detention.   
 
There was a brief discussion on the site plan designation of “detention” and the 
Engineering Department’s recommendation of a “retention” pond.  Mr. Miller said he 
would check the original Engineering Department review and confirm the correct 
designation.   
 
Bill Mosher of Apex Engineering, 47745 Van Dyke, Shelby Township, was present 
on behalf of the petitioner.  Mr. Mosher confirmed that the site plan shows the 
sidewalk easement on the outside of the 40-foot private road easement.  Mr. 
Mosher said a wetlands permit would be obtained, and noted that a previous MDEQ 
letter of no authority had expired.  Mr. Mosher said the plan would be revised to 
include a general common area instead of the recreational component.  To address 
the setback concerns, Mr. Mosher said it would be possible to impose a 30-foot 
setback on Lots 1 and 2, but not on Lots 3, 4, and 5.  Mr. Mosher said the 
designated trees would be removed from the tree preservation plan.  He also 
addressed the grading issues and stated he would work with the Engineering 
Department to insure that the detention is sufficient.  Further, Mr. Mosher said he 
would work on a creative concept for the proposed detention pond. 
 
Mr. Miller reported that the Engineering Department’s review specifically states 
“retention”, not “detention”.  The Engineering Department’s review states there is a 
lack of drainage capacity on John R and notes there are no planned improvements 
until the year 2008 or later. 
 
Discussion followed with respect to maintaining the pond as a retention pond, once 
improvements are completed on John R. 
 
Mr. Mosher said he would like to keep the pond dry and the building envelopes as 
large as possible, and noted there is a detention facility at the fire station.  Mr. 
Mosher said he would work with the Engineering Department on a complete 
evaluation of the storm water detention. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 13, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Mr. Strat asked if the petitioner would come back to the Planning Commission for 
resubmission of site plan approval should the preliminary engineering requirements 
change.   
 
Mr. Mosher answered in the affirmative.  He stated that a condition of the 
Condominium Act is to review some forms of drainage and lot configurations.  Mr. 
Mosher said that should the Engineering Department not waive the requirement for 
a retention facility, there would be changes in the layout and it would be necessary 
to re-evaluate the plan.   
 
Chair Waller asked if it is reasonable to have the City review the fire station 
retention pond at the same time.   
 
Mr. Miller replied that a request could be made to the Engineering Department.  
 
Discussion continued on the grades.   
 
Mr. Mosher said he would do whatever is necessary to get the project going; i.e., 
bio swales, catch basin, etc.   
 
Chair Waller opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Leonid Shashlo of 6336 Atkins Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Shashlo voiced his 
objections to the proposed development.  He said Unit #5 of the proposed 
development is too close to his property.  Mr. Shashlo expressed concern for the 
young children playing near two roads and the potential to destroy the existing 
environment and wildlife.   
 
Jerry Slywka of 6322 Atkins Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Slywka has been a Troy 
resident for 25 years.  Mr. Slywka bought the property in 1969 and sold the property 
to Mr. Haddad approximately six or seven years ago.  Mr. Slywka said Mr. Haddad 
promised to build two nice houses on the property for his sons.  Mr. Slywka 
protested strongly to the proposed development because of potential danger to the 
existing environment, nature and wildlife.  Mr. Slywka voiced concerns that the 
sump pumps would be connected to the pond.  He asked that the 17-foot pond not 
be touched because it provides clean water for his children and grandchildren to 
swim in.  Mr. Slywka questioned the logic of the City that it placed such strong 
restrictions on the quality of water when he created the pond, but has no interest in 
the water quality with the proposed development.  Mr. Slywka said the proposed 
development would affect his life and the lives of his neighbors, children and 
grandchildren.  Further, Mr. Slywka questioned the size of the lots in relation to the 
size of the homes, and encouraged the City to impose soil and boring tests on the 
property.   
 
Chair Waller explained that the petitioner is proposing to create a pond for aesthetic 
pleasure and the pond would not be used for water sports or anything similar.  Chair 
Waller confirmed that a wetlands report would be provided.  He also stated that a 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 13, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

natural features ordinance proposed several years ago was not passed because the 
majority of residents were in opposition to it.   
 
Mr. Vleck clarified that (1) there is no rezoning request on the subject parcel; (2) the 
proposed development is on the petitioner’s property and not on anybody else’s 
property; (3) the Planning Commission does not have the authority to deviate from 
the requirements set forth by the City; and (4) the petitioner has met all of the City 
codes and requirements. 
 
Kinette Bayliss, owner of 2.5 acres of property located to the south of the proposed 
development, Sidwell No. 88-20-02-427-007, was present.  Ms. Bayliss is very 
concerned about the development of the property.  She said it was her 
understanding that the property would remain as two residential lots after it was 
sold.  She questioned how the property could go from two residential lots to five lots 
without the property getting rezoned.  Ms. Bayliss said her concerns are similar to 
the concerns expressed by Mr. Slywka; i.e., sump pump run-off into the pond and 
the clean water in the pond for recreational purposes.  She said that she and Mr. 
Slywka developed the pond to be what it is and it is very important to them that the 
pond water remains the same.  She asked for an explanation why the City would go 
from all wetlands to constructing condominiums.   
 
Mr. Miller provided a brief explanation of the R-1D zoning district and its 
requirements and provisions for development. 
 
Ms. Bayliss asked if there was a capacity requirement for the use of the pond.   
 
Chair Waller announced that the floor at tonight’s meeting is the wrong forum to 
discuss the pond.  He said that any concern about the quality of the pond and 
whether or not the sump pumps from Lots 4 and 5 might be directed toward the 
pond is something that should be negotiated with the property owner.  Chair Waller 
said that concerns should be brought to the attention of the City Council.  He 
explained that the decision made tonight by the Planning Commission is only a 
recommendation to the City Council for its review and approval.  Chair Waller stated 
that Mr. Haddad owns part of the pond and Ms. Bayliss can only wish that the future 
property owners would have her passion for its quality.  Chair Waller assisted Ms. 
Bayliss in locating the retention pond on the proposed site plan in relation to her 
property.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain said his sump pump drains into the storm system, and he 
presumes that is how sump pumps are in operation today. 
 
Mr. Miller agreed.  Mr. Miller further advised the Planning Commission to strike the 
notation on the site plan that relates to the discharge of the sump pumps to Lots 4 
and 5.  He stated that the information is extraneous at this time.   
 
Priscilla King of 6310 Atkins, Troy, was present.  Ms. King said the Planning 
Commission informed her the property could not be developed because it was 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 13, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

wetlands.  Ms. King strongly objected to the proposed development, and stated that 
her husband spent years trying to improve the property. 
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-07-074 
 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council, that the 
Preliminary Site Plan (Section 34.30.00 Unplatted One-Family Residential 
Development), as requested for Presidential Place Site Condominium, including 5 
units, located on the west side of John R Road and north of Square Lake Road, 
Section 2, within the R-1D zoning district be granted, subject to the following 
conditions: 
 

1. Construction of a 5-foot wide concrete sidewalk, designed and constructed to 
City standards, within the 5-foot wide sidewalk easement. 

2. The petitioner obtain an MDEQ Wetlands Permit or Jurisdictional Wetland 
Determination Document stating authoritative status, prior to Final Approval. 

3. The petitioner create a general common area to replace the recreation 
easement that provides access to the pond and gazebo. 

4. That all existing illegal trees on the property will be removed. 
5. That the note on the drawing that states “sump pump discharge directly to 

pond for Units 4 and 5 will be removed. 
6. That the design recommendations provide that the petitioner will duly note all 

drainage concern for neighboring properties and plan for adequate drainage. 
 
Discussion on the motion. 
 
Mr. Littman requested that the motion be amended to reflect the site plan 
designation of a “retention” pond, as recommended by the Engineering Department.  
 
Mr. Miller explained the difference between a detention pond and a retention pond.  
He said detention pond water is detained and slowly released so there is not a quick 
flash of water that would overburden the storm water drainage system.  Retention 
pond water is retained and in essence is a wet pond.  Mr. Miller noted that not all 
storm water drainage systems are City owned; that the County owns some of the 
systems.   
 
Mr. Vleck recommended the site maintain a detention pond because the fire station 
has an existing detention pond and a retention pond with its standing water would 
create a risk factor for West Nile Virus.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 13, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Vote on the motion on the floor, as moved and seconded. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Littman, Schultz, Vleck, Waller 
No: Strat 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Khan, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED/DENIED 
 
Mr. Strat stated his reasons for not voting in favor of the motion.  He feels (1) the final 
engineering has not been provided to determine exactly the size of the detention pond 
or retention pond; (2) the wetlands report might affect the final layout of the design of 
the site and the plan might have to return to the Planning Commission for a second 
approval; (3) the plan does not protect the value of the adjacent property owners; and 
(4) there is a lack of innovative design and bio retention, as indicated by the City’s 
Environmental Specialist review comments.   
 
Members Chamberlain and Strat encouraged the residents to voice their objections to 
the City Council.   
 
Mr. Miller said the item most likely would be on the City Council agenda at their 2nd 
meeting in August or their 1st meeting in September.  Mr. Miller confirmed that abutting 
property owners would be notified. 
 
 
[Student Representative Howard Wu joined the meeting] 
 
 

5. SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Timbercrest Estates Site Condominium, 11 
units/lots proposed, South side of Wattles, West of Fernleigh, Section 24 – R-1C 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
Timbercrest Estates Site Condominium.  Mr. Miller noted that the Planning 
Department recognizes the potential for future development on parcels to the south 
and west, and the Planning Department has worked with the petitioner to create a 
layout that would include a stub street to the south property line that would allow for 
the extension of further development.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the 
recommendation of the Planning Department to approve the preliminary site 
condominium plan as submitted.  
 
Mr. Chamberlain said the Planning Commission should be advised on the potential 
development of surrounding properties in relation to proposed projects.  Mr. 
Chamberlain noted there is a potential curb cut on Wattles Road should the 
property to the west of the proposed development be developed, and it is very 
important to the Commission how that property to the west might be developed.   
 
Mr. Miller said his research showed the property to the west as an old outlot that 
runs one-half mile to the south and the majority of the property is owned by the 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 13, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

State of Michigan.  Mr. Miller reported that the City has a long history of asking 
petitioners to provide information on potential development of surrounding 
properties, but there is no requirement.  He noted there is a requirement in the 
Subdivision Ordinance to provide information on potential development of large 
tracts of unplatted land.  Mr. Miller apologized for the Planning Department’s error in 
not providing information on the potential development of the 160-foot wide property 
to the west.  Mr. Miller said the matter was discussed with the petitioner, and 
indicated the petitioner may be able to address it further.  He said the Planning 
Department could prepare alternate layouts for the surrounding area for a future 
study meeting, should the Commission desire.  Mr. Miller said the City should 
provide a means for future development in the rear portions that front Fernleigh. 
 
Mr. Chamberlain pointed out that the Planning Department should have on file how 
this particular piece of property could be developed before the item is forwarded to 
the City Council for review and approval.   
 
Discussion continued on the potential development of the property to the west with 
respect to different design layouts, emergency access, additional access points, 
and a boulevard entrance.   
 
Nader Wehbe of Beckman Wehbe Corp., 25775 W. Ten Mile Road, Southfield, and 
Ben Gill of Chesterfield Building, 31125 Westwood, Farmington Hills, were present.   
 
Mr. Wehbe commented on the access situation and alternate layouts.  He said he 
worked closely with the Planning Department, and it is the preference of the Planning 
Department to provide the stub road because it would create many possibilities to 
extend the road for future development.   
 
Mr. Gill stated that negotiations with the owner to purchase the property to the west 
were unsuccessful.   
 
Chair Waller opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Claude Vidal of 2506 E. Wattles Road, Troy, was present.  Mr. Vidal is the owner of 
the property to the west and has lived there for 52 years.  He said that is the reason he 
asked such an exorbitant purchase price.  Mr. Vidal said he does not appreciate the 
Commission dissecting his property and telling him how it should be developed.  Mr. 
Vidal said there is a retention pond on the DNR strip, and asked if he would really 
have to look out his front window at the proposed project’s retention pond that would 
be located directly next door and in the front of his house.  Mr. Vidal stated that he had 
a speech prepared but implied he was too emotional to present it.   
 
Stephen Mounteer of 3845 Fernleigh Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Mounteer said his 
home is at the southeast corner of the proposed development.  Mr. Mounteer 
expressed concerns with the potential traffic and safety issues that would result from 
the proposed development.  He said currently it is almost impossible to exit onto 
Wattles Road, in either direction, during morning traffic.  He expressed concerns with 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 13, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

the potential widening of Wattles Road, and noted that the proposed development is at 
the narrowest part of the Wattles Road.  Mr. Mounteer said he would like to see lower 
density on the development or improvement to the traffic flow from the property.   
 
Pat O’Donnell of 3951 Fernleigh, Troy, was present.  Ms. O’Donnell expressed her 
objection to the proposed development because it appears to be too high of a density 
for the space available, and she believes it would take away from the atmosphere of 
the neighborhood.  Ms. O’Donnell also asked for information on the widening of 
Wattles Road to five lanes. 
 
Mr. Miller replied that the ultimate right of way for Wattles Road is 120 feet wide, which 
would accommodate a five-lane road.  Mr. Miller informed Ms. O’Donnell to contact 
the Engineering Department for the improvement schedule for Wattles Road.   
 
Max Akins of 2545 E. Wattles Road, Troy, was present.  Mr. Akins said he does not 
want to look at a retention pond across from his house, which is where the proposed 
retention pond would be located.  He asked how the City would widen Wattles Road at 
that particular point and expressed concerns with the remaining frontage of his home.   
 
A short discussion followed on the future widening of Wattles Road.   
 
Mr. Wehbe responded to the concerns expressed on the retention pond.  He said the 
proposed retention basin is 3 feet high with a 1:6 slope, unfenced and well 
landscaped.  Mr. Wehbe said the retention pond would look like a depression on the 
ground, and would fill up with water only during rain events.  Mr. Wehbe confirmed the 
detention pond would be conveyed to the City for maintenance purposes. 
 
Chair Waller announced that any drainage concerns should be brought to the attention 
of the Planning Department or Engineering Department.   
 
Mr. Strat asked if the petitioner proposed to do the landscaping as indicated on the 
plan, approximately 4 feet deep. 
 
Mr. Wehbe answered in the affirmative.   
 
Mr. Vleck directed comments to the resident who owns the property to the west.  He 
said the reason the Commission would like to be advised of future development is that 
should the property be sold, the Commission must take into consideration what may 
happen in the future, and that the Commission tries to design as best it can for future 
development.  The Commission’s concern in looking at the property to west is whether 
or not the street layout would accommodate possible future developments.   
 
Mr. Littman requested an explanation on the location of the retention basin. 
 
Mr. Wehbe responded that the property is considered fairly level, and the retention 
basin is best positioned at the outlet in the corner of the property.  He said also that its 
location near a public road is best for overflow purposes.  Mr. Wehbe said that 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 13, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

everything on site would stay on sight, inclusive of landscaping and trees, and the run-
off water would be collected in the underground storm system.   
 
Mr. Schultz apologized to the property owner to the west if there was a 
misunderstanding.  He said the Commission is not indicating that his property must be 
developed.  Mr. Schultz explained that it is in the best, long-term interest of the 
property owner that he/she is not left with an undevelopable piece of property.   
 
Mr. Strat asked if the Planning Department received any specific comments on the 
proposed development from the Environmental Specialist.   
 
Mr. Miller replied that the only comment from the Environmental Specialist is that there 
are no wetlands or flood plain issues.   
 
Chair Waller asked that the motion reflect the comments of the petitioner that the trees 
along the property line would be saved, and that should rear yard drain routing result 
in tree loss, the petitioner would come back before the Planning Commission. 
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-07-075 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council, that the 
Preliminary Site Plan (Section 34.30.00 Unplatted One-Family Residential 
Development), as requested for Timbercrest Estates Site Condominium, including 11 
units, located south of Wattles Road and west of Fernleigh Road, Section 24, within 
the R-1C zoning district be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. That an adjacent property plat layout for the properties to the south and to the 

west be on file at the Planning Department before the item goes to City 
Council. 

2. That the drainage of this property to the properties to the east that are 
developed is engineered such that there are no water flows that create 
standing water in the properties to the east. 

3. The tree survey lists a number of trees that are not the kind of trees the City of 
Troy wants, and those trees that do meet the requirement of being a good tree, 
on the property lines specifically, that every effort be made to do the 
underground utility work without cutting roots and maybe the recommendation 
would be not to do any rear yard underground utility work, but make it all down 
Timbercrest. 

4. If there are trees to be destroyed, the item needs to come back to see how best 
the City and the petitioner can get together and save as many trees as 
possible. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 13, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Khan, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Schultz proposed that the motion be amended to reflect that the petitioner is 
required to bring back the site plan for approval should there be any significant 
change to the site plan. 
 
Mr. Chamberlain asked for a legal opinion on the proposed amendment to the 
motion. 
 
Mr. Motzny said the Commission could put the language in the motion but, in his 
opinion, City Council is not required to honor the request because the motion is only 
a recommendation to City Council. 
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 202) – 

Outdoor Storage of Commercial and Recreational Vehicles in M-1 Light Industrial 
District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of ZOTA 202 and the most recent revisions.   
 
Chair Waller referred to a letter received from Shurguard stating that it recognizes 
the need and is very much in favor of the proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendment.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-07-076 
 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Article 28.30.02, Article 40.21.83 and Article 04.20.128 of the Zoning 
Ordinance, be amended as printed on the Updated Version of the Zoning Ordinance 
Text Amendment (ZOTA 202), dated 02/16/04.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 13, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 12 - 
 

Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Khan, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 200) – 
Article 34.70.00  One Family Cluster Option 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of ZOTA 200.  Mr. Miller reviewed clarifications 
and/or corrections to the following sections of the proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendment:  34.70.02 (B)(1), 34.70.05 (A) and 34.70.06 (D). 
 
A thorough discussion followed on the size of trees to be planted.  After a straw 
vote, the tree size determined was 3 to 3.5 dbh.   
 
A discussion followed on the wording of Section 34.70.02 (B)(1).  It was determined 
that the paragraph should read:  “…significant individual trees, significant individual 
trees ten inches in diameter or larger…”. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-07-077 
 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Article 34.70.00, Article 10.20.09 and Articles 04.20.120 through 
04.20.122 of the Zoning Ordinance, be amended as printed on the Updated 
Version, dated 06/29/04, and the changes noted by the Planning Director on the 
paragraphs 34.70.02 (B)(1), 34.70.05 (A) and 34.70.06 (D). 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Khan, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

8. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 13, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 13 - 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Miller announced that the Planning Department is in receipt of a letter from the 
Oakland Mall stating that due to the new acquisition and change of ownership of the Lord 
& Taylor department store, Lord & Taylor is no longer moving forward with its plan to put a 
store at Oakland Mall. 
 
Mr. Schultz referenced an informational item on last night’s City Council agenda.  A 3,300 
square foot home is being built on Alpine with a 6,000 square foot attached garage, and 
the construction is taking place totally within the City’s ordinances.  Mr. Schultz suggested 
that the Planning Commission should consider moving forward with changing ordinances 
as they pertain to accessory structures or garages that outweigh the house.  
 
Mr. Miller reported that the matter will be a City Council regular item to seek direction on 
(1) what can happen from an existing standpoint and define an enforcement on Alpine; and 
(2) whether City Council would like the Planning Commission and City Management to 
address compatibility of those structures and attached garages, and whether size should 
be limited on attached garages.   
 
Mr. Schultz distributed information with respect to green sustainable development.  He 
also stated his appreciation for the tour of the Sanctuary Lakes Golf Course.  He said the 
tour was very informative and the facility is one that the citizens of Troy can be justifiably 
proud. 
 
Mr. Littman welcomed Mr. Wu to the Commission, and encouraged his input on Planning 
Commission matters.   
 
Mr. Strat asked the status of the zoning ordinance text amendment with respect to site 
plan approval and the requirement to submit landscape plans.   
 
Mr. Miller reported the proposed ZOTA is scheduled for a Public Hearing in August, and 
would be forwarded to the City Council for review and approval in September.  Mr. Miller 
said the amendment, if adopted by City Council, would become effective 10 days after its 
approval.  Mr. Miller said a determination would have to be made for site plan applications 
that are in the process of site plan review and the effective date of the amendment.   
 
Mr. Strat asked if the Planning Commission could directly receive the review comments of 
the various departmental site plan reviews. 
 
Mr. Miller said the departmental comments are incorporated verbatim in the Planning 
Department reports.  He would prefer not to make additional copies of the departmental 
reviews when review comments are easily incorporated into the reports.  Mr. Miller said a 
complete review would be provided to the Planning Commission should there be 
substantial comments.   
 
Mr. Miller confirmed that the Downtown Development Authority (DDA) is meeting tomorrow 
morning.  He said a presentation is being given by the City Manager with respect to the 
vision of the DDA on items that the Planning Commission has been involved.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 13, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 14 - 
 

Mr. Chamberlain said that tonight’s meeting is the first meeting being recorded on DVD.   
 
Resolution # PC-2004-07-078 
 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That all Planning Commission meetings be recorded on DVD and a copy of 
the DVD be stored at the Planning Department for future reference.   
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Khan, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Waller asked the City Attorney to prepare a document explaining the origins and the 
rule of law of the City of Troy development standards; how it came to be, how it is viewed, 
how it is approved, and how it is utilized.  
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 9:57 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
David T. Waller, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2004 PC Minutes\Final\07-13-04 Regular Meeting_Final.doc 



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES – Final July 14, 2004 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees was held on 
Wednesday, July 14, 2004, at Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI.   
The meeting was called to order at 12:07 p.m. 
 

 
TRUSTEES PRESENT: Mark Calice (Departed @ 1:20) 
 Robert Crawford 
 Thomas Houghton, Chair 
 David A. Lambert  
 John M. Lamerato 
 William R. Need 
 Steven A. Pallotta 
 John Szerlag 
  
ALSO PRESENT: Laura Fitzpatrick 
 Steve Gasper, UBS 
 John Grant, UBS 
 
 
 
MINUTES 
 
Resolution # ER – 2004 – 07 - 027 
Moved by Lambert 
Seconded by Crawford 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the June 9, 2004 meeting be approved.  
 
Yeas:  All 7 
 
 
 
RETIREMENT REQUESTS 
 
Resolution # ER – 2004 – 07 - 028 
Moved by Lamerato 
Seconded by Szerlag 
 
RESOLVED, That the following retirement request be approved: 
 
Kathleen McCabe, DB, 7/31/04, Police, 24 years, 3 months 
 
Yeas:  All 7 
 
Roger Owens duty disability retirement was postponed to the August 11, 2004 meeting. 
 
 
 

HolmesBA
Text Box
J-01



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES – Final July 14, 2004 
 
 

 2

OTHER BUSINESS – MARCH 31, 2004 INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 
 
Steve Gasper and John Grant of UBS, reviewed with the Board the March 31, 2004 
Investment Performance. 
 
 
INVESTMENTS 
 
Resolution # ER – 2004 – 07 - 029 
Moved by Houghton 
Seconded by Pallotta 
 
RESOLVED, That the following investments be purchased and sold: 
$500,000 AT&T, 6% due 9/15/08; Sell – Aqilent Technologies; Enron; Country Wide 
Financial; Purchase – 4,000 shares Eaton Vance; 6,000 shares Donaldson; 5,000 shares 
Dow Chemical; 6,000 shares Del Monte; 4,000 shares Danaher; 4,000 shares Diebold; 
4,000 shares Chico Fas; 8,000 shares EMC; 4,200 shares Caremark Rx; 4,000 shares 
Baldor Electric; 6,000 shares Capital One; and 2,000 shares Chevron,  
 
AND, LET IT BE FURTHER RESOLVED, That we transfer $500,000.00 into the NAIC 
Account and purchase 2,000 shares from each of their monthly recommendations. 
 
 
Yeas:  All 6 
Absent:  Calice 
 
 
The next meeting is August 11, 2004 at 12:00 p.m. at City Hall, Conference Room C, 
 500 W Big Beaver, Troy, MI. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 1:55 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Thomas Houghton, Chairman 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
John M. Lamerato, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JML/bt\Retirement Board\2004\07-14-04 Minutes_Final.doc 



City of Troy
J-01

































1 

TROY HISTORIC STUDY COMMITTEE – DRAFT JULY 26, 2004 
 
This Meeting of the Troy Historic Study Committee was held Monday, July 26, 2004 at 
the Troy Museum & Historic Village. The meeting was called to order at 7:40 P.M.   
 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Kevin Lindsey 
   Charlene Harris 
  Linda Rivetto 
  : Paul Lin 
 
  ABSENT: Kinda Hupman 
   Bob Miller 
   Marjorie Biglin 
   Loraine Campbell 
 
Because Mr. and Mrs. Miller were not present the public hearing was postponed until 
August 10, 2004. 
 
 
The Troy Historic Study Committee Meeting was adjourned at 8:00 p.m.  The next 
regular meeting will be held Tuesday, August 10, 2004 at 7:30 p.m. at the Troy Museum 
& Historic Village. 

 
 
                  
Kevin Lindsey 
Chairman 
 
 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 

HolmesBA
Text Box
J-01



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL / STUDY MEETING - FINAL JULY 27, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Waller at 6:00 p.m. on July 27, 2004, at the Saleen / SSV Facility, 1225 E. Maple 
Road, Troy, Michigan. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Gary Chamberlain Lynn Drake-Batts 
Robert Schultz Fazal Khan 
Thomas Strat Lawrence Littman 
David T. Waller Mark J. Vleck 
 Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 
 
 
 

Let the record reflect that because there was no quorum, the July 27, 2004 Special / Study 
Meeting was not held.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
David T. Waller, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2004 PC Minutes\Final\07-27-04 Special Study Meeting_Saleen Tour_Final.doc 

City of Troy
J-01



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JULY 27, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Waller at 7:30 p.m. on July 27, 2004, in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Gary Chamberlain Mark J. Vleck 
Lynn Drake-Batts Wayne Wright 
Fazal Khan 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
David T. Waller 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-07-079 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Vleck and Wright be excused from attendance at this 
meeting.  
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent:  Vleck, Wright 
 
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

3. DISCUSSION OF SALEEN / SSV TOUR 
 
Chair Waller said the tour was very impressive. 
 
Mr. Schultz said that Troy should be very pleased and proud to have a manufacturing 
facility of that caliber. 
 
Mr. Smith said he is hopeful that other automotive vendors, suppliers and 
manufacturers are attracted to the City.  

HolmesBA
Text Box
J-01



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JULY 27, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. DISCUSSION OF SANCTUARY LAKE GOLF COURSE TOUR 
 
Chair Waller said the course is now open for play. 
 
Mr. Strat said he was impressed with the golf course, especially as it relates to storm 
water management.  He said it is an excellent example of what can be done with 
storm water management.   
 
Chair Waller said that Sylvan Glen Golf Course received an award late last year from 
the Michigan State Turf Grass Association.  He said that during the planning and 
development stage of Sanctuary Lake Golf Course, there was discussion with respect 
to the City of Troy applying to the National Audubon Society for cooperative sanctuary 
status.   
 
 

5. ORDINANCE REVISION DISCUSSION (ZOTA 205) – 10 Foot Landscape 
Greenbelts – Minimum Tree Requirements – Non Residential and Residential 
 
Mr. Miller reported that the City’s Landscape Analyst has the opinion that trees can 
be planted closer than 30 feet on center in a 10-foot landscape greenbelt.  Mr. Miller 
referred to a memorandum from the City’s Planning Consultant, Richard Carlisle, 
received by fax late this afternoon in which Mr. Carlisle states that he concurs with 
the opinion of the City’s Landscape Analyst.  Mr. Miller noted that coniferous trees 
including spruce or pine trees are not recommended in the landscaped greenbelt 
due to their spread and density.  He asked for the direction and input of the 
Commission on the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment. 
 
Mr. Chamberlain referenced the development that commenced this discussion of a 
proposed zoning ordinance text amendment; i.e., a narrow lot with less than 125 
feet on a major road.  He said another issue for discussion is whether it is 
appropriate or not to plant trees on main roads that are near utility lines.  He 
questioned again the City’s procedure and authoritative body to waive various trees 
that are required by the zoning ordinance.  Mr. Chamberlain voiced his 
disappointment that City Management did not provide a suggested solution to the 
matter.  When City Management opposes something the Planning Commission is 
working on, they should come forward with constructive ideas and suggested 
solutions. 
 
Discussion continued on species of trees, types of vegetation, clustering of 
landscape material, landscape calculations for residential and non-residential 
developments, landscape requirements for municipal developments, review of other 
communities’ landscape policies and website information, and the review and 
approval of landscape plans in the near future as a condition of site plan approval.   
 
Mr. Smith said he is in support of allowing the Planning Commission greater 
flexibility with respect to landscape requirements.  Mr. Smith gave an account of the 
landscape plan carried out administratively along Maplelawn, and said he would 
provide the Planning Commission documentation of that plan.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JULY 27, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Chair Waller requested the City Attorney to prepare a written explanation outlining 
the City’s procedure with respect to the relief of the City’s landscape requirements 
and the person/s who are given the authority to waive the requirements.   
 
It was the consensus of the Commission to continue its study and review of this 
matter. 
 
 

6. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 199) – Article 03.40.00  Site 
Plan Approval 
 
Mr. Miller reported this is the last opportunity to discuss the proposed ZOTA relating 
to Site Plan Approval before its scheduled Public Hearing at the August 10, 2004 
meeting.  He asked if the members had any additional comments or discussion on 
the proposed amendment.   
 
Section 03.41.05 was briefly discussed as it relates to the landscape plan approval 
prior to the application for preliminary site plan approval.   
 
Mr. Strat requested and it was the consensus of the Commission to include the 
following comments in the Intent of Site Plan Review/Approval, Section 03.40.02: 
 

• To achieve efficient use of the land 
• To encourage creative, innovative design planning solutions 
• To prevent adverse impact on adjoining or nearby properties 
• To ensure safety for both vehicle and pedestrian usage [internal and external 

circulation] 
• To protect natural resources 
• To achieve innovative storm water management solutions 

 
A brief discussion was held on the site plan approval process as it relates to the re-
location of dumpsters.   
 
It was the consensus of the Commission to require that Site Plans be sealed and 
signed by a professional engineer, registered architect or landscape architect and/or 
professional community planner. 
 
Mr. Chamberlain suggested that consideration be given to incorporating the text into 
Chapter 39 as well.   
 
 

7. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 182) – Articles 12.00.00 and 
30.10.08  R-1T One Family Attached 
 
 
Mr. Miller reported this is the last opportunity to discuss the proposed ZOTA relating 
to the R-1T provisions of the zoning ordinance before its scheduled Public Hearing 
at the August 10, 2004 meeting.  He asked if the members had any additional 
comments or discussion on the proposed amendment.  



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JULY 27, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

There were no comments. 
 
 

8. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 203) – Article 02.00.00 – 
Changes, Amendments and Approvals, edit text to replace Chapter 40 of the City 
Code (to be repealed) and include language regarding Voting Requirements 
 
Mr. Miller reported this is the last opportunity to discuss the proposed ZOTA relating 
to the powers and duties and voting requirements of the Planning Commission 
before its scheduled Public Hearing at the August 10, 2004 meeting.  He asked if 
the members had any additional comments or discussion on the proposed 
amendment.   
 
There were no comments. 
 
 

9. POTENTIAL ORDINANCE REVISION DISCUSSION – Group Daycare Homes in 
the R-1 (One Family Residential) Districts 
 
Mr. Miller gave a review of the group daycare home matter.  He reported City 
Management is of the opinion to not move forward at this time to allow group 
daycare homes.  City Management feels the negative affects from group daycare 
homes, specifically potential traffic impact, outweigh the need for group daycare 
homes.  Mr. Miller said the Planning Department would assist the Commission in 
the development of a zoning ordinance text amendment should it desire to move 
forward.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said she would support changes to the zoning ordinance to allow 
group daycare homes by Special Use.   
 
Mr. Khan reported that there are surrounding communities that allow group daycare 
homes by Special Use, and those communities indicated to him that there have 
been no negative impacts to their communities. 
 
Chair Waller asked if City Management’s concerns related to traffic impact have 
been based on complaints or anticipation.   
 
Mr. Miller replied anticipation.  He said the number of children dropped off / picked 
up for daycare services and the additional employees required for group daycare 
facilities would result in traffic that is above and beyond the normal single family 
neighborhood traffic.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts commented that by allowing group daycare homes as a Special 
Use provides the neighbors with a say in the matter.  Ms. Drake-Batts feels strongly 
that families must have a place to drop off their children for care.  Ms. Drake-Batts, 
speaking from personal experience, said family daycare centers provide children 
with more love and attention than a public daycare center.  She said her son was in 
a group daycare facility that cared for more than 6 children, and traffic was not an 
issue because (1) most parents had more than one child in its care; and (2) the 
varying work schedule of parents.  Ms. Drake-Batts said children were dropped off 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JULY 27, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 10:00 a.m., and picked up between the hours of 
3:00 p.m. and 6:00 p.m.  Ms. Drake-Batts recalled no traffic issues, citing that there 
was always available space in the driveway and never more than 2 cars at the 
home at one time.  She noted that there are not many people who choose to be in 
that kind of business.   
 
Mr. Schultz concurs that group daycare facilities should be allowed by Special Use.  
He said the additional traffic would be on public roads, of which the public has a 
right to use. 
 
Mr. Littman supports the concept that group daycare homes should be allowed by 
Special Use and acknowledged the need for them.  Mr. Littman said he would 
propose a motion to further discuss and review the matter should the Chair believe 
that would be the proper procedure to move forward.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain said the Planning Commission is losing sight of the matter.  He 
said that currently daycare facilities allow up to 6 children without a Special Use 
approval.  Mr. Chamberlain thinks that daycare facilities for 7 to 12 children are 
businesses.  He said there is a lot of land in Troy that is zoned for businesses and 
similar uses, and there are areas and zoning text that allow daycare centers 
adjacent to residential and office developments.  Mr. Chamberlain said daycare 
centers for more than 6 children would be breaking down the residential 
neighborhood and making it a business endeavor.  He commented that current 
home businesses do not entail the amount of traffic that one would see for group 
daycare homes.  He reminded the Commission that Special Uses in residential 
areas have not been touched with respect to zoning ordinance text amendments.  
Mr. Chamberlain said he is not in favor of expanding daycare facilities in residential 
areas that would exceed the capacity of 6 children.  He asked that the Planning 
Department provide additional information (i.e., number of daycare facilities in the 
City, capacity of the facilities) prior to review by the Commission.  Mr. Chamberlain 
cautioned the Commission to not rush into the matter.   
 
Mr. Savidant reported that currently in the City of Troy there are approximately 20 
group daycare homes, 46 family daycare homes and 47 child daycare [commercial] 
centers.   
 
Mr. Khan questioned the outcome of the current 20 group daycare homes should 
the Planning Commission not address the matter at this time.  Mr. Khan would like 
the Commission to look further into the matter.   
 
Mr. Miller said the Planning Department would prepare in-depth information on the 
types of daycare facilities, geographic locations, capacities of daycare facilities, and 
regulations, uses, impacts and experiences of daycare facilities in surrounding 
communities. 
 
Chair Waller distributed handouts provided by Mrs. Sharon Schafer. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JULY 27, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

Kim Duford of 3141 McClure, Troy, and Sharon and Dave Schafer of 5593 Mandale, 
Troy, were present.  
 
Ms. Duford, President of Oakland County Child Care Association (OCCCA), 
reviewed the data distributed to the Commission and noted the information was 
extracted from the State of Michigan government licensing site.  Ms. Duford 
reported that Oakland County alone has the third highest number of parents in the 
work force.  Ms. Duford said the association has been around forever, as long as 
there have been daycare homes.  She said Troy’s ordinance that dates back to 
1968 does not currently address the needs of daycare.  She said there is shortages 
of care for infants, special need children and school-age children, and family 
daycare homes alleviate the shortages as well give other options to parents.  Ms. 
Duford asked the Commission to give consideration to the best environment and 
quality care for children.  She said that the “cool” City of Troy should provide 
daycare options to its residents.  She reported that over all these years, there have 
been no complaints from neighbors and no complaints on traffic.  Ms. Duford stated 
that drop off / pick up times vary and most facilities do not enroll the total capacity of 
12 children.  Ms. Duford extended an invitation to the Commission to visit any of the 
daycare facilities to learn what home daycare is all about.  
 
Ms. Schafer reviewed statistics that she shared with the Commission at the May 4, 
2004 Special/Study Meeting.  Ms. Schafer, who has been licensed to provide 
daycare in the City of Troy over 15 years, said that very nice families have come 
through her home.  She expressed her appreciation for the Commission’s efforts on 
her behalf, and said she would be happy to address any concerns or questions of 
the Commission. 
 
Mr. Khan questioned if the Mayor and City Council and other daycare providers in 
Troy have been informed that this matter is under consideration for further review.   
 
Ms. Schafer reported that other daycare providers in Troy have met and discussed 
the matter, but she thought it in the best interest at this time to keep the 
communication on a small scale.  Ms. Schafer said she also discussed group and 
family daycare with members of the City Council, but has not made contact with the 
Mayor.   
 
Chair Waller acknowledged that the matter should be reviewed further and brought 
back to a future study session.  It was the consensus of the Commission that it 
would consider any proposed zoning ordinance text amendment to be the initiative 
of the Planning Commission. 
 
Mr. Miller recommended that the City’s zoning ordinance should be updated as it 
relates to definitions related to daycare facilities, as the text is clearly outdated.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JULY 27, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

10. POTENTIAL ORDINANCE REVISION DISCUSSION – Automobile Service Station 
Minimum Lot Area Requirements in the H-S (Highway Service) District 
 
Mr. Miller provided information relating to zoning districts and minimum lot area for 
service stations.  Mr. Miller reviewed the matrix that lists service stations and other 
uses in Troy.   
 
A lengthy discussion followed with respect to cross access easements, driveway 
entrances, future outlook of service stations, retail and mixed uses, obsolete zoning 
text, the City’s history relating to control of service stations, and Brownfield 
properties.   
 
It was the consensus of the Commission to further study and discuss potential 
ordinance revisions relating to service stations.   
 
 

11. POTENTIAL ORDINANCE REVISION DISCUSSION – “Green” Development 
 
Mr. Miller reported that the Planning Department’s research revealed that other 
communities have not incorporated “green” or sustainable development into their 
zoning ordinances.  Chair Waller has indicated a desire to become the first 
community in Oakland County to adopt such standards in the Zoning Ordinance.   
 
Mr. Miller also suggested that the City’s Environmental Specialist attend the next 
study meeting to discuss environmental issues and design plans for City projects, 
specifically on the proposed Presidential Place Site Condominium. 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-07-080 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the August 3, 2004 Special/Study Meeting be held at the Nature 
Center.  
 
Discussion on the motion. 
 
Mr. Chamberlain said there is no requirement to videotape study meetings.   
 
Mr. Strat questioned if topic of environmental issues and the Environmental 
Specialist’s intent to make the meeting a working session would have any relation 
and/or advantage to meeting at the Nature Center.  
 
Engineering regulations on “green” and sustainable development were discussed.   
 
Positive comments were made with respect to Troy being a catalyst in this 
endeavor.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts suggested that the Planning Commission’s priority work list be 
revised to incorporate its review and study of (1) “green” and sustainable 
development and (2) service stations.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JULY 27, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Khan, Strat, Waller 
No: Littman, Schultz 
Abstain: Drake-Batts 
Absent:  Vleck, Wright 
 
Mr. Schultz thinks the City’s Community Affairs office should be provided more time 
to prepare for the videotaping of an off-site meeting.   
 
Mr. Littman thinks the meeting will be very educational and the meeting should be 
taped.   
 
 

12. REVIEW OF AUGUST 10, 2004 REGULAR MEETING 
 
Mr. Miller announced that the Planning Department unofficially received word that 
the Special Use Request for the proposed Bark! Dog Day Care located on the north 
side of Industrial Row, east of Coolidge, in Section 32, has been withdrawn.  Mr. 
Miller reported he would follow through and confirm this information.   
 
 

13. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Littman questioned the status of the Maple Road Corridor Study.   
 
Chair Waller replied that the Maple Road Corridor Study sub-committee is moving forward 
with the study.  He indicated he would make contact with all the sub-committees to review 
the status of other projects.   
 
Mr. Strat gave a report on the July 20, 2004 Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) meeting.  Of 
particular interest was a variance request petitioned by White Chapel Cemetery to 
construct a pole barn of an average roof height of 23 feet.  The variance was approved.  
Mr. Strat said he thought the Planning Commission should have reviewed the request.   
 
Mr. Khan asked if the City gave tax incentives to the Saleen Facility.   
 
Mr. Miller replied in the negative. 
 
Chair Waller replied that the State did, and said the Real Estate and Development 
Department could provide more information.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JULY 27, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

Mr. Miller reported on the following planning and zoning development items: 
 

• Crestwood Site Condominium, north side of Wattles, east of Livernois, Section 15, 
R-1C – Received final approval by the City Council at their July 19, 2004 meeting. 

• Oakland Mall correspondence with respect to the Lord & Taylor store. 
• Downtown Development Authority (DDA) and City Council joint meeting is 

forthcoming, at which time the DDA will present their vision. 
• Royal Diner Restaurant on Maple Road – Building expansion and mixed use 

addressed.   
• Former Maple Athletic Club – Proposed medical office use site plan is being 

reviewed by the Planning Department as it relates to parking requirements, prior to 
the review and approval by the Planning Commission.   

 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 9:40 p.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
David T. Waller, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2004 PC Minutes\Final\07-27-04 Special Study Meeting_Final.doc 
 



DRAFT 
TROY DAZE ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

 
A regular meeting of the Troy Daze Advisory Committee was held Tuesday, July 27, 2004 at 
the Troy Community Center. Meeting was called to order at 7:33 pm. 
 
Present:

Marilyn Musick 
  Jim Cyrulewski 
  Bob Berk 
  Cecile Dilley 
  Kessie Kaltsounis 
  Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski 

 Bob Preston 
 Bill Hall 
 Mike Gonda 
 Jeff Stewart 
 Dhwani Mehta 

 
City Staff Present: 

Tonya Perry  
  Bob Matlick 
  Jeff Biegler 

 Cindy Stewart 
 Gerry Scherlinck

 
 
Resolution # TD-2004-05-19 
Moved by Mike Gonda 
Seconded by Bill Hall  
 
RESOLVED that the minutes from the June 22, 2004 Troy Daze Advisory Committee are 
approved as submitted.   
 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Resolution # TD-2004-05-20 
Moved by Cheryl Whitton 
Seconded by Mike Gonda  
 
RESOLVED that Dhwani Mehta is appointed as the chairperson for P.A. announcements.   
 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
1) Update on Contracts 
 

a) Shirts:  decided on black. 
 
 
 

HolmesBA
Text Box
J-01



 
b) Fireworks all set 
c) Tents, golf carts, porta-johns, trailers, electrical, sound, portable generators all set 
d) Stage/Dance Floor/Lighting: comparing prices. 
e) Need tables & chairs  

 
2. Revised Milestone Recognition List – add Kmart, Pepsi to the list as corporate sponsor.  

Order plaques. 
 
 
Resolution #TD-2004-05-21 
Moved by Mike Gonda 
Seconded by Cele Dilley  
 
RESOLVED that the Troy Daze Advisory Committee is adjourned.   
 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Meeting is adjourned at 7:45 pm.   
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Cheryl Whitton-Kaszubski, Treasurer 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, Recording Secretary 
 



TROY DAZE MINUTES        
 
A regular meeting of the Troy Daze Festival Committee was held Tuesday, July 27, 2004 at 
the Troy Community Center. Meeting was called to order at 7:45 pm. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Present:  

Marilyn Musick 
   Jim Cyrulewski 
   Bob Berk 
   Cecile Dilley 
   Kessie Kaltsounis 

  Bob Preston   
  Bill Hall 
  Mike Gonda 
  Jeff Stewart 
  Dhwani Mehta  

Tom Kaszubski 
   Diane Mitchell 
   Cheryl Kaszubski 
   Cynthia Buchanan 
   Poncho Massaini 
   Lois Cyrulewski 
   Len Bertin 
   Bob Broquet 
   Scott Wharf 
   Dave Lambert  
   Diane Mitchell 

  Laura Fitzpatrick 
  Dan O’Brien 
  Jeff Winarski 
  Shirley Darge 
  Tom Tighe 
  Cyndee Krstich 
  Harold Jankowiak 

   Megan Cyrulewski 
  Alison Miller 

Linda Hannon

 
City Staff Present:
   Bob Matlick 
   Jeff Biegler 
   Cindy Stewart 
   Gerry Scherlinck    
 
Minutes: 
 
Motion to approve the minutes from June 22, 2004 with correction that JoAnn Preston was 
here. 
 
Moved by Kessie Kaltsounis 
Seconded by Bill Hall 
Approved unanimously. 
 
Treasurer’s report. 
 
Through May 31, 2004 
Exp: $176,321.86 
Rev: no report 
 
Correspondence 
 
Fee Recommendation Addition for children’s area – entertainment and games 
3 tickets for $1.00 for games.   
 
Kiddieland Games (fish pond, race car, beanie toss 



Medium Games (toss tic tac toe, putt it, roller bowler) 
Hard Games (crazy ball) 
 
Arnold Amusement Rides 
$1.50 kiddie rides 
$2.00 medium rides 
$2.50 large rides 
 
Thursday evening only promo  - 10 rides $10 
 
Need volunteer and business of yr. Nominations @ next meeting Aug. 24th 
 
 
Events Chairpersons 
 
Marilyn Musick (“The Magic Cauldron”) – Using same tent as Ability Expo on Thurs & 
Naturalization Ceremony on Friday.  Kids crafts have own tent.  Need 9 tables and 20 chairs,  
15 bales of hay,  6 x 10 stage.  Tent open Sat 12 – 8p and Sun 1 - 7p. 
Cheryl Whitton (Corporate Sponsors) – Get check requests in.   Trophies gold and black.   
Ad in supplement thanking donors – CS suggested a smaller ad with all sponsors listed for  
Miss Troy,  Mr. Troy,  Jaycee Race.  Need for new banners:  National City & Troy Times. 
Diane Mitchell (Cutest Toddler) – 11 entries to date. 
Tom Kaszubski (Opening Ceremonies) – Need 144 chairs.  Tim McAvoy, Troy schools, 
offering to help.  Ordering 125 mum plants 
(Parade) 35 units in to date.  Trying for fife and drums corp from Plymouth.  Alice entries 
came in - decision next month. 
Kessie Kaltsounis (Shuttle Carts) – Driver volunteers coming in. 
Bill Hall (Mr. Troy/Info booth) – Sign at info booth listing entertainment.  All set with balloons, 
need helium, 4 tables and  6 chairs.  Committee needs to sign up for hours in Info booth.  Mr 
Troy – 1 application in.  President Tuxedo all set.  Idea to have Mr. Troy on Miss Troy float.  If 
yes, need to redo sign. 
Cele Dilley (Booths) – Booth times under tent , Fri 4p – 10p, Sat. 11a – 10p, Sun. 11a – 7p. 
Food: Fri. 4p – 11p, Sat. 11a – 11p, Sun. 11a – 9p. 
To date, 57 under tent.  15 food vendors, most the same.  New - Mexican food “White Dove” 
Concessions,  Maui Wowie Smoothies,  Ice Cream Cart – Key Lime Pie Bars $3 
Bob Preston (Student Volunteers) – waiting for written response from Bishop Foley.  Marilyn 
needs student volunteers for kids tent. 
Cynthia Buchanan  (Ability Expo) – Applications mailed.  24 spaces available.  Tables same 
as last year.  24 tables & 48 chairs. 
JoAnn Preston (EthniCity) – Naturalization Ceremony (50 new citizens).  Poster contest 
moving along - need more entries.  9 paid groups in to date for EthniCity.  This year will 
include info on voting around the world.  Thurs (8 am – 8pm) or Fri. (8 am –4 pm) set up for 
Ethnicity Booths.   
Bob Matlick (Fire Department) - Application in to City Clerks office for fireworks.  Fire Dept 
doing inspections Thursday and Friday.  Water Battle on – Clawson v Troy 
Dan O’Brien (Outdoor EthniCity Entertainment) – 14 confirmed.  Waiting for 6-8 additional.  
40x40 canopy/tent over area to watch outdoor stage for shade 
Mike Gonda (Operations) – Motto – “same as last year”.  Al Lindsey – could provide sun 
tents and coolers (minimal cost) at staging area for parade.   
Laura Fitzpatrick (Jaycees 5K/10K) – 6 entries to date.  Registration online.  Meeting with 
PD soon with specifics. 



Jeff Stewart/Linda Hannon (Special Needs Kids) – Try new plan re-loading buses at end of 
day.  Call buses from lot when kids ready.  Idea for lunch – pizza only?  Gets confusing 
having both foods.  Jeff and Linda will talk to Dave or Paul Buscemi re: what he’d cover.  Troy 
Daze providing pop – 2 liter bottles and cups on tables. 
Serving Lunch – gather volunteers 15 minutes early to organize.  Jeff will coordinate servers, 
assign jobs.  Newcomers Club – ask for prepacked rice krispy treats if they call and offer 
cookies. 
Okay for a banner – in memory of Larry Selaty. 
Cindy Stewart (Publicity) – C + G info passed out re: advertising. Supplement out Sept. 9. 
Megan C (car show) – Aug 12 meeting w/ dealers, Chrysler, Bentley, Ford, Lincoln, Volvo, 
Hummer, Pontiac/GMC.  Asking Handleman & Altair to be sponsors.  Be sure and let 
Corporate Sponsor Committee aware of whom you’re asking so not to duplicate.   
Lois C (Entertainment) – Everything  booked.  Need promos for Talent Show 
Harold (photo contest) – Need  1 table, 2 chairs.  Photos can be hung Thurs or Friday.  He 
will be available entire weekend.  
Update on sponsors – Meteor $500 and awards.  We might have met their criteria of banners 
to be printed (15) and they will increase donation to $1500. 
Jim C – attempt to get volunteer help from seniors by having Carla put info in Senior News 
and Views.  (Info booth, car show, shuttle drivers, student art) 
Jeff B – Wilson’s Pony and Camel.  They need to connect with Steve C (Risk Mgt).  Lawn 
signs – send to Cindy.  Need by Sept 8 (booth mtg.) 
Gerry S (Police) – working with committee chairs and fire dept. regarding parade, race, 
fireworks 
Cyndee K (Miss Troy) – Considering giving Miss Troy her prize $ night of contest.  In past, 
checks came late; in the future some girls might be finished with college.  If not in rules, okay 
to put in check request now and give her money night of pageant.  Trophies will be here Aug 
2.  Black drapes last year very dark.  Ordered gold gossamer to decorate and lighten curtain.  
32 contestants. 
Shirley Darge (Ethnic Ent – in tent) – 2 groups inside stage.  Sun evening: Latin group and  
Aloha Tropics.  Looking for Thursday group 
Alison Miller (teen event) – Sat Night Battle of the Bands – 3 groups, 30 minutes each.  1 
prize $100.  3 judges (Miss Troy, Chief Craft, mystery judge) 
Dhwani Mehta (student rep) – will contact schools regarding volunteers for PA 
announcements.  
Jean Stine couldn’t make meeting but will help coordinate student volunteers from local 
schools. 
 
 
New Business:  None 
 
 
Motion to adjourn the Festival Committee meeting by Bill Hall 
Seconded by  Kessie Kaltsounis 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Meeting is adjourned at 9:35 pm.   



City of Troy
J-01















LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                        August 9, 2004 
 

Page 1 of 3 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, August 9, 2004 
in Conference Room C of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  Chairman Max K. 
Ehlert called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
  
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Henry W. Allemon 
    Anita Elenbaum 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    James R. Peard 
    Emily Polet, Student Representative 
    Carolyn Glosby, Assistant City Attorney 
    Sergeant Thomas J. Gordon 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: Alex Bennett 
    James C. Moseley 
 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Members Bennett and Moseley 
 
Resolution #LC2004-08-116 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Ehlert  
 
RESOLVED, that the absence of Committee members Bennett and Moseley at the Liquor 
Advisory Committee meeting of August 9, 2004 BE EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  5  
No:  None 
Absent: Bennett and Moseley 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of June 14, 2004 Meeting  
 
Resolution #LC2004-08-117 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Elenbaum 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the June 14, 2004 meeting of the Liquor Advisory 
Committee be approved. 
 
Yes:  5  

HolmesBA
Text Box
J-01



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                        August 9, 2004 
 

Page 2 of 3 

No:  None 
Absent: Bennett and Moseley  
 
_____________________________________________________________________  
 
Agenda Items: 
 
1.    EMERALD FOOD SERVICE, INC. requests a new full year (quota) Class C license with Sunday 

Sales, Official Permit (Food), and Outdoor Service Area, to be located at 1450 E. South Blvd., Troy, MI 
48085, Oakland County.   This request is being made by the food service vendor for the new Sanctuary 
Lakes golf course. 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were Kim Haveraneck from Emerald 
Food Service, Inc. and Carol Anderson, City of Troy Parks & Recreation Director. 
 
The contract for food and beverage service at the new Sanctuary Lakes Golf Course was 
put out for bid.  Carol Anderson, City of Troy Parks & Recreation Director, has 
recommended that Emerald Food Service, Inc. be awarded this contract.  They have 
provided food and beverage service at the Troy Community Center for 17 years.   
 
There is indoor seating for 50 patrons and outdoor seating for 180 on the pavilion.  The 
pavilion was constructed with the option to enclose the area in the future.  Emerald Food 
proposes to have both grill and banquet menus.  There will be a serving station outside.  
They will most likely be open for this golf season with food service but not with liquor 
service.  Managers and wait staff will be trained through the TIPS program.  Ms. 
Haveraneck indicated she will attempt to have the training performed on-premise. 
 
The beverage service contract will be awarded for one year from the start of food service 
with two options to renew for two years each.  At that point, the contract will be put out for 
bid.  The contract states that Emerald Food Service, if awarded the contract, will be the 
licensee.  When their contract with the City ends, they must cooperate with subsequent 
food vendor or return the license to the City.   
 
Resolution #LC2004-08-118 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Peard 
 
RESOLVED, that EMERALD FOOD SERVICE, INC. be awarded a new full year (quota) 
Class C license with Sunday Sales, Official Permit (Food), and Outdoor Service Area, to 
be located at 1450 E. South Blvd., Troy, MI 48085, Oakland County.    
 
Yes:  5  
No:  None 
Absent: Bennett and Moseley  
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:35 p.m. 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                        August 9, 2004 
 

Page 3 of 3 

 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Patricia A. Gladysz, Clerk-Typist 



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Draft August 10, 2004 
 

1 

A Meeting of the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) was held Tuesday, August 10, 2004, at 
Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road in the Lower Level Conference Room. Chairman 
McGinnis called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. 
 
ROLL CALL 
   PRESENT:  Chairman Donald E. McGinnis, Jr.   
     Commissioner Patrick Daugherty 
     Commissioner David Cannon (Absent/Excused) 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Lori Bluhm - City Attorney, Peggy Clifton - Human Resources 

Director, Police Chief Charles Craft, Captain Edward Murphy, Sgt. 
Michael Bjork, Sgt. Thomas Gordon, Sgt. John Schaufler, Barbara 
A. Holmes - Deputy City Clerk, Greg Schultz – Lange & Cholack, 
P.C., Christine Felts – Court Reporter – Christine Felts & 
Associates, Petitioner Jamie Hill 

 
Approval of Minutes of February 26, 2004 
 
Resolution #CSC-2004-02-008 
Moved by McGinnis 
Seconded by Cannon 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the meeting of January 22, 2004 be APPROVED as 
presented. 
 
Yes:  McGinnis, Cannon 
No:  None 
Absent: Daugherty 
 
Petitions and Communications 
 
(a) Request for an Act 78 Appeal Hearing – Jamie Hill 
 
Chair McGinnis asked the petitioner if he would prefer to postpone the hearing until there is a 
full complement of the Commission. 
 
Mr. Hill replied that he would waive that right at this time. 
 
Chair McGinnis asked the petitioner if he had any evidence to present. 
 
Mr. Hill replied that he did not have any evidence, but that he did have mostly questions that he 
would like to raise. 
 
Greg Schultz, legal counsel from Lange & Cholack, P.C., distributed documentation relative to 
the petitioner’s hearing. 
 
The hearing RECESSED at 7:08 PM to allow time for review of the documentation presented 
by Mr. Schultz. 

HolmesBA
Text Box
J-01



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Draft August 10, 2004 
 

2 

The hearing RECONVENED at 7:16 PM. 
 
Chair McGinnis advised that this is the first time any documentation was presented to the 
Commission relative to the petitioner’s hearing. 
 
Mr. Hill noted that this is the first time he has seen any kind of documentation of this kind also. 
He added that he requested copies of his employment file, but the document presented tonight 
was not in his file. 
 
Chair McGinnis advised the petitioner that based upon what the petitioner has read tonight, that 
he may request a postponement to review the documentation and come back before the 
Commission at a later date. He further noted that the petitioner cannot challenge the 
documentation based upon what he thinks, but rather he must return with evidence. 
 
Chair McGinnis questioned whether the petitioner had the appropriate documentation in terms 
of his defense of the allegations. 
 
Mr. Schultz noted that the summary appears on page five of the document and that the first 
four pages only serve as background information. 
 
Chair McGinnis asked Mr. Hill to be prepared to address all the allegations in an orderly way 
with evidence of why he believes the city has done something improperly. 
 
Commissioner Cannon agreed that the petitioner must make his case. 
 
Mr. Hill believes he needs additional documentation regarding the investigation. 
 
Chair McGinnis responded that there may or may not be more documentation. 
 
Commissioner Cannon would like to hear what the petitioner’s claim is. 
 
Mr. Hill questioned how he could prove his point. 
 
Chair McGinnis explained that the hearing is not conducted as a jury trial. He added that the 
petitioner could represent himself and ask questions directly, or hire an attorney as to why the 
city is denying him employment. 
 
Chair McGinnis asked the petitioner how much time he will need to make his case. 
 
Mr. Hill responded that he would need at least a week. 
 
Chair McGinnis asked the petitioner to contact the City Attorney’s office in writing as soon as 
possible so that the matter may be concluded. 
 
Lori Bluhm requested that the petitioner prepare a list of what he is looking for. 
 
Chair McGinnis agreed adding that it would provide the city with an opportunity to look at the 
matter more thoroughly and faster. 



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Draft August 10, 2004 
 

3 

Mr. Schultz noted that he understands that Sgt. Gordon provided the petitioner with the 
opportunity to meet with him. 
 
Chair McGinnis restated that the petitioner has not seen this document until tonight and should 
have at least been given the summary to review.  He noted that the documents could be 
reviewed on camera. 
 
Chief Craft advised that they will provide all documentation that the decision was based upon if 
requested. 
 
Chair McGinnis believes the documentation can be limited to the summary and added that the 
decision is ultimately up to the department. 
 
Chair McGinnis and Commissioner Cannon agreed that any information deemed confidential 
could be struck from the summary. 
 
Chair McGinnis asked if the petitioner was going to hire an attorney. 
 
Mr. Hill replied that he would. 
 
Chair McGinnis noted that at this time, the appeal hearing is postponed to date to be 
determined.  
 
Chair McGinnis further noted that the documents presented by Lange & Cholack, P.C. were 
returned to Mr. Schultz at this time.  
 
New Business: None presented 
 
Old Business:  None presented 
 
Adjournment:   The meeting was adjourned at 7:36 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Donald E. McGinnis, Jr., Chairman  Barbara A. Holmes, CMC - Deputy City Clerk 



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Draft August 11, 2004 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees was held on 
Wednesday, August 11, 2004, at Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI.   
The meeting was called to order at 12:10 p.m. 
 

 
TRUSTEES PRESENT: Mark Calice 
 Robert Crawford 
 Thomas Houghton, Chair 
 John M. Lamerato 
 William R. Need 
 Steven A. Pallotta 
 John Szerlag 
 
ABSENT: David A. Lambert  
 
ALSO PRESENT: Laura Fitzpatrick 
  
 
 
EXCUSE TRUSTEE LAMBERT 
 
Resolution # ER – 2004 – 08 - 030 
Moved by Szerlag 
Seconded by Crawford 
 
RESOLVED, That David A. Lambert be excused. 
 
Yeas:  All 6 
Absent: Lambert 
 
 
MINUTES 
 
Resolution # ER – 2004 – 08 - 031 
Moved by Crawford 
Seconded by Lamerato 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the July 14, 2004 meeting be approved.  
 
Yeas:  All 6 
Absent: Lambert 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HolmesBA
Text Box
J-01



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Draft August 11, 2004 
 
 

 2

RETIREMENT REQUESTS 
 
Resolution # ER – 2004 – 08 - 032 
Moved by Lamerato 
Seconded by Szerlag 
 
RESOLVED, That the following retirement request be approved: 
 
Philip A. Dimaria, DB, 8/11/04, Police, 28 years, 10 months 
Roger A. Owens, DB, 8/21/04, Public Works, 28 years, 7 months 
William D. McCabe, DC, 8/21/04, Police, 25 years 
 
Yeas:  All 6 
Absent: Lambert 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – PART- TIME SERVICE CREDIT 
 
Part-time service request of Christine Hill of 2 years be received and filed. 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS –PRIOR GOVERNMENTAL SERVICE 
 
The requests of Cynthia Stewart be received and filed. 
  
 
INVESTMENTS 
 
Resolution # ER – 2004 – 08 - 033 
Moved by Pallotta 
Seconded by Houghton 
 
RESOLVED, That the following investments be purchased and sold: 
Purchase - $500,000 GMAC Smart Notes, 5.25% due 8/15/09; $500,000 Bank America, 
5.125% due 8/15/14; Sell – Hershey; King Pharmaceutical; Kroger; KV Pharmaceutical; 
Magna Entertainment; MGIC; MI Developments; Purchase – 4,800 shares Hartford 
Financial Services; 1,750 shares Hibbett Sporting Goods; 7,000 shares IDEX; 10,000 
shares Int’l Game Technologies; 8,000 shares Linen N Things; 5,000 shares McDonalds; 
9,000 shares Methode Electronics; 9,000 shares Michaels Stores; 5,000 shares MMM; 
8,000 shares New England Business Services; 10,000 shares NOKIA; 7,000 shares 
Pepsi; 5,000 shares PF Changs; 5,000 shares Panera Bread; 4,000 shares Omnicom; 
3,000 shares Orthofix; and place stop/loss on K-mart at $55 and Kraft at $27. 
 
 
Yeas:  All 6   
Absent:  Lambert 
 
 



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Draft August 11, 2004 
 
 

 3

The next meeting is September 8, 2004 at 12:00 p.m. at City Hall, Conference Room C, 
 500 W Big Beaver, Troy, MI. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 1:30 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JML/bt\Retirement Board\2004\08-11-04 Minutes_Draft.doc 



DATE:        August 2, 2004   
TO:            John Szerlag, City Manager
FROM:       Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:  Permits issued during the Month of July 2004

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Add/Alter 2 $180,000.00 $1,354.00
Parking Lot 1 $80,000.00 $671.00

Sub Total 3 $260,000.00 $2,025.00

COMMERCIAL
Fnd./Shell New 1 $9,900,000.00 $40,896.00
Tenant Completion 1 $38,000.00 $404.00
Add/Alter 24 $4,523,153.00 $28,635.25
Repair 2 $377,000.00 $2,385.00

Sub Total 28 $14,838,153.00 $72,320.25

RESIDENTIAL
New 16 $2,375,143.00 $46,244.30
Add/Alter 33 $643,529.00 $6,988.50
Garage/Acc. Structure 7 $21,500.00 $610.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 8 $175,618.00 $1,940.00
Fire Repair 1 $43,843.00 $380.00
Wreck 4 $4,000.00 $590.00
Fnd./Slab/Footing 2 $7,675.00 $205.00

Sub Total 71 $3,271,308.00 $56,957.80

TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
New 12 $993,000.00 $9,712.00
Add/Alter 3 $43,500.00 $580.00

Sub Total 15 $1,036,500.00 $10,292.00

MULTIPLE
Add/Alter 1 $8,000.00 $130.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 1 $24,750.00 $285.00

Sub Total 2 $32,750.00 $415.00

INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
Add/Alter 1 $350,000.00 $2,214.00

Sub Total 1 $350,000.00 $2,214.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Signs 34 $0.00 $3,318.00

Page 1

City of Troy
J-02a



Fences 27 $0.00 $415.00

Sub Total 61 $0.00 $3,733.00

TOTAL 181 $19,788,711.00 $147,957.05

Page 2



PERMITS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF JULY 2004
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 20 $200.00
Cert. of Occupancy 53 $4,010.75
Plan Review 159 $9,637.50
Microfilm 30 $392.00
Building Permits 181 $147,957.05
Electrical Permits 231 $17,400.00
Heating Permits 197 $10,110.00
Air Cond. Permits 85 $3,995.00
Plumbing Permits 156 $11,346.00
Storm Sewer Permits 18 $1,347.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 29 $1,117.00
Sewer Taps 32 $6,656.00

TOTAL 1191 $214,168.30

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF JULY 2004
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 19 $95.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 20 $300.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 32 $32.00
Sewer Inst.-Reg. 8 $400.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 9 $90.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 4 $40.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 26 $260.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 2 $30.00

TOTAL 120 $1,247.00

Page 3



BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING PERMIT
PERMITS VALUATION PERMITS VALUATION

2003 2003 2004 2004

JANUARY 83 $3,349,579.00 100 $5,235,481.00

FEBRUARY 98 $6,941,418.00 130 $21,354,496.00

MARCH 106 $10,102,093.00 159 $9,372,242.00

APRIL 150 $7,185,781.00 180 $14,158,227.00

MAY 269 $13,984,618.00 236 $11,511,644.00

JUNE 209 $20,116,880.00 236 $16,224,865.00

JULY 196 $17,222,754.00 181 $19,788,711.00

AUGUST 179 $7,971,188.00 0 $0.00

SEPTEMBER 181 $13,656,695.00 0 $0.00

OCTOBER 195 $11,302,769.00 0 $0.00

NOVEMBER 136 $5,897,752.00 0 $0.00

DECEMBER 182 $18,153,988.00 0 $0.00

TOTAL 1984 $135,885,515.00 1222 $97,645,666.00



SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2004

6 5 7

17
12

15 16

0 0 0 0 0
0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35

Ja
n

u
ar

y

F
eb

ru
ar

y

M
ar

ch

A
p

ri
l

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
u

g
u

st

S
ep

te
m

b
er

O
ct

o
b

er

N
o

ve
m

b
er

D
ec

em
b

er



HolmesBA
Text Box
J-02b









HolmesBA
Text Box
J-02c



TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council   
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Allan T. Motzny, Assistant City Attorney  
DATE: August 10, 2004 

  
  

SUBJECT: Political Sign Ordinance- Chapter 85-A of Troy City Code   
 

 

Chapter 78 of the Troy City ordinances sets forth the regulations for signs in the City.  
Under these provisions, certain signs are exempt from permit requirements.   These 
exceptions include small signs (not more than two square feet in area), real estate signs, 
garage sale signs, non-commercial signs (not exceeding six square feet), and corporate 
flags.  In addition, Chapter 85-A of the City of Troy ordinances allows for political signs 
without a permit.     

The City has recently received a letter from the ACLU, criticizing Section 3 of the 
Political Signs Ordinance (Chapter 85-A), which provides:   

3. Political Sign Control 

(a) Political signs may be erected in addition to all other signs permitted by 
Chapter 78 without a permit if they comply with the provisions of this 
section.  Permission shall be obtained from the property owners where 
signs are located.  

(b) Uses:  Political signs shall be solely for the purpose of providing 
information relating to the election of a person to public office, or relating 
to a political party, or relating to a matter to be voted upon at an election 
called by a public body, or any other public issue or expression of 
opinion, and shall be permitted subject to the following conditions.  

(1) Maximum Area and Number:  No more than two (2) political signs 
shall be placed on any parcel of real property in one ownership 
and the area of each sign shall not exceed two and one half (2.5) 
square feet.  Political Signs shall not be located closer than twenty 
(20) feet to the edge of the traveled portion of the roadway and not 
in a dedicated right-of-way.  Political signs shall be ground or wall 
signs, no ground sign shall be higher than thirty-six (36) inches 
above average mean grade of the yard on which it is placed.  

(2) No sign shall be erected or displayed earlier than thirty (30) days 
before an election or event to which it relates, and shall be 
removed within ten (10) calendar days after the event or election.  
Signs that express an opinion unrelated to an election date are 
limited to a period of display not to exceed thirty (30) days in one 
(1) calendar year on any parcel of real property in one ownership.  
Signs shall not be attached to any utility pole or be located within 
any public right- of- way.   

HolmesBA
Text Box
J-02d



(3) Such signs shall not be erected in such a manner that they will or 
reasonably may be expected to interfere with, obstruct, confuse or 
mislead traffic.  

The ACLU letter erroneously used an outdated version of Troy’s ordinance for its legal 
analysis.  However, the ACLU letter can be narrowed down to four areas where Troy 
ALLEGEDLY violates the First Amendment of the constitution: the number of allowed signs; 
the limitations on the size of each political sign, the time limitations for political signs and the 
separation of political signs from other types of signs.       

A. Number of Allowed Signs 

Troy’s ordinance allows up to two political signs on any single piece of property.  
There is no distinction between residential and non-residential properties under Chapter 85-
A.  It is our opinion that there is no legal reason to amend the City’s ordinance- which 
includes valid time, place, and manner restrictions.  However, some members of City Council 
may wish to increase the allowable number of political signs, or may wish to provide different 
allowances for differing zoning districts.  Some members of the public have advocated for an 
unlimited number of political signs.  Others have requested one allowable sign per candidate 
or ballot question, which could result in several signs in a presidential election cycle.  Others 
support the current ordinance, and others recommend a hybrid approach.  If a majority of City 
Council seeks to amend this provision of the ordinance, then City Administration can compile 
a chart of the allowable political signs in other metro Detroit jurisdictions prior to any Council 
action on amendments.  This compilation may be complicated, since some jurisdictions limit 
the total “face” amount, rather than limit the number of signs.              

B. Limitations on Sizes of Political Signs 

Troy’s political sign ordinance limits the size of political signs to a maximum display 
area of 2 ½ square feet, and a height not to exceed 3 feet.  For double- sided signs, the area 
of both sides is included in the area calculation.  It is our opinion that this size limitation is a 
valid time, place and manner restriction, and therefore there is no legal reason to amend the 
City’s ordinance.  However, if a majority of City Council desires to allow larger political signs, 
then City Administration can research the ordinances of other jurisdictions to provide some 
additional guidance to City Council.        

C. Time Limitations for Political Signs   

Troy’s political sign ordinance provides that political signs may not be displayed earlier 
than thirty (30) days before an election, and they must be removed within ten (10) calendar 
days after an election.   In addition, signs that express an opinion unrelated to an election are 
limited to thirty (30) days of display per calendar year.  Based on our research, it is our 
opinion that these provisions are valid time, place and manner restrictions that do not violate 
the First Amendment of the United States Constitution.  However, if a majority of City Council 
desires to amend these sections of the ordinance, City Administration can provide some 
recommended language.  

  



D. Segregation of Political Signs   

Troy separates its political sign regulations from the other sign regulations.  The ACLU 
letter challenges that this practice violates the constitutional requirement of content neutrality 
regulations.  In support of this allegation, the ACLU relies almost exclusively on a 1996 
opinion by Eastern District of Michigan Judge Anna Diggs Taylor in Dimas v. City of Warren 
(939 F. Supp. 545).  This federal district court opinion is binding only on the City of Warren, 
since it was not appealed.   Similarly, there is a recent district court case, King Enterprises, 
Inc. v. Thomas Township, 215 F. Supp. 891 (2004), which is similarly not binding on the City 
of Troy.   The decisions in the Dimas and King Enterprises cases are based on how the 
courts interpreted the term “content neutral”.   Essentially, those courts opined that any 
regulation based on the type of sign,(e.g. political sign) are content based, subjecting the 
regulation to strict scrutiny.  However, there are other court decisions that apply a different 
analysis when determining the content neutrality of an ordinance.  The recent decision of the 
Michigan Court of Appeals in Outdoor Systems Inc. v City of Clawson, ___ Mich App ___; 
___NW2d___ (2004), discussed the proper analysis for determining content neutrality: 

 
The principal inquiry in determining content neutrality, in speech cases 
generally and in time, place, or manner cases in particular, is whether the 
government has adopted a regulation of speech because of disagreement with 
the message it conveys.  The government’s purpose is the controlling 
consideration.  A regulation that serves purposes unrelated to the content of 
expression is deemed neutral, even if it has an incidental effect on some 
speakers or messages but not others.  Government regulation of expressive 
activity is content neutral so long as it is “justified without reference to the 
content of the regulated speech.” [Ward v Rock Against Racism, 491 U.S. 781, 
791-792; 109 S Ct 2746; 105 L Ed 2d 661 (1989) (citations omitted).] 

 
This published decision of the Michigan Court of Appeals is binding on the City of 

Troy, and therefore it is appropriate to utilize the analysis set forth in the Outdoor Systems 
case in determining the validity of Troy’s ordinance. Applying such analysis, it is our opinion 
the City of Troy Political Sign Ordinance is content neutral because it does not regulate what 
may or may not be said on a particular political sign.  

 
Since signs are a form of expression, any ordinance regulating signs must be drafted 

to insure the ordinance does not infringe upon freedom of speech as guaranteed by the First 
Amendment to the United States Constitution.  Metromedia, Inc. v City of San Diego, 453 US 
190; 101 S Ct 2882; 69 L Ed 2d 800 (1981).  It is well-settled, however, that time, place and 
manner restrictions on expression are constitutionally permissible if they are justified without 
reference to the content of regulated speech, they serve a significant government interest, 
and they leave open ample alternative channels for communication of the information.  
Gannett Outdoor Co. of Michigan v City of Troy, 156 Mich App 126, 132-133; 409 NW2d 719 
(1986).  As a content neutral regulation, the time, place and manner restrictions set forth in 
Troy’s political sign ordinance are valid if they serve a significant government interest and 
they leave open ample alternative channels for communication of the information.  Gannett, 
132-133.  Chapter 78 of the Troy City Code reveals sign regulations in the City of Troy serve 



many purposes including the promotion of traffic safety, prevention of visual obstruction, 
fostering the most appropriate uses of the land, and preserving and improving the 
appearance of the city.  Such interests have been held sufficient governmental interest to 
support content neutral sign regulations.  Gannett, 136; Outdoor Systems, Inc.  Troy’s 
ordinance also leaves open ample alternative channels for communication of information 
regarding political candidates and ideas.  In addition to showing their support of candidates 
and expressing opinions on political signs in accordance with the ordinance, residents of Troy 
may also distribute literature concerning candidates, they may post signs and bumper 
stickers on automobiles, and they may freely express their ideas and political concerns using 
the newspaper and the internet.  Thus the regulations set forth in Troy’s ordinance are valid. 

 
Please let us know if you should have any questions or if additional research would be 

helpful. 
 

 

 



 
 

POLITICAL SIGN ORDINANCE REQUIREMENTS OF VARIOUS MUNICIPALITIES 
 

 
The * appearing in some blanks denotes the ordinance had no specific provision governing the matter. 
Municipality Number 

of signs 
per 

parcel 

Size Time limitations 

Clawson 3 Maximum area of 3 sq. feet. 
Maximum height of 4 sq. feet. 

45 days before election. 
72 hours after election. 

Sterling 
Heights 

      3 Maximum area for all signs on 
one parcel is 9 square feet in 
one and two family districts.  
Max. area of 12 square feet in all 
other districts.     

Signs may not be displayed prior to the deadline 
for becoming a candidate or having an issue 
placed on the ballot.  Signs must be removed 7 
days after the election. 
 

Southfield      * Maximum of 32 square feet of 
signage. 

60 days before election. 
Must be removed 30 days after election. 

West 
Bloomfield 

     * Maximum of 6 square feet per 
face with max. of 2 faces on 
residential parcels.  Max. of 32 
square feet per face w/ max. of 2 
faces on nonresidential parcels.  
Max. height of 3 feet for 
residential parcels and 6 ft for 
nonresidential. 

Signs may be displayed for sixty days.  After 
sixty days, signs may still be displayed subject to 
requirements set forth in ordinance. 
Signs must be removed 10 days after election. 

Royal Oak      * Maximum of 10 square feet in 
area for one face signs and 20 
square feet for two face signs.  
Political signs are only allowed 
on private property. 

* 
 

Orion Twp Only 4 
allowed 
at one 
inter-
section.  
No limits 
on per 
parcel 
basis. 

Max. area of 6 square feet per 
side for residential and 12 
square ft. per side for 
nonresidential with a max. of 2 
sides. 

60 days prior to election. 
Signs must be removed 7 days following 
election. 

Clinton Twp * Max. of 16 square ft. in area on 
residential parcels and max. of 
32 sq. ft. of area on 
nonresidential parcels. 

30 days before election. 
Signs must be removed 10 days after an 
election. 



Berkley * The amount of signage allowed 
per parcel varies with a max. of 
6 square ft for residential and 20 
square feet for commercial. 

Signs must be removed within 10 days after an 
election.  There is no provision with regard to 
how soon before an election that political signs 
may be displayed. 
 
 

Beverly Hills      * Individual signs shall not exceed 
4 square feet and the total area 
of political signs on one parcel 
shall not exceed 20 square feet. 

Political signs must be removed within 10 days 
following an election.  Signs that express an 
opinion unrelated to an election are limited to a 
period of display of 30 days. 

City of 
Northville 

     * * 45 days prior to an election. 
Signs must be removed 5 days after an election.

Rochester 
Hills 

     * Political signs may not exceed 6 
square feet in area and are only 
allowed on parcels with at least 
one occupied building. 

31 days before an election. 
Signs must be removed within 48 hours after an 
election. 

Auburn Hills      4 Maximum area of 6 square feet 
per sign. 

30 days before election. 
Signs must be removed first Monday following an 
election. 

Novi 1 sign for 
each 
cand. or 
ballot 
issue. 

Maximum of 6 square feet in 
area and maximum height of 5 
feet. 

30 days before election. 
Signs must be removed 5 days after election. 

Madison 
Heights 

     * Maximum area of 16 square 
feet. 

Political signs may be displayed a total of 60 
days or until 10 days after an election, whichever 
occurs first. 
 

East 
Lansing 

     3 Maximum area of 6 square feet 
and maximum height of 3 and1/2 
feet.  

30 days before an election. 
Signs must be removed 7 days after an election.

Dearborn 
Heights 

     * Maximum area of 4.5 square 
feet. 

30 days before election. 
Signs must be removed 5 days after election. 

Oak Park      * Maximum area of 12 square feet 
per sign.  Maximum height of 6 
feet per sign. 

45 days before election. 
Signs must be removed 10 days after election. 

Ann Arbor      * Maximum height of 48 inches, 
maximum width of 36 inches, 
and the bottom of each sign 
must be at least 6 inches off the 
ground. 

Signs must be removed within 18 hours after an 
election.  There is no provision with regard to 
how soon before an election that political signs 
may be displayed. 



Warren 2 signs 
per 
candi- 
date and 
per 
issue. 3    
“opinion” 
signs per 
residen- 
tial lot. 

Election signs may have a 
maximum area of 16 square feet 
if located on major thoroughfare 
and a maximum of 6 square feet 
if located on residential property.  
Opinion signs may not exceed 4 
square feet in area. 

Election signs may be displayed 60 days prior to 
an election and must be removed 7 days after an 
election.  There are no time limitations provided 
with respect to “opinion” signs. 

 



City of Troy
J-03a



HolmesBA
Text Box
J-03b



HolmesBA
Text Box
J-03c



HolmesBA
Text Box
J-05







HolmesBA
Text Box
J-06



HolmesBA
Text Box
J-07



August 17, 2004 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
   
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
  Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
     
Re: 2005 City Calendar 
 
 
 
In an effort to reduce costs this year, we plan to print 20,000 City Calendars and 
incorporate the Popular Annual Financial Report (PAFR) into the City Calendar by 
adding an 8-page spread.  It will also provide a better distribution of the PAFR. 
Since the mailing of the City Calendar was removed during budget adoption, it will be 
difficult to estimate how many calendars we will distribute at City Hall, Community 
Center, Library and various other locations throughout the City.   
 
The estimated cost to print 20,000 calendars plus 8 pages for the PAFR is $27,045.  
Last year’s PAFR cost was $4,160.  This will give us a net savings of approximately 
$2,765 for printing plus $6,020 for postage costs since we will not be mailing the 
calendar.  Since we will be changing the quantity, it will result in our re-bidding the 
printing of the calendar. 
 
After talking with a variety of local business owners and companies in Troy, we have 
determined that ad sales would not be feasible due to the limited means of 
distribution.  Many people have expressed concern with advertising in a publication 
without a guaranteed distribution method. 
 
Absent any objection, staff will proceed with the project as described.  
 

HolmesBA
Text Box
J-08



HolmesBA
Text Box
J-09

























HolmesBA
Text Box
J-10











HolmesBA
Text Box
J-11




	Agenda: August 23, 2004
	Goals
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations: Introduction of Brad Henson, Candidate fo


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 6471 Denton
	C-2 COBASYS/Texaco Ovonic
	C-3 Proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA #202) – A

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 Approval of City at Large to Pay for Sidewalk Replacemen

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Minutes:  Regular Meeting of August 9, 2004
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  No City of Troy 
	E-4 Request from First Baptist Church of Troy for Temporary 
	E-5 Request from Joseph J. Malla – Chairman, Veterans Monume
	E-6 Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: State of Michigan MiDE
	E-7 Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: State of Michigan MiDE
	E-8 Informal Quotation Process Award of Professional Enginee
	E-9 Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – 
	E-10 Request to Waive Parking Restrictions
	E-11 Winter Maintenance Agreement – Road Commission for Oakl
	E-12 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Sta
	E-13 Private Agreement for Cedar Pines Site Condominiums – P

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral Appoi
	F-2 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement, Helen A. Kal
	F-3 Community Development Block Grant Status Change from Met
	F-4 Street Vacation Application (SV-185) – South 149.26 feet
	F-5 Request for Approval of Agreement to Purchase Right-of-W
	F-6 Emerald Food Services, Inc.: Proposed Contract and Amend
	F-7 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement for Maple Roa
	F-8 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement for Thien Van
	F-9 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement for Paul K. D
	F-10 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Proposed Timbercr
	F-11 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Proposed Presiden
	F-12 Request to Schedule a Study Session to Discuss Neighbor
	F-13 Confirmation of Appointment; Mr. Brian Murphy as Assist
	F-14 Sole Source – Purchase of Opticom Emitters for Emergenc

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: No Public Hearing Annou
	G-2 Green Memorandums:
	Memorandum, Re: Municipal Civil Infractions Ordinance
	Memorandum, Re: Group Day Care Homes


	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1  No Council Referrals advanced to the City Manager.

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1  No Council Comments submitted.

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Final – February 26, 2004
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – Jun
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – Jun
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – June 14, 2004
	Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Final – June 22, 2004
	Historic Study Committee/Draft – June 29, 2004
	Planning Commission/Final – July 13, 2004
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – July 
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – July 20, 2004
	Historic Study Committee/Draft – July 26, 2004
	Planning Commission-6:00 PM-Special/Final – July 27, 2004
	Planning Commission-7:30 PM-Special/Final – July 27, 2004
	Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – July 27, 2004
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – August 4, 2004
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – August 9, 2004
	Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Draft – August 10, 2004
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – Augus

	J-2 Department Reports:
	Permits Issued During the Month of July 2004
	Troy Medi-Go Plus – 2003 Annual Report/Newsletter
	Letter from Martha W. Northrup to Troy City Council Re: Wood
	Memorandum, Re: Political Sign Ordinance – Chapter 85-A of t

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter from Gus Chutorash, Director of Camping for the Detro
	Letter from Michael Drapeau to Chief Craft Thanking Sgt. Rob
	Letter from Barnett Jones, Chief of Police for the City of S

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Memorandum, Re: Status of Section 23 (Raintree Village 
	J-7  Memorandum, Re: Update-Somerset Collection Ryder Cup Ch
	J-8  Memorandum, Re: 2005 City Calendar
	J-9  Attached is a communication from Mrs. Mary Ann Bernardi
	J-10  Memorandum, City Manager John Szerlag, Re: Meeting wit
	J-11  E-Mail Correspondence Received from Victor Lenivov, Re

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1  No Study Items brought forward.

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session – No Study Session Requested.

	RECESSED
	RECONVENED
	ADJOURNMENT



